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Chairman’s Statement

EFRBESE

iously known as Shanghai Sichuan North Road 108 Project)

EEEE4H0 (1T EEFM)I1EEE108T8E )

China’s property sector in 2015 was adversely
impacted by slower economic growth and large
housing inventory.

China's property markets continued to be adversely impacted by
China’s slowing economy. China’s GDP grew only 6.8% for the
fourth quarter and 6.9% for 2015, the lowest rate in a quarter of
a century. Slower growth, combined with large unsold inventory,
adversely impacted the property markets in 2015. According to
the National Bureau of Statistics, in 2015, unsold inventory was
up 11.2 per cent to 452.5 million square meters. The excess
inventory has had a particularly adverse impact on tier 2 and 3
cities, causing an overhang on property prices.
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Chairman’s Statement

ITRWES

However, recognizing the importance of

the sector, the government has begun
implementing a number of demand side
policies to support the sector.

Recognizing the slowing economy, the government has begun
implementing measures to stimulate the sector, a sector which
accounts for 15% of China’s GDP, stating that reducing home
inventory is one of its key tasks in 2016.

Monetary policy has loosened, with interest rates having been
cut six times since November 2014. Purchase restrictions
have been relaxed, allowing buyers to purchase more than one
unit. In September, the government lowered the minimum down
payment for first-time home buyers to 25 percent, from the
previous 30 percent, in cities that do not have restrictions on
purchases. This amount was reduced again in February 2016 to
20 percent. For those looking for a second home, the minimum
down payment has dropped by 10 percentage points to 30%.
In addition, sales of houses held for more than 2 years will be
exempt from business tax.

And to encourage upgrading and sales of larger homes, the
government has said it will lower transaction taxes for second-
time home buyers and some first-time home buyers. Excluding
the four first tier cities, China will set the deed tax at 1.5 per
cent of the home’s value for first residences bigger than 90
square meters and at 1 per cent for those smaller than that size.
The deed tax will be cut to 2 per cent for second homes bigger
than 90 square meters and 1 per cent for smaller residences.
Previously, deed tax for larger apartments was as high as 3 per
cent.

Recognizing that demand supply stimulus is not enough, the
government is also focusing on the supply side. China’s land
ministry announced in February that it will reduce or stop issuing
land for development of residential housing projects in cities and
other areas where there is a supply glut, and will increase land
allocations in cities which have allowed migrant workers to buy
urban homes. Given the importance of land sales to the budgets
of municipalities, this is a clear incentive for governments to
reduce inventories.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHREE

As a result, the property market has begun to
stabilize...

House prices have begun to increase in the first tier cities,
and prices in other cities have at least stabilized. Over the last
several months of 2015 and into the beginning of the year,
sales volume has increased. According to the National Bureau of
Statistic’s 70-city price index for December 2015, the average
price of the 70-city price index is now positive, for the first time
since September 2014. Therefore, buyers are now expecting
price increases.

...and the Group is moderately more positive
for 2016.

Given the government’s continuous series of announcements
on supporting the property sector, particularly the non-tier
1 cities that the Group is currently focused on, the Group is
more positive on its outlook for 2016, and has seen evidence
of increased activity in the first several weeks of this year,
compared to 2015. The stimulus measures to encourage
upgrading of homes and to encourage the sales of larger
units should benefit the Group given it has a relatively large
percentage of bigger units in non-tier 1 cities.

The Group continues to make progress on its North Bund and
“Shanghai Landmark Center” (previously called Sichuan North
Road Lot 108) projects, two important commercial projects that
account for a significant portion of the Group’s investments.
These two projects, located in a prime area of Shanghai with
good views of the Huangpu River, are scheduled to complete at
the end of 2016.

Reflecting the confidence in the Group, Creator, which is
owned by Mr. Oei Kang, Eric and his spouse, purchased from
Promontoria Holding XXI B.V. and Cerberus International, Ltd.
approximately 13.7% of the total issued shares and 16.8% of
the total issued warrants of the Company at HKS0.25 per share
and HKS0.08 per warrant. The acquisition was completed on
29 January 2015. In addition, Creator, through a subsequent
required general offer, purchased from the public an additional
5.9% of the entire issued share capital and an additional 6.2% of
the existing total number of Warrants. As at 31 December 2015,
Creator and parties acting in concert with it, own 65.05% of the
entire issued share capital of the Company.

HKC (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2015

—REMTEEECRE LT THEAR
MNEEELERRBE -RZF—HF
MERBARESFEY]  HEBME
e REBRFABDABMO_F—1
FH-A70EMTHEERE > 70{E
W EERBNFHERBAALEE -
A - ZE-HFEAANRRNER
- BEEREFENFE LK -

------ REBH _-_F-ANFZAIxR
F-REBRE -
ERBNEERENNEXRHEHEE
X O LEEXRAKERBEHNGMEN
F—REMEHE  AEER-F—X
FHRERA/ILER BE T HFif
b RN AFERFEHBAE AL
e ARAKERIE-—RUTHRAHE
MERZHRITEL - WEBEZTR
Ko 5% B K 7 B8 L $5 B #) R RS b K <
SEE -

AEBEEHEELINER T EBEEF
O ) A8 £ 78 0 )11E 38 108 5% 3 B ) 1]
B EMEEEMXEEEAKREEAXN
MIRELSE - EMEEBMN LBEE
WE - AR INERSES BN
“ERFFRETK

BliE(HEMEERERESHES) ATR
0.25 BT kB HMHAKREF0.08/% LM
Promontoria Holding XXI B.V. X Cerberus
International, Ltd.B@E R Q7] 232 817
RO TR E2H D BHTRREZAL
16.8% - RELEAEE T MELD o WEE
BERZZE—AF—HAZTNHTEK
oh - BlEEBEBBRE 2 EKRER
FORMARBAZHEBITRMOEIN
5.9% kIR B RRHEFE BEFEING.2% o X
—E-RF+-A=+T—8H " BlEKH
—BITHALTHEARARREHEEITR
7565.05% °



Chairman’s Statement

ETRBES

Wind conditions have returned to normal. “b{lkﬁ:E,@E:IEﬁ‘ °

Wind resources returned to normality for 2015 compared to the —E—AF - REEEREEIEE M
abnormally low wind resources in 2014. Wind conditions were  — ? WE - Bl ERNRBEEET
particularly strong during the first half of the year, although {£ - B e & ERKREE ¥ FE I Hop
they declined somewhat during the last several months of the &) HERAFEZBEA G N - B
year. Curtailment has remained an issue, particularly forthe T @ TEEH RN AQATEZSEEKFR
company’s wind farms that are not National Tender Projects that FEBEIKBEZIBEE R OEmMS @ 8 —
receive preferential treatment. BB o

As a result of the overall better conditions, revenues and SzEA RS INE  KEE FHHE

profits from China Renewable Energy (“CRE”), the Group's listed AT EBLEGER([HPEBEAER])H

subsidiary, increased, with revenues rising 36.6% to HK$132.9 Wz R &FMHEFTIES - W1 1136.6%

million, and net profit increasing 203.6% to HK$39.4 million. %2132,900,0007 7T » 45 7|3 hn203.6%
239,400,000/ 7T °
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEENWR DT

Financial review

During the year ended 31 December 2015, turnover amounted
to HKS1,273.4 million, an increase of 44.5% over turnover of
HKS881.2 million for the same period in 2014, while gross
profit for the period of HKS413.7 million also represented an
increase of 30.1% over gross profit of HK$318.0 million in
the same period last year. Revenue and gross profit increased
as the Group began to record revenues from the sales of its
Shenyang properties. However, the Group recorded a net loss
attributable to the equity holders of HK$S497.7 million for the
year under review. The net loss attributable to the equity holders
in 2014 was HKS87.2 million. Basic loss per share for the year
amounted to HK4.0 cents per share, while basic loss per share
in 2014 was HKO0.8 cents per share.

The primary reason for the loss is that in 2015, analysis of
the market in the Hongkou District of Shanghai suggests that
due to oversupply, the Group will not be able to achieve its
earlier forecasted office and retail rents upon completion. As
a result, the Group has recorded a share of fair value loss
(net of deferred tax) of HK$410.6 million for its two Shanghai
developments. In addition, poor homebuyer sentiment resulted
in a sharp decline in prices for residential units in Shenyang,
particularly for larger units. Accordingly, given the oversupply,
the Group recorded impairment losses of HK$135.6 million for
its Shenyang project to reflect the current market situation.

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s total borrowings
amounted to HKS$4,130.8 million, representing a drop of 1.2%
when compared with the equivalent figure of HKS4,179.4 million
as at 31 December 2014. Total borrowings as at 31 December
2015 included Hong Kong Dollar borrowings of HK$315.6
million (31 December 2014: HK$323.7 million) and Renminbi
borrowings equivalent to HKS$3,815.2 million (31 December
2014: HKS3,855.7 million).

The maturity dates for most of the Group’s outstanding
borrowings are spread over the next five years, with
HKS1,119.4 million repayable within one year or on demand,
HKS$2,311.5 million repayable within two to five years, and
HKS$699.9 million repayable after five years.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEBENWR DT

Most of the Group’s outstanding borrowings take the form of
interest-bearing loans, with floating interest rates. The recent
cut in interest rates should benefit the Group.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had restricted cash of
HKS614.5 million (31 December 2014: HKS765.0 million),
mainly related to the cash pledge against the facilities granted
and the deposits held in escrow accounts in relation to property
development projects. Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents
(includes short-term bank deposits) amounted to HK$978.5
million (31 December 2014: HKS1,102.8 million).

The Group conducts a majority of its business operations in
the PRC. A large portion of revenue, expenses and debts are
denominated in Renminbi. Fluctuations in the exchange rates of
Renminbi would have limited impact on the Group’s operations.
The Group did not use financial instruments for financial hedging
purposes during the year under review.

The Group will continue its efforts to create an optimum financial
structure that best reflects the long-term interests of its
shareholders, and will actively consider a variety of alternative
sources of funding to finance its future investments.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEENWR DT

Details of charges in group assets

During the year under review, the Group and certain of its
subsidiaries had charged certain assets worth HK$11,179.2
million (31 December 2014: HKS11,519.2 million) as security
for bank loans.

Gearing ratio

The Group's gearing ratio, defined as total borrowings divided
by total equity, as at 31 December 2015 was 29.8%, compared
with 27.7% as at 31 December 2014. The Group’s net debt
ratio as at year end was 18.3%, compared with 15.3% as at 31
December 2014. This ratio represents total borrowings minus
cash and divided by total equity.

Contingent liabilities
The Group had contingent liabilities, details are set out in Note
36 to the consolidated financial statements.

Business model

The Group is a Hong Kong based property developer focusing
on investing and developing property projects in Mainland China,
and aims to develop high quality products to create sustainable
value for its shareholders.

The Group has a diversified property portfolio model with
investments in both residential projects for sale and commercial
projects mainly for rental income. The residential projects
currently under development are located in Tianjin, Jiangmen
and Shenyang. The Group’s commercial projects, which are
primarily involved in office buildings and retail malls, are located
in prime business areas in Shanghai, Shenzhen, Beijing and
Guangzhou.

Over the long term, the Group seeks to maintain a balance
between residential development for sale and commercial
investment properties for lease in order to create a sustainable
model with growth potential. Residential properties for sale
generate fast turnover, which should enhance return on equity.
Investment properties for lease, on the other hand, create
steady recurring income and cash flow as well as long term
capital appreciation.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEENWR DT

The Group adopts a very prudent financial policy, and given
the volatility of the property industry, HKC aims to maintain a
conservative net debt/equity ratio. While most of the Group’s
projects are in the PRC, the Group may consider diversifying by
investing in other countries.

The Group has also made an investment in the alternative energy
sector, and believes shareholders may benefit from China’s
need to develop non-polluting sources of energy.

Business risks

As a China property developer, the Group is subject to Chinese
government property policies, development, marketing, and
other execution risks.

RMB risk

Most of the Group’s assets are in RMB. The Group conducts a
majority of its business operations in the PRC. The major portion
of revenue, expenses and debts are denominated in Renminbi.
Fluctuations in the exchange rates of Renminbi would have
limited impact on the Group’s operations. However, depreciation
may have an adverse impact on the Group’s book value.

Environmental policies

The Group aspires to be a leading sustainable Group, and has
therefore invested in the renewable energy sector, and uses
sustainable technologies in some of its property developments,
such as solar panels and heat pump technology where feasible.

Business review

Investment properties

The Group’s existing property investment portfolio, consisting
largely of premium commercial and retail developments in
Shenzhen, Beijing and Guangzhou, continued to generate a
steady stream of rental revenue for the Group during the year
under review, with leasing revenues rising 23.2% year on year to
HK$152.0 million.
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Tianjin

Tianjin Eka Garden is on a prime location in the Nankai District
of Tianjin. The project consists of townhouses and high rise
apartments totaling gross floor area (“GFA”) of approximately
150,000 square meters. Construction for all three phases has
now been completed. For 2015, the Group sold 19,589 square
meters of GFA, resulting in contracted sales of RMB368.3
million, an increase compared to the RMB154.4 million in 2014.

For the land bank at Tuanbo Lake in Tianjin, the Group is still
waiting for the government to release the master plan for the
area.

Jiangmen

Jiangmen Eka Garden is a residential project consisting of
GFA of approximately 189,000 square meters of low rise
townhouses and high rise apartments. The project is located
on an excellent site along a river bank, within walking distance
to the Jiangmen/Hong Kong ferry terminal and an international
school, and a marina club which was completed in 2015. The
site is also close to the Guangzhu Intercity Railway’s Waihai
Station connecting Jiangmen to Guangzhou and Zhuhai.

Construction of the first two phases of the project have been
completed, and most units have been sold. Construction work
on phase 3 is underway. The high rises and all three blocks of
townhouses have topped out. Construction is expected to be
completed by the third quarter of 2016.

In 2015, the Group sold 12,296 square meters of GFA,
recording contracted sales of RMB77.4 million, a decrease
compared to RMB130.4 million in 2014.

Shenyang

Shenyang Eka Garden, located in one of Shenyang’s prime
residential areas, is adjacent to Shenyang’s Nanhu Park in
the center of city. The project, subdivided into sites A, B, and
C, consists of GFA of approximately 266,000 square meters
of townhouses, high rise apartments, and a few commercial
shops. For site B (GFA: approximately 133,500 square meters),
construction of all four high rise towers have been completed
during the year, and handover of sold units have begun.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEBENWR DN

Site C (GFA: approximately 57,500 square meters) is divided
into two portions. One portion consists of two high rise blocks
(mainly for housing resettled residents) and a small commercial
area. Another portion will be developed into townhouses.
Construction of the resettlement flats should be completed by
the second half of 2016. Preparation for development of site A,
with GFA of approximately 75,000 square meters, is underway.
The Group continues to work with the local government to
complete the relocation of the residents on site A.

For 2015, the Group sold 17,514 square meters of GFA,
resulting in contracted sales of RMB212.0 million, an increase
of 498.9% compared to RMB35.4 million in 2014. However, the
average unit sales price, particularly for larger luxury units, has
been disappointing given the large oversupply in the Shenyang
market.

Shanghai

The Shanghai commercial market remained stable in 2015, with
the office vacancy rate around 5.0%. However, in Shanghai,
nearly one million square meters of new office supply is
expected to enter the market in 2016, so vacancy rates
may increase. With the anticipated supply, the Group is now
anticipating that lease rates for its two commercial projects will
likely be less than it initially anticipated.

The Group has two commercial projects in the Hongkou District
of Shanghai, an area that is benefiting from the improvement
in infrastructure, including the completion of the International
Cruise Terminal, an underground road connecting to the Bund,
and a new tunnel linking Hongkou and Pudong.

The Group has a 60% interest in Shanghai Landmark Center,
located on North Sichuan road. The project has a GFA of
approximately 161,000 square meters (a GFA of approximately
248,000 square meters including basement) office and retail
complex. Both Tower 1 (formerly East tower) and Tower 2
(formerly West tower) have topped out. The entire development
project is scheduled to be completed by the end of 2016. The
Group is now developing a plan for pre-leasing.
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The North Bund project, in which the Group has a 25% interest,
has a GFA of approximately 259,000 square meters (GFA of
approximately 427,000 sg.m. including basement) of office,
hotel, and retail space. The hotel and sixty six floor office towers
have topped out. The hotel is expected to be completed by
the end of 2016 with opening scheduled for the second half of
2017, and will be run by the Starwood Group under the W brand.
The entire project is expected to be completed by the end of
2016.

Nanxun

The project is a complex of three-story buildings fully completed
as a trading center for wooden floor, furniture and other building
materials. The GFA of Nanxun International Building Materials
City is approximately 180,000 square meters, in which
approximately 83,000 square meters are offered for sales and
the remaining GFA of approximately 97,000 square meters are
for lease. The market has been opened for business since July
2013. Over 90% of the GFA has been sold or leased out.

Beijing

The Group operates a 17,100 square meters retail complex
at Legation Quarters, the former site of the United States
diplomatic compound in Beijing, which is situated along
the southeast corner of Tiananmen Square. The Group has
converted the compound into a high end retail shop and
restaurant complex. Operating results for the project were down
slightly during 2015 as some units were vacated. The Group
is now negotiating to extend the master lease which is due to
expire by 2021.

Alternative energy

All of the Group’s alternative energy projects are under its
subsidiary, China Renewable Energy Investment Limited (“CRE").
Wind resources for the year improved significantly compared
to the poor wind resources in 2014. As a result, revenues
increased 37% to HK$132.9 million and net profits increased
179% to HKS40.5 million during 2015. The government
continues to support the sector in order to reduce pollution,
and has accelerated the construction of ultra-high voltage
transmission lines. Three 500 KV substations were completed in
Zhangbei, and appear to be helping reduce curtailment for the
Group’s wind operations in the area.
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Completion of its phase two 49.5 MW Siziwanggi windfarm in
Inner Mongolia has boosted the Group’s net wind generating
capacity by 17% for 2015, and has helped boost revenues and
profits in 2015.

Please refer to CRE’s annual report for more details.

Infrastructure

The Group’s Build-Operate-Transfer (“BOT") toll road project
in Guilin, which links up with China’'s Western Expressway,
continues to make progress. For 2015, traffic revenue
increased 18.3% to RMB65.4 million as traffic flow dropped and
toll prices increased.

Prospects

The Group is moderately positive on prospects for 2016. The
government is clearly looking to bolster the property sector
given its importance for China's economy. And the Group’s
increased sales at the beginning of 2016 suggest that the
government’s policies are beginning to have a positive impact.

For 2016, the Group will continue focusing on sales of its
residential properties in Tianjin, Shenyang, and Jiangmen. Given
the government’s support for upgraders and larger units, the
Group expects sales of these larger units will be better than in
2015.

At the same time, the Group intends to maintain its construction
progress for Shanghai North Bund and Shanghai Landmark
Center, with the goal of completion by the end of 2016. Both
projects have now commenced plans for pre-leasing activities.
We expect strong domestic demand over the long term, but new
supply could put near term pressure on office and retail rents.

The Group will continue exploring to sell its non-core properties
and projects which no longer match with the growth direction
of the Group. Management believes these sales will unlock the
value of the Group’s assets and strengthen the balance sheet so
that the Group will be focused on its core business of property
development.
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Alternative energy

The regulatory environment for windpower is expected to
remain favourable given the government’s desire to reduce
pollution. Curtailment is expected to remain an issue in 2016.
However, in February 2016, the National Energy Administration
announced nine key measures to increase dispatch, and is
clearly encouraging power plants to use renewable energy over
coal fired power plants. 11 UHV transmission lines have been
approved, with a collective transmission capacity of 90 GW.
Assuming 20% of the capacity is reserved for wind, 20 GW
of wind power could be transmitted through these lines. As a
result, the Group expects continued improvement in curtailment

by 2017-18.

The Group has recently obtained the rights to develop a 100
MW windfarm in Songxian, near Luoyang in Henan Province.
The project has been put into the twelfth five year plan, and the
Group is working on completing the feasibility, environmental,
and other studies needed to obtain final project approval. CRE
is optimistic over this project given the curtailment rate in this
region is relatively low and wind tariff rates are relatively high.

Please refer to CRE’s annual report for more information.

Employees

As of 31 December 2015, the Group employed approximately
444 employees across its operations in Hong Kong and the
Mainland China. All employees are remunerated according to the
nature of their jobs, their individual performances, the Group’s
overall performance and prevailing market conditions.
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Directors and Senior Management
EEREHREERE

Mr. OEI Tjie Goan

(Non-executive Director)

Mr. OEI Tjie Goan, aged 71, is the Chairman and a Non-
executive Director of the Group since April 2004. Mr. OEl was a
graduate of the Mathematics & Dynamics Department of Beijing
University where he majored in Computational Mathematics.
Involved in Asia’s pulp and paper, finance, banking, property and
agricultural industries since 1974, Mr. OEl sits on the board of
two listed companies in Indonesia: PT. Indah Kiat Pulp & Paper
Tbk. and PT. Pabrik Kertas Tjiwi Kimia Tbk. Mr. OEl is the father
of Mr. OEl Kang, Eric, an Executive Director and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company.

Mr. OEI Kang, Eric

(Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. OEl Kang, Eric, aged 45, has been appointed as an
Executive Director of the Group since April 2004. Mr. OEl is
the Chief Executive Officer and the chairman of the Executive
Committee of the Company. Mr. OEIl also holds several
directorships in other members of the Group. Mr. OEl was
educated in the USA, and obtained a Bachelor's Degree in
Economics (with a minor in Electrical Engineering) and a
Master’'s Degree in Business Administration. Earlier in his
career, Mr. OEl worked with Peregrine Securities Ltd. and
PCCW in Hong Kong, the LG Group in Seoul and McKinsey
& Co. in Los Angeles, USA. Mr. OEl is a son of Mr. OEIl Tjie
Goan, the Chairman of the Group. Mr. OEl is also a director
and a shareholder of Claudio Holdings Limited, the controlling
shareholder of the Company. Mr. OEl is currently an Executive
Director, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of China
Renewable Energy Investment Limited, a subsidiary of the
Company and the shares of which are listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).
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Directors and Senior Management
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LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel

(Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel, aged 52, is an Executive
Director of the Company since September 2015. Mr. LEUNG
also serves as a director of certain members of the Group
and Chief Financial Officer and a member of the Executive
Committee of the Company. Mr. LEUNG has been appointed
as an Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer of China
Renewable Energy Investment Limited (“CRE"), a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, the shares of which are
also listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange since
1 December 2008. He joined the CRE Group in April 2008
as Qualified Accountant. He also holds several directorships
in other members of CRE Group and is a member of the
Executive Committee of CRE. Mr. LEUNG is a certified practising
accountant of CPA Australia. He obtained a Master's Degree
in Business from RMIT University of Australia. He has over 20
years’ experience in auditing and finance management with an
international audit firm and other major conglomerates in Hong
Kong. Prior to joining the CRE Group, Mr. LEUNG was a director
of internal control and risk management of the Company.

LEE Shiu Yee, Daniel

(Executive Director)

Mr. LEE Shiu Yee, Daniel, aged 50, is an Executive Director of
the Company since January 2014. Mr. LEE also serves as a
director of certain members of the Group and a member of the
Executive Committee of the Company. Mr. LEE is the Project
Director of Property Department of the Group since December
2010. Mr. LEE holds a Professional Diploma in Quantity
Surveying (Hong Kong Polytechnic), a Bachelor of Laws (LLB)
degree with honours (City University, Hong Kong) and an MSc
degree in Construction Management (Reading University, UK).
He is a Registered Professional Surveyor, a member of The
Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors and a member of The
Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors. Mr. LEE has over twenty years
of project management experience in property developments
in Hong Kong and China. Before joining the Group, Mr. LEE
was the General Manager (Property Projects) of the Property
Department of CITIC Pacific Limited.
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WONG Jake Leong, Sammy

(Executive Director)

Mr. WONG Jake Leong, Sammy, aged 55, has been appointed
as Executive Director of the Company since January 2014.
He has been instrumental in raising funds for the Group and is
currently serving as a member of the Investment Committee and
the Executive Committee of the Company. He is also a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. WONG is the Investor
Relations Director of the Group and has been with the Group
since 2007. He has also served as a former Chief Financial
Officer. Mr. WONG is an Executive Director of China Renewable
Energy Investment Limited, a listed subsidiary of the Company,
the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.

Mr. WONG received a Bachelor’'s degree in the geophysical
sciences from the University of Chicago and an MBA from
the Yale School of Management. He started his career as an
investment banker at Kidder, Peabody in New York, where
he was involved in project finance. He moved to Hong Kong
with Bear Stearns, and was involved in a variety of corporate
finance activities, and was involved in some of the first H share
IPOs out of China. Mr. WONG then worked in equity research
at Societe Generale where he was in charge of the research
efforts in Shanghai; and later as Vice President and head of
China Research at Credit Suisse in Hong Kong. Before joining
the Company, Mr. WONG served as a Chief Financial Officer for
DVN Holdings Limited (now known as “Frontier Services Group
Limited”), where he was involved in fund raising and introducing
strategic investors to the company.
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Mr. CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico

(Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico, aged 55, is an independent non-
executive director of the Group since April 2004. Mr. CHUNG
graduated from the University College, University of London,
England with a Law Degree in 1983. After qualifying as a
solicitor in Hong Kong in 1986, Mr. CHUNG spent 2 years
working with the commercial department of a local law firm.
He subsequently joined the corporate finance department of
Standard Chartered Asia Ltd., the investment banking arm of
Standard Chartered Bank, in 1988.

In 1990, Mr. CHUNG became a director and General Manager
of Bond Corporation International Ltd., leaving to join China
Strategic Holdings Ltd in 1992. In March 1999, he joined the
Pacific Century Group as executive director with responsibility
for the group’s merger and acquisition activities. Mr. CHUNG
is currently the executive chairman of CSI Properties Limited,
a company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, and a non-executive director of HKT Limited and HKT
Management Limited (in its capacity as the trustee — manager of
the HKT Trust).
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Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo

(Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo, aged 55, is an independent non-executive
director of the Group since July 2004. Mr. CHENG holds a
Master of Science Degree in Economics, Accounting and
Finance and a Bachelor of Arts (Hons.) Degree in Accounting.
He is a fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, and a member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Ontario. His career includes more than 20 years’
accounting and corporate advisory services expertise in several
listed companies in Hong Kong. The co-founder of a Hong
Kong merchant banking firm, Mr. CHENG is the proprietor of a
certified public accountancy practice in Hong Kong.

Mr. CHENG is currently an independent non-executive director
of CSI Properties Limited, Goldbond Group Holdings Limited,
C.P. Lotus Corporation, Chia Tai Enterprises International
Limited, Chong Hing Bank Limited, CPMC Holdings Limited,
Top Spring International Holdings Limited, Liu Chong Hing
Investment Limited and DTXS Silk Road Investment Holdings
Company Limited, all being Hong Kong listed companies.
Mr. CHENG was an executive director of 21 Holdings
Limited (now known as “Huanxi Media Group Limited”) and an
independent non-executive director of South China Land Limited
and Imagi International Holdings Limited, all companies listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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Mr. Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior

(Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior, aged 62, is an independent
non-executive director of the Group since September 2004.
Mr. DA ROSA holds both Bachelor’'s and Master's Law Degrees
from the University of Hong Kong. He qualified as a solicitor in
Hong Kong in 1980. He currently is a practicing solicitor and
a partner of Messrs. Cheung, Tong & Rosa, Solicitors, Hong
Kong.

Mr. DA ROSA is a fellow of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators
and the Hong Kong Institute of Directors, a member of the Hong
Kong Securities and Investment Institute and the Society of
Registered Financial Planners and an accredited mediator with
certain institutions in the U.K. and Hong Kong.

He is a non-executive director of TCL Multimedia Technology
Holdings Limited and the company secretary of Y.T. Realty
Group Limited and Yugang International Limited, all of which are
companies listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

Mr. DA ROSA serves as Chairman of the Appeal Tribunal
(Buildings) Panel and the Chairman of the Board of Review
(Inland Revenue Ordinance) Panel. He served the Solicitors
Disciplinary Tribunal Panel from 1998 to 2014 as member,
Deputy Tribunal Convenor and ultimately the Tribunal Convenor.
He also served as member of the Academic and Accreditation
Advisory Committee of the Securities and Futures Commission
of Hong Kong from February 2003 to March 2009.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

Corporate governance practices

HKC (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”, and with its
subsidiaries, collectively, the “Group”) is committed to good
corporate governance principles and practices and its board of
directors (the “Directors” or the “Board”) recognizes that it is
essential to safeguard the interests of shareholders, customers
and employees and uphold accountability, transparency and
responsibility of the Company.

The Company has applied the principles and complied with
the code provisions and certain recommended best practices
set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code"),
contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) during the year
ended 31 December 2015, save for the deviations with
considered reasons as explained stated in the following relevant
paragraphs.

The Company has at all time during the year ended 31
December 2015 maintained a balanced board with strong
independent element. The Board currently comprises eight
Directors with four Executive Directors, one Non-executive
Director and three Independent Non-executive Directors. Each
Director possesses expertise and experience and provides
checks and balances for safeguarding the interests of the Group
and the shareholders as a whole. In addition, the Company had
maintained three Independent Non-executive Directors which
formed at least one-third of the full Board. Biographical details
of the Directors and their relationships, where applicable, are
set out in pages 17 to 22 of this Annual Report.

During the year, the Board at all times met the requirements
of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least
three Independent Non-executive Directors with at least one
Independent Non-executive Director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise. The independence of the Independent
Non-executive Directors was assessed in accordance with the
applicable Listing Rules. Each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors has provided to the Company an annual confirmation
of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers that all of them are independent.
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Corporate governance practices (continued)

The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company were exercised by two different individuals.
Mr. OEIl Tjie Goan is the Chairman and Mr. OEl Kang, Eric is
the Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ”) of the Company. Their
responsibilities had been clearly set out and approved by the
Board. The Board considers that this arrangement facilitates
the execution of the Group’s business strategies and maximizes
effectiveness of its operation. The Board shall nevertheless
review its structure from time to time and will consider
appropriate move to take should circumstances so required. Mr.
OEl Tjie Goan, the Chairman of the Company, is the father of Mr.
OEl Kang, Eric, CEO.

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Group and is collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Group by directing and supervising the Group's affairs and
formulating business strategies with a view to maximizing its
financial performance and shareholders’ value.

The Board has delegated various responsibilities and powers
to the Board committees to assist it in efficiently implementing
those functions specified in written terms of reference.

Decisions relating to the long-term objectives and viability of
the Company, and any acquisitions or disposal of transactions
and investments of any kind with value exceeding the authority
of the Executive Committee set out in its terms of reference
or the threshold for discloseable transactions for the Company
as defined in the Listing Rules from time to time are reserved
for the Board; whereas decisions on matters set out in the
terms of reference of the Executive Committee and those
not specifically reserved for the Board are delegated to the
Executive Committee and management, as applicable.

Directors are provided with sufficient resources to seek
independent professional advice in performing their duties
at the Company’s expense and are encouraged to consult
with the Company’s senior management independently. The
management provides monthly management accounts of the
Group to the Directors to apprise them of the Group’s latest
performance and financial position.
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Corporate governance practices (continued)

Directors are requested to disclose to the Company at the time
of his/her appointment and in a timely manner for any change,
the number and nature of offices held in public companies or
organizations and other significant commitments. Such changes
will be updated and published in the annual and interim reports
as appropriate.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to
indemnify the Group's Directors for their liabilities arising out of
corporate activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed on an
annual basis.

All new appointment of Directors and nomination of Directors
proposed for re-election at the annual general meeting are
first considered by the Nomination Committee. The Nomination
Committee will assess the candidate or incumbent on criteria
such as integrity, experience, skill and ability to commit time
and effort to carry out the duties and responsibilities. Having
due regard for the benefits of diversity of the Board, the
Nomination Committee will then put recommendations to the
Board for decision. Details of the role and function as well as a
summary of the work performed by the Nomination Committee
are set out under the heading of “Nomination Committee” below.

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws (“Bye-laws”), the
nearest to but not less than one-third of the Directors shall
retire from office by rotation but are eligible for re-election by
shareholders at the annual general meeting provided that every
Director is subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years. New appointments to the Board are also subject
to re-election by shareholders at the next following annual
general meeting. Mr. LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel, who was newly
appointed by the Board on 1 September 2015, will also retire
from office in accordance with bye-law 84 of the Bye-Laws and
will offer himself for re-election as Director.
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Corporate governance practices (continued)

All non-executive directors of the Company were appointed
with no specific term, but are subject to the aforesaid rotation
requirement in the Bye-laws, accomplishing the same purpose
as being appointed for a specific term pursuant to code
provision A.4.1 of the CG Code. The rotating Directors who are
subject to retirement and re-election at the 2016 annual general
meeting are set out on page 50 of this Annual Report.

Since Mr. CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico, Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo
and Mr. Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior, being the
Independent Non-executive Directors, have served the
Company for more than nine years, the re-election of
each of them will be proposed by separate resolutions
put forward for shareholders' consideration at the
forthcoming AGM in accordance with the code provision
A.4.3 of the CG Code. Mr. CHUNG, Mr. CHENG and
Mr. DA ROSA joined the Group as independent non-executive
director in April 2004, July 2004 and September 2004
respectively. They will be subject to re-election as Director in the
forthcoming annual general meeting. Mr. CHUNG, Mr. CHENG
and Mr. DA ROSA do not play any management role in the Group.
The Board considers that Mr. CHUNG, Mr. CHENG and Mr.
DA ROSA has maintained independent views in relation to the
Company’s affair.

The Board adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) on 8 July 2013.

Below is the summary of the Board Diversity Policy:

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board, and sees increasing diversity at Board level as
an essential element in maintaining a competitive advantage. All
appointments of the members of the Board are made on merit,
in the context of the skills and experience the Board as a whole
requires to be effective. In designing the Board composition,
the Company is committed to equality of opportunity in all
aspects and does not discriminate on the grounds, including
but not limited to, ethnicity, gender, age, cultural and religious
background.
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Corporate governance practices (continued)

The Nomination Committee discussed and agreed the
measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the Board and
recommended them to the Board for adoption. During the year,
the Committee reviewed the existing composition of the Board
and identified the key business skills and experience required in
line with the business strategy. It also monitored the review of
the Company’s recruitment process to reinforce its commitment
to the principle of equal opportunity.

The Directors meet from time to time to discuss and exchange
ideas on the affairs of the Company. The Board has set up
various Board Committees, among others, the Audit Committee,
the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee for
overseeing particular aspects of the Group’s affairs. The terms
of reference of the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Remuneration Committee are available on both the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

TEERER®

Tm%yé\auﬁnmﬂﬁﬁ%%ﬁ%$@%ﬁ
{EE’JTqu;ETE EFERMI
BiE - FR - é,\é\mﬂﬁﬁ%$’\
B AR R - ﬁﬁﬁﬁrﬁéﬁi%ﬁ‘%ﬁﬂiﬂ—ﬁlﬁﬁﬁm
FAREBRENER ZZEQEEE
ARFHEBENES  AMREEF
FHE RAIE AR o

BEETHRITEE  UFTRARRER
&x?ﬁluﬁ BEeONUREEEE
g HEPBEEZZTEY  REBZEB
C FTHZESUERALEBEZES
%o BRZRELZEESG  REZEELITMZE
SerBESE  HNADF) LB
%H;E

BRERUEBOARD

—HEFR

27



28

Corporate Governance Report

T IIN
JJ:% B /A iﬁ%
Corporate governance practices (continued) TEERER®

During the year, the following meetings of the Board, the Audit FR r TF® - BEXELTE® - IEEXL 8B
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration @ NKHMMEE @ LEIT NI @5 @ &
Committee were held and the attendance of the individual FERZEZEeZHFEBEIREHNTEK
Directors at these meetings is set out in the table below:

Number of meetings attended/
number of meetings held during the term of office
BHREHHA NEFRETEEYA

Audit  Remuneration Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee
gze ENZEe ¥MzEe R4zE8

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. OEI Kang, Eric BHI%EE 44 2/2 (Notelizt)  2/2 (NoteBfzt)  1/1 (Notefffz)

Mr. LEE Shiu Yee, Daniel TERRE 4/4 0/2 N/ARE N/ATER

Mr. WONG Jake Leong, Sammy BHRLAE 4/4  1/2 (Noteffs5) N/ATiEF N/ATEE

Mr. LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel PEBEHE /1 0/0 N/ATERA N/ATERA
(appointed on 1 September 2015) (R=F-RENA—HEZ()

Mr. CHAN Kwok Fong, Joseph REF LA 33 2/2 (Noteffi&) N/ATER N/ATER
(resigned on 1 September 2015) (R=F—RENA—HEHT)

Non-executive Directors FYTEE

Mr. OEI Tjie Goan BEERLE 0/4 N/ATER N/ATERA N/ATERA

Ms. YEN Teresa F3:8 0/1 N/ATER N/ATiE N/ATE
(resigned on 8 May 2015) (R=F—-RERANAEHT)

Independent Non-executive Directors ~ BUFEHTES

Mr. CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico BREAE 4/4 0/2 2/2 1/1
Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo gEmLs 3/4 2/2 2/2 1/1
Mr. Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior #IELE 4/4 2/2 2/2 1/1

Note: The Executive Directors attended the relevant meetings as i} : T E S U HFA TGO EEE S
invitees. 3
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Corporate governance practices (continued)

Notices of not less than fourteen days are given for all regular
board meetings to provide all Directors with an opportunity to
attend and include matters in the agenda for a regular meeting.
For other Board and committee meetings, reasonable notice is
generally given. The agenda and accompanying board papers
are dispatched to the Directors or committee members at
least three days before the meetings to ensure that they have
sufficient time to review the papers and be adequately prepared
for the meetings. When Directors or committee members are
unable to attend a meeting, they are advised of the matters
to be discussed and given an opportunity to make their views
known to the Chairman and/or the CEO prior to the meeting.

Minutes of the board meetings and committee meetings are
recorded in sufficient detail on the matters considered by the
Board and the committees and the decisions reached, including
any concerns raised by the Directors. Draft minutes of each
board meeting and committee meeting are sent to the Directors
for comments within a reasonable time after the date of the
meeting. All Directors have access to the Company Secretary,
who is responsible for ensuring that the board procedures are
complied with and advising the Board on compliance matters.

The Board continues to maintain a culture of openness and
constructive relations between Executive and Non-executive
Directors (including Independent Non-executive Directors). In the
absence of the Chairman, the CEO is in the position to facilitate
the effective contribution of Non-executive Directors, and ensure
their views are communicated and heard by the Board. During
the year, the Chairman did not hold any formal meeting with
Independent Non-executive Directors and other Non-executive
Directors without the Executive Directors present (as provided
for in code provision A.2.7 of the CG Code) due to the tight
schedule of the Chairman and Non-executive Directors.
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Remuneration committee

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee with
written terms of reference. The Remuneration Committee,
chaired by an Independent Non-executive Director, currently
comprises three members namely Mr. CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico,
Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo and Mr. Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior, all
of whom are Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s remuneration
policy and structure for Directors and senior management,
and reviewing their remuneration packages. In arriving at its
recommendations, the Remuneration Committee will consult
with the Chairman and/or the CEO whenever it thinks fit and
take into consideration factors such as the remuneration paid
by comparable companies, skill, knowledge, time commitment
and responsibilities of Directors. The Remuneration Committee
has the responsibility, powers and discretion to determine,
with delegated responsibility, the remuneration packages of
individual Executive Directors and senior management.

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee held
two meetings to review, inter alia, the remuneration policy and
structure of Directors including those retired and re-elected at
the 2015 annual general meeting of the Company and approve
the year-end bonus and salary increment of the Executive
Directors. The Remuneration Committee also approved the
remuneration packages of the newly appointed Executive
Directors. No Director was involved in deciding his/her own
remuneration. The attendance records of each member at the
meetings of the Remuneration Committee held during his/her
term of office are set out on page 28 of this Annual Report.
Details of the Directors’ and senior management’'s remuneration
for the year ended 31 December 2015 are set out in note 40 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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Nomination committee

The Company has established a Nomination Committee with
written terms of reference. The Nomination Committee, chaired
by an Independent Non-executive Director, currently comprises
three members namely Mr. CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico, Mr. CHENG
Yuk Wo and Mr. Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior and, all of whom
are independent. The Nomination Committee held one meeting
during the year, and the attendance details of each member are
set out on page 28 of this Annual Report.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board at least annually,
identifying suitable candidates for directorship, assessing
the independence of Independent Non-executive Directors,
and making recommendations to the Board on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy.

During the year, the work performed by the Nomination
Committee includes the following:

o reviewing the structure, size and composition of the
Board;

o reviewing the structure of board committees;

° assessing the independence of Independent Non-

executive Directors and sufficient number of independent
directors to maintain a balanced board;

o assessing the qualification and experience of new
candidates for directorship and making recommendation
to the Board on matters relating to the appointment of
Directors;

o making recommendation to the Board relating to the re-
appointment of the retiring Directors; and

o formulating the Board Diversity Policy, setting the
measurable objectives for implementing the Board
Diversity Policy, and making recommendation to the
Board on the adoption of the Board Diversity Policy.
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Nomination committee (continued)

The Company had provided the Nomination Committee
sufficient resources to perform its duties. Where necessary,
the Nomination Committee could seek independent
professional advice, at the Company’s expense, to perform its
responsibilities.

Audit committee

The Company has established an Audit Committee with written
terms of reference which have been updated from time to time
to align with the code provisions set out in the CG Code. The
Audit Committee, chaired by an Independent Non-executive
Director, currently comprised three members namely Mr.
CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico, Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo and Mr. Albert
Thomas DA ROSA, Junior, all of whom are Independent Non-
executive Directors at all time during the year ended 31
December 2015.

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to,
inter alia, review and supervise the Group’s financial reporting
process, internal control and risk management procedures, as
well as oversee the adequacy of the accounting and financial
reporting resources. While recognized corporate governance
is the collective responsibility of all Directors, the Board has
delegated the corporate governance functions to the members
of Audit Committee who are in an objective and independent
position to oversee the corporate governance compliance.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee held two
meetings together with senior management and external
auditor. The attendance details of each member are set out on
page 28 of this Annual Report. The major work performed by the
Audit Committee during the year included reviewing interim and
annual financial statements, continuing connected transactions,
internal audit reports on the internal controls and risk
management matters, the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance as well as reviewing and recommending
re-appointment of external auditor.
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Audit committee (continued)

The Company has adopted a whistleblowing policy for
employees to raise concerns, in confidence, with the designated
executive who is accountable to the Audit Committee about
possible improprieties in financial reporting, unlawful activities,
or activities violating the Group’s Code of Conduct and Business
Ethics or otherwise amounting to serious improper conduct and
to ensure protection from possible retaliation against any of our
employees who has reported concerns in good faith.

Executive committee

The Company has established an Executive Committee with
the key initiatives to manage the Group’s business activities,
and oversee the operating performance and financial position
of the Group and all strategic business units. The Committee
comprises all Executive Directors and executives of the Group.
Mr. OEIl Kang, Eric is the Chairman of the Executive Committee.

During the year under review, the Executive Committee met
regularly to review the performance of various business units
of the Group, co-ordinate overall resources, made financial and
operation decisions delegated by the Board, review and develop
investment strategy and policies of the Company and make
relevant recommendations to the Board.

Investment committee

As disclosed in the composite offer and response document
dated 16 April 2015 (“Composite Document”) jointly issued
by Creator Holdings Limited and the Company, Ms. YEN
Teresa resigned following the completion of the disposal of
approximately 13.7% and 16.8% of the issued ordinary shares
and issued warrants of the Company by Promontoria Holding
XXI B.V. and Cerberus International, Ltd. respectively to Creator
Holdings Limited at the end of January 2015. Further details of
the disposal are contained in the Composite Document.
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Investment committee (continued)

After resignation of Ms. YEN Teresa, the Investment
Committee had two remaining members, namely,
Mr. OEl Kang, Eric and Mr. WONG Jake Leong, Sammy, both
of them are Executive Directors and members of the Executive
Committee under the Board. After having regard to the main
functions of the Investment Committee, which are advisory
and non-binding, to oversee the investment transactions of
the Group, including review of establishment of investment
benchmarks and review of investment performance as well as
to report and make recommendations to the Board in relation to
the foregoing matters, the Board considered that the incumbent
Executive Committee would be in a position to assume
effectively similar advisory functions and responsibilities of
the Investment Committee with respect to the investments of
the Group. Accordingly, the Board has decided to dissolve and
discharge the IC with effect from 8 May 2015. The Executive
Committee may within its delegated authority undertake review
and consideration of investments for the Group and report and
make recommendations to the Board for decisions accordingly.

Delegation by the board

The management, consisting of the Executive Directors
of the Company and other executives, is delegated with
responsibilities for implementing the strategy and direction as
adopted by the Board from time to time, and conducting the
day-to-day operations of the Group. Executive Directors and
senior executives meet regularly to review the performance
of the businesses of various business units of the Group as a
whole, co-ordinate overall resources and make financial and
operation decisions. The Board also gives clear directions as
to their powers of management including circumstances where
management should report back, and will review the delegation
arrangements on a periodic basis to ensure that they remain
appropriate to the needs of the Group.
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Model code for securities transactions by
directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as its own code
of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions.
Having made specific enquiries, the Company has obtained
confirmation from all Directors that they have complied with the
required standards set out in the Model Code during the year
ended 31 December 2015.

The Company has also adopted a code for dealing in the
Company’s securities by relevant employees, who are likely to
be in possession of unpublished inside information in relation to
the securities of the Group, on no less exacting terms than the
Model Code.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial
statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015
which give a true and fair view of the affairs of the Company
and the Group and of the Group’s results and cash flows. In
preparing the financial statements, the Directors have adopted
generally accepted accounting standards in Hong Kong and
suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently,
made judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair and
reasonable and prepared the financial statements on a going
concern basis.

The statement of the Company’s auditor about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Company is
set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 79 to 80 of
this Annual Report.

Auditors’ remuneration

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the fees in respect
of audit and non-audit services provided to the Group by the
auditor amounted to approximately HKS$5.0 million and HKS3.0
million respectively. The non-audit services mainly consist of
interim results review services and tax advisory services.
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Directors’ training

EE5T

During the year, all Directors have participated in continuous F R @ 2BESHEREER LT HE
professional development to develop and refresh their ZHHHEFREZIHEEEERE o 1533
knowledge and skills. The training programmes included 7 BSfE:ERENLRRE WEZHEE  F
seminars and courses, reviewed the updated laws, rules and (R G H - U LR BH HEEEBEEEN
regulations and materials on topics relevant to the director’'s %} - EFBR AN RIIEEERES A Y
duties and responsibilities. Directors are requested to provide 1Z3I|504% - BREERMES 2 EZ3|EEE
the Company with their respective training record. The areas of %I~ :

training received by each Director are set out below:

Name of Directors

Executive Directors

Mr. OEI Kang, Eric

Mr. LEE Shiu Yee, Daniel

Mr. WONG Jake Leong, Sammy

Mr. LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel
(appointed on 1 September 2015)

Mr. CHAN Kwok Fong, Joseph
(resigned on 1 September 2015)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. OEI Tjie Goan
Ms. YEN Teresa

(resigned on 8 May 2015)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico
Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo
Mr. Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior

Areas of Training

A
Directors’
Corporate Law and duties/
strategy and regulatory governance Risk
businesses compliance practices  management
EBRE/
BEpg PERBNEY HEERE ERER RRER
BITEE
BHl%E v v v v
FEREE v v v
BRRLE v v v v
REREE v v v v
(R=F-RENA—HEZ()
REDS &4 v v
(R=E-RENA—-AEA)
FYTES
BEREE v v v v
Bafat v
(R=E-RERA/\AFE)
BUFHTES
BREREE v
gEnts v v v
ERLE v v v
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Directors’ training (continued)

The Company continuously updates Directors on the latest
developments in the statutory and regulatory regime and
the business environment to facilitate the discharge of their
responsibilities. In addition, the Directors are regularly
encouraged to enroll in a wide range of professional
development courses and seminars regarding the Listing Rules
and other regulatory requirements to enhance their awareness
of good corporate governance practices.

Risk management and internal control

The Board is responsible for the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness,
while management is charged with the responsibility to design,
implement and monitor the risk management and internal
control systems to manage risks and compliance.
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Risk management and internal control (continued)

As the first line of defense, operational management is
responsible for maintaining effective internal controls and
for executing risk and control procedures on day-to-day
operation. Management of Head Office establishes various risk
management and compliance functions to provide direction on
the importance of risk management and monitor the first line
of defense controls. The Internal Control and Risk Management
(“ICRM”) Department reviews and provides independent
assurance on the effectiveness of risk management and internal
control systems of the Group.

The Group has in place an integrated internal control framework
that is consistent with the COSO (Committee of Sponsoring
Organisations of the Treadway Commission) framework as
illustrated below:
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N & B B &% iz #1 COSO (Committee of
Sponsoring Organisations of the Treadway
Commission) fEZR — 2 7 47 & N EBES 1SR
B HFRT

M AR BIENERET - LARLEEMNEESR

WE B AT

o Foundation for all other components of internal control.

YERFA E A BB AR AR O LA

o Set the right tone of the Group influencing control consciousness and risk awareness of the staff.

ﬁk&ﬂ fa uzu%ﬂ °

o Factors include integrity, ethical values, competence, delegation of authority and responsibility.

BIEEE  BERE)  BRERECHESZHEE -

EHHA -
2) + AL AR AT E B LR -

o Identification, evaluation and analysis of the key risks underlying the achievement of the Group’s
objectives, including the risks relating to the changing regulatory and operating environment; conducted
regularly, forming the basis for determining control activities.

AHE R EERASE B FHEN T R2RAR (R

BREAREE MEERRELANE
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Risk management and internal control (continued) J&| i & T8 & A 2P BE42 ()

o Policies and procedures for ensuring management directives are carried out and necessary actions are
taken to address the risks that may hinder the achievement of the Group’s objectives.
FIEBERIET  BREEBEZERGUATUARRKRNETHREEXN S ERNEEENE
R o

° Control activities include authorisations, approvals, verifications, performance reviews, segregation of
duties, asset security, access control, documentation and records.
EEEHEEEE B %E A3 BEE S - BEERE - FEUEH  XHFER
ERE o
A

o Pertinent information is identified, captured and provided to the right person in a timely manner.

ER R - R EEE A TREAAEER -

o Channels of communication across the Group and with external parties are established.

B AEBEREFIZEAREIINRAL 2 BBERE -

o Channels of communication exist for people to report suspected malpractices or improprieties relating to
the Group.
RBRPRERNEEEHEHNEREUHXTBTRRLAEBRE -

° Combination of ongoing and separate evaluations of control system’s performance.

FrE R A RIRT 4 BRI R AR o

o Management and supervisory activities.
EERERTE-

o Internal audit activities.
NEPEZTIE o
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Risk management and internal control (continued)

The actions of management and its demonstrated commitment
to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance
practices within the Group are transparent to all. The Group
strives to conduct all business affairs based on good business
ethics and accountability. We have in place a formal Code
of Conduct & Business Ethics that is communicated to all
staff members. We aim to build risk awareness and control
responsibility into our culture and regard them as the foundation
of our risk management and internal control systems.

The risk management and internal control systems are designed
to manage the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and
can provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

We maintain an effective internal audit function, the ICRM
Department, whose main features include:

(i) independence from operational management;

(ii) fully empowered auditors with access to all data and
every operation of the Group;

(iii) adequate resources and well qualified and capable staff;

(iv) risk-based auditing, concentrating on areas with
significant risks or where significant changes have been
made.

Management has an ongoing process to identify and evaluate
the significant risks facing the Group and to prioritise resources
to manage those that arise. Mitigation strategies and plans
with respect to each key risk identified are developed and
implemented with regular review and update, which include
establishing or enhancing internal controls.

Heads of the departments, projects and business units regularly
review and analyse the key risks associated with achieving
the objectives of their particular departments, activities and
businesses to provide reasonable assurance that internal
controls are both embedded and effective within their areas of
accountability.
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Risk management and internal control (continued)

The Board maintains sound and effective risk management and
internal control systems through the following:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

The Board reviews the Group’s strategic plans and
objectives on an annual basis.

An organisational structure with defined lines of
responsibility and delegation of authority is devised.

Systems and procedures are in place to identify and
evaluate risks on an ongoing basis. Senior executives
review the risk assessment process and monitor the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems.

Appropriate policies and key control activities are
maintained with regular review on their effectiveness.

Financial performance is analysed against budget with
variances being accounted for and appropriate actions
taken to rectify deficiencies.

Senior executives ensure compliance with relevant laws,
regulations, standards and ordinances, including Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, the Listing Rules and
the Companies Ordinance, under their responsibility.

The ICRM Department reports directly to the Audit
Committee and the CEO, and carries out independent
reviews on the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Group's risk management and internal control systems
in accordance with its annual audit plan approved by the
Audit Committee. Key audit findings and implementation
progress of internal control recommendations are
regularly reported to the Board through the Audit
Committee. Head of the ICRM Department also serves as
the contact person under the Whistleblowing Guideline of
the Company.
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Risk management and internal control (continued)

The Executive Directors of the Company conduct reviews
of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems, and submit to the Audit Committee a
certification of compliance for effectiveness and efficiency of
operations, reliability of financial reporting, and compliance with
applicable laws and regulations bi-annually. The scope of this
review covers the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the Group’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions.

The Audit Committee regularly reviews the audit findings and
implementation progress of internal control recommendations,
and opinion of the ICRM Department on the performance of
risk management and internal control systems of the Group.
External auditor also reports on any control issues identified in
the course of their audit work.

Taking the above into consideration, the Audit Committee
reviews the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems at least once each year and reports to
the Board on such reviews.

The Board has, through the Audit Committee, reviewed and
considered the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems effective and adequate for the year ended 31
December 2015. No significant areas of concern that might
affect the operational, financial, and compliance controls and
risk management function of the Group were identified.
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Risk management and internal control (continued)

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information, the Company:

(i) is aware of the obligations under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance, the applicable Listing Rules and other
statutory regulations with regard to the timely and proper
disclosure of inside information, announcements and
financial disclosures and authorises their publication as
required.

(ii) has adopted and implemented its Inside Information
Disclosure Policy.

(iii) has in place a Code for Securities Dealing for governing
the securities transactions of those employees who,
because of their positions, are likely to have access to
confidential or inside information.

(iv) identifies and authorises members of the Group’s senior
management to act as the Company’s spokespersons
and respond to external enquiries.

Company secretary

The Company Secretary reports to the CEO on Board or
committee matters. All Directors have direct access to the
advice and services of the Company Secretary for the ongoing
discharge of their duties and responsibilities. For the financial
year ended 31 December 2015, the Company Secretary took
more than 15 hours of relevant professional training organized
by the Stock Exchange and various professional bodies.

Constitutional documents of the company

The Company has published its updated and consolidated
version of Memorandum of Association and Bye-Laws of the
Company at the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company. During the year, there was no alteration on the
constitutional documents of the Company.
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General meeting

The last annual general meeting of the Company was held on
27 May 2015 (the “2015 AGM"). The CEO chaired the 2015
AGM in the absence of the Chairman of the Board due to the
Chairman’s prior business engagement. The external auditor
attended the 2015 AGM to answer questions about the conduct
of the audit, the preparation and content of the auditors’ report,
the accounting policies and auditor independence.

The attendance record of the individual Directors at the 2015

AGM is set out in the table below:

Name of Directors

Executive Director

Mr. OEIl Kang, Eric

Mr. LEE Shiu Yee, Daniel

Mr. WONG Jake Leong, Sammy

Mr. LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel
(appointed on 1 September 2015)

Mr. CHAN Kwok Fong, Joseph
(resigned on 1 September 2015)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. OEI Tjie Goan
Ms. YEN Teresa

(resigned on 8 May 2015)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico

Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo
Mr. Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior

Note:

HKC (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2015

Independent Non-executive Directors and Non-executive
Directors are required to attend general meetings pursuant
to code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code. All Independent
Non-executive Directors and Non-executive Directors were
encouraged to attend the general meeting to inter-face with
shareholders of the Company but the Non-executive Directors
were not in a position to attend the 2015 AGM due to overseas
commitment and pre-arranged business engagements.
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Shareholders’ rights i SRAEF

Under section 74 of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda and bye-law 58 of the Bye-laws, any members
holding not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company shall have the right, by written requisition
to the Board or the Company Secretary, to require a
special general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition
(“Requisitionists”).

The written request must state the resolution, preferably
accompanied by a statement of not more than one
thousand words with respect to the matter referred to
in the proposed resolution for the Company’s reference
and consideration, signed by the all Requisitionists
concerned.

The written request must be deposited at the head office
of the Company at 9/F., Tower 1, South Seas Centre, 75
Mody Road, Tsimshatsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong, for
the attention of the Company Secretary.

The request will be verified with the Company’s branch
share registrar and transfer agent in Hong Kong (the
“Branch Share Registrars”). Upon the Branch Share
Registrars’ confirmation that the request is proper and
in order, the Company will convene a special general
meeting within two months after the deposit of such
requisition, and will serve sufficient notice in accordance
with the statutory and regulatory requirements to all
members of the Company.
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Pursuant to sections 79 and 80 of the Companies Act of
Bermuda, either any number of members representing
not less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights of
all the members, or not less than one hundred members
(“Requisitionists”) can submit a written request to move
a resolution at an annual general meeting or to circulate
a statement of not more than one thousand words in
relation to business to be dealt with in any general
meeting to members of the Company.

If a resolution is proposed by the members, the
written request must state the resolution (preferably
accompanied by a statement of not more than one
thousand words with respect to the matter referred to in
the proposed resolution), signed by all the Requisitionists
concerned.

The written request must be deposited at the registered
office of the Company and preferably with a copy of such
request sent to the head office of the Company at 9/F.,
Tower 1, South Seas Centre, 75 Mody Road, Tsimshatsui
East, Kowloon, Hong Kong, for the attention of the
Company Secretary not less than six weeks before the
meeting in the case of a requisition requiring notice of a
resolution, and not less than one week in the case of any
other requisition.

The request will be verified by the Branch Share
Registrars. Upon the Share Registrars’ confirmation
that the request is proper and in order, and the
Requisitionists have deposited a sum reasonably
sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses in giving
effect thereto, the Company will send the notice of
resolution or the statement to its members.
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Shareholders’ rights (continued)

The procedures for the shareholders of the Company
to propose a person for election as a director of the
Company are available and accessible on the Company’s
website at www.hkcholdings.com.

Communication with shareholders

The Board believes regular and timely communication with
shareholders forms part of the Group’s effort to help our
shareholders understand our business better. Copies of
the annual reports and interim reports of the Company are
distributed to its shareholders in accordance with statutory and
regulatory requirements and also to interested parties recorded
in the Company’s mailing lists. The publications of the Company,
including financial reports, circulars and announcements, are
also available on the Company’s website at www.hkcholdings.
com.

The Company acknowledges that general meetings are good
communication channel with the shareholders. At the general
meeting, each substantially separate issue is considered by a
separate resolution, including election of individual directors,
and the poll procedures are clearly explained. The CEO attended
the 2015 AGM in the absence of the Chairman of the Board due
to the Chairman’s prior business engagement. Other members
of the Board, the Chairmen of the relevant Board Committees
and the external auditor of the Company also attended the
annual general meeting to inter-face with, and answer questions
from the shareholders of the Company.

Shareholders can send their enquiry to the Board by the
following ways:

Post: 9/F., Tower 1, South Seas Centre, 75 Mody Road,
Tsimshatsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong

E-mail: info@hkcholdings.com

Fax: (852) 2722 6266
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors” or the “Board”)
have pleasure in presenting to shareholders their report
together with the audited financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2015.

Principal activities and geographical analysis
of operations

The principal activities of the Group are property development
and investment, alternative energy investment and operation
and infrastructure. The activities of its principal subsidiaries,
associates and jointly controlled entities are set out in pages
214 to 223 of the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year ended 31
December 2015 by geographical and business segments is set
out in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

Results and appropriations
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015
are set out in the consolidated income statement on page 81.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014 Nil).

Business review

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2015 is set out in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” on pages 8 to 16 of this annual report.

The group have complied the relevant laws and regulations
during the year.

Property, plant and equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Principal properties
Details of the principal properties held for development and
investment purposes are set out on pages 225 to 228.

Share issued in the year

Details of the shares issued in the year ended 31 December
2015 are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Pre-emptive rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the bye-laws
of the Company (“Bye-laws”) and there is no restriction against
such rights under the law of Bermuda.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in note 39 and note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Distributable reserves

At 31 December 2015, the distributable reserves of the
Company available for distribution was HK$730.7 million
(2014: HKS730.7 million), calculated in accordance with the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended).

Five-year financial summary
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 224.

Donations
During the year, the Group made no charitable and other
donation (2014 Nil).

Directors
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

* OEl Tjie Goan (Chairman)
OEl Kang, Eric (Chief Executive Officer)
LEE Shiu Yee, Daniel
WONG Jake Leong, Sammy
LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel (Chief Financial Officer)
(appointed on 1 September 2015)
L CHAN Kwok Fong, Joseph (Chief Financial Officer)
(resigned on 1 September 2015)
* YEN Teresa
(resigned on 8 May 2015)
e CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico
e CHENG Yuk Wo
Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior

N

e Executive Directors
* Non-executive Directors
& Independent Non-executive Directors
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Directors (continued)

Ms. YEN Teresa resigned on 8 May 2015 as non-executive
Director. Mr. CHAN Kwok Fong, Joseph resigned on 1
September 2015 as executive Director. They have confirmed
that they have no disagreement with the Board and nothing
relating to the affairs of the Company needed to be brought to
the attention of the shareholders of the Company.

In accordance with bye-law 85 of the Bye-laws, Mr. CHUNG Cho
Yee, Mico, Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo and Mr. Albert Thomas DA ROSA,
Junior will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company (“AGM”) and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election as Directors. Mr. LEUNG Wing Sum,
Samuel, who was newly appointed by the Board on 1 September
2015, will also retire from office in accordance with bye-law 84
of the Bye-Laws and will offer himself for re-election as Director.

The Company has also received from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The Company considers that all
of them to be independent.

Mr. OEI Tjie Goan, a Non-executive Director and Chairman of the
Company, has voluntarily agreed to waive his annual director’s
fees with effect from 1 January 2010 until further notice to the
Company, and the director’s fee he waived for the year ended
31 December 2015 amounted to HK$100,000.

Directors’ service contracts

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM has a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one
year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).
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Share option schemes

The Company’s existing share option scheme (the “HKC Option
Scheme”) was adopted on 16 June 2006. Particulars of the HKC
Option Scheme are set out below:

(a) Purpose

The principal purposes are to recruit and retain high
caliber Eligible Persons (as defined below) and attract
human resources that are valuable to the Group or
any entity in which any member of the Group holds an
equity interest (“Invested Entity” or “Invested Entities”),
to recognise the significant contributions of the Eligible
Persons to the growth of the Group or Invested Entities
by rewarding them with opportunities to obtain ownership
interest in the Company and to further motivate and
give incentives to these Eligible Persons to continue to
contribute to the long term success and prosperity of the
Group or Invested Entities.

(b) Eligible persons

Any employee (whether full time or part time), senior
executive or officer, manager, director (including
independent non-executive director) or consultant of any
members of the Group or any Invested Entity who, in
the sole discretion of the Board, have contributed or will
contribute to the growth and development of the Group
or any Invested Entity.

(c) Maximum number of shares available for issue
The total number of shares of the Company available for
issue under the HKC Option Scheme is 799,449,183
shares which represent approximately 6.05% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this
Annual Report.
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Share option schemes (continued)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(g)

(h)

Maximum entitlement of each eligible person

The total number of shares of the Company issued and to
be issued upon exercise of options (whether exercised or
outstanding) granted in any 12-month period to:

(i) each Eligible Person must not exceed 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue; and

(ii) a substantial shareholder or an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company must not
exceed 0.1% of the shares of the Company in
issue and not exceed HKS5 million in aggregate
value.

Period within which the shares must be taken up
under an option

An option must be exercised within ten years from the
date on which it is granted or such shorter period as the
Board may specify at the time of grant.

Minimum period, if any, for which an option must
be held

At the time of the grant of an option, the Board must
specify the minimum period(s), if any, for which an option
must be held before it can be exercised.

Period open for acceptance of an option and
amount payable upon acceptance

An offer of the grant of an option shall remain open for
acceptance for a period of ten business days from the
date of offer and a consideration of HKS1.0 must be paid
upon acceptance.

Basis of determining the subscription price of an
option

The exercise price must be at least the higher of (i) the
closing price of the shares as stated in daily quotations
sheet on the Stock Exchange on the date of grant; (ii)
the average closing prices of the shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange's daily quotation sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant;
and (iii) the nominal value of a share.
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Share option schemes (continued) BIRRET & (m)

(i)  Remaining life (i) &RTEFH
The HKC Option Scheme has a life of ten years and will BIEBRLEZBRETS 2K
expire on 16 June 2016 unless otherwise terminated in BRIESITRIE - BRAIBBERER
accordance with the terms of the HKC Option Scheme. BEIFHATE  UHRZZZ

—NEFERATARBRER -

Movements of the share options under the HKC Option Scheme R @ RIS A EZLBRETEIF L 2

during the year are as follows: BREZEFERT -

Directors

£

OEI Kang, Eric Personal 749,757 - - (749,757) - 15 December 2006 15 December 2007 to 1.066
&fll A “I5ETZATRA 14 December 2016

SERLEIZATEAE
—E-5xE+-A4mA

1,249,59% - - (1,249,596) - 15 December 2006 15 December 2008 to 1.066
“EENET-ATEA 14 December 2016
“EZ)\E+-BtRAZ
ZE-~E+ZAtEA

399,870 - - (399,870) - 1 February 2008 1 February 2009 to 1.242
“ZZ\5ZF-H 31 January 2018
“FENE-_F-HZ
“5-\¥-f=1-H

599,806 - - (599,806) - 1 February 2008 1 February 2010 o 1.242
“TZ\EZF-R 31 January 2018
“Z2-TF-/-RE
“E-\§-f=1-H

999,676 - - (999,676) - 1 February 2008 1 February 2011 to 1.242
“FF\FZf-H 31 January 2018
“5-—5-f-H%
“%-\¥-A=1-H

2,000,000 - - {2,000,000) - 15 April 2013 15 April 2014 to 0.269
“5-Z%#NATEA 14 April 2016

“3-RENATRAE
ZI- R ERATEA
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Share options of the company (continued) RKATZBIRESE)
Number of share options
BREHR
Exercise
Outstanding at Outstanding at price
1 January Cancelled/ 31 December per share
Name Nature of interest 2015 Granted  Exercised Lapsed 2015 Date of grant Exercise period (HKS)
RZ%-1% RZE-1f
-B-H tZR=t-H SRR
#4 BHEE HARTE EEE B BHE/BAX HATE REAH s (B7)
3,000,000 - - (3,000,000 - 15 April 2013 15 April 2015 to 0.269
ZT-ZEmATERA 14 April 2017
ZE-RFMATRAZE
“T-tERAHEA
QEI Kang, Eric (continued) ~ Personal (continued) 5,000,000 - - (5,000,000) - 15 April 2013 15 April 2016 to 0.269
(&) EAB) “5-=F@A+EA 14 April 2018
ZZ-7EMATRAZE
ZE-N\EmATRA
Family 749,757 - - (749,757) - 15 December 2006 15 December 2007 to 1.066
ik “E35F+-ATRR 14 December 2016
“TRLET-ATRAE
ZE-~E+ZAtEA
1,249,5% - - (1,249,59) - 15 December 2006 15 December 2008 to 1.066
ZE5AETZATRR 14 December 2016
“EFE\E+-ATRAZ
“5-RETZATEA
399,870 - - (399,870) - 1 February 2008 1 February 2009 to 1.242
“ZZ\5ZF-H 31 January 2018
“ZENFZR-BE
Z2-\F-A=t-A
599,806 - - (599,806) - 1 February 2008 1 February 201010 1.242
“ESN\EZF-H 31 January 2018
“5-ZFf-f-HZ
ZT-\F-A=t-A
999,676 - - (999,676) - 1 February 2008 1 February 2011 to 1.242
ZES\EZf-R 31 January 2018
“5-—%-f-R%
ZE-\f-A=1-A
1,000,000 - - (1,000,000) - 15 April 2013 15 April 2014 to 0.269
“E-ZfmAt+EA 14 April 2016
ZE-REMATRAZ
ZE-~EmATRA
1,500,000 - - (1,500,000) - 15 April 2013 15 April 2015 to 0.269
“E3-=FRAt+HA 14 April 2017

“E-REMATRAZ
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Share options of the company (continued) KA ZBIRE®)
Number of share options
BREHR
Exercise
Outstanding at Outstanding at price
1 January Cancelled/ 31 December per share
Name Nature of interest 2015 Granted  Exercised Lapsed 2015 Date of grant Exercise period (HKS)
RZ%-1% RZE-1f
-B-H tZR=t-H SRR
#4 ELlE HATE EEE B BHE/BAX HATE REAH s (B7)
2,500,000 - - (2,500,000 = 15 April 2013 15 April 2016 to 0.269
ZT-ZEmATERA 14 April 2018
ZE-EmATRAZE
ZI-/\ERA+EA
LEE Shiu Yee, Daniel Personal 1,600,000 - (1,600,000 - - 15 April 2013 15 April 2014 to 0.269
%k EA ZF-Z#mAtEA 14 April 2016
ZZ-MEMATRAZ
ZE-~EmATRA
2,400,000 - (2,400,000) S - 15 April 2013 15 April 2015 to 0.269
“E-Z%¥NATEA 14 April 2017
ZE-14MATRAZ
ZE-+EMATRA
4,000,000 - - (4,000,000 = 15 April 2013 15 April 2016 to 0.269
ZT-ZEmATERA 14 April 2018
ZE-~EmATRAZ
“I-\ERAHEA
WONG Jake Leong, Sammy Personal 6,664,518 - - (6,664,518 - 3 July 2007 15 December 2007 to 1.726
EfER EA “EStELAZR 2 uly 2017
“EPRHET-ATRAZE
ZE-tFLACA
3,332,259 - - (333,259 - 3 July 2007 15 December 2008 to 1.726
“TRHFLASA 2 July 2017
“TF\ET-ATRAZE
S s
3,332,259 - - (333,259 = 3 July 2007 15 December 2009 to 1.726
“ES+ELA=R 2 July 2017
“SINF+-BTRRAZ
ZZ-tELACH
1,332,903 - - (1,332,903 - 1 February 2008 1 February 2009 to 1.242
“Z5\5ZF-H 31 January 2018
“ZENFZR-BR
Z2-\§-A=t-A
1,999,354 - - (1,999,354) - 1 February 2008 1 February 2010t 1.242
“ZEN\F-A-A 31 January 2018
“3-%%£-f4-8%
“T-\5-A=1-H

FRER(EB)ERRAR —B-—HFFR
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Share option schemes (continued) BRESTE (2

Share options of the company (continued) KA ZBIRE®)
Number of share options
BREHR
Exercise
Outstanding at Outstanding at price
1 January Cancelled/ 31 December per share
Name Nature of interest 2015 Granted  Exercised Lapsed 2015 Date of grant Exercise period (HKS)
R-2-1f% R-Z-1%
-B-H tZA=t-A SRR
#e EHlE HARTE BEE B CHE/BAX HATE REaH s (B7)
3,332,259 - - (3,332,299 - 1 February 2008 1 February 2011 to 1.242
“ESN\EZf-R 31 January 2018
“5$-—F-f-R%
ZE-N\f-A=1+-A
WONG Jake Leong, Personal 1,000,000 - (1,000,000 - - 15 April 2013 15 April 2014 to 0.269
Sammy (continued) ~ fEA “3-=F@AtEA 14 April 2016
EER(%) ZE-MEMATRAZ
ZE-~EmATRA
1,500,000 - (1,500,000 - - 15 April 2013 15 April 2015 to 0.269
“5-=%NATEA 14 April 2017

“Z-1fMA+RAZE
“E-+EMATRA

2,500,000 - - (2,500,000) S 15 April 2013 15 April 2016 to 0.269
ZT-CEmATERA 14 April 2018
ZE-5MATRAZ
“T-\ERA+EA
LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel  Personal 1,599,484 - - (1,599,484) - 15 December 2006 15 December 2007 to 1.066
(appointed on A “355F+-AtEA 14 December 2016
1 September 2015 “TRLETCATRAE
pLsa R FtZATRA
(R=3-1%
NA-BEER)
2,665,807 - - (2,665,807) - 15 December 2006 15 December 2008 to 1.066
ZEEAETCATRA 14 December 2016
“ZE\EtZATRRE
ZE-RETZATEA
533,160 - - (533160) - 1 February 2008 1 February 2009 to 1.242
“TZ\5ZF-H 31 January 2018
“ETNE-A-AZ
ZZ-\§-A=t-A
799,741 - s (799,741) - 1 February 2008 1 February 2010t 1242
“ZZ)\5ZA-R 31 January 2018
“5-ZFf”f-HZ
“2-N\E-R=1-H
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Share option schemes (continued) BRETE (s

Share options of the company (continued) KA ZBIRE®)
Number of share options
BREHR
Exercise
Outstanding at Outstanding at price
1 January Cancelled/ 31 December per share
Name Nature of interest 2015 Granted  Exercised Lapsed 2015 Date of grant Exercise period (HKS)
RZ%-1% RZE-Ef
-R-H tZR=t-H SRR
#4 ELlE HATE EEE B BHE/BAX HATE REAH s (B7)
1,332,903 - - (1332903 - 1 February 2008 1 February 2011 to 1.242
“ESN\EZf-R 31 January 2018
“5-—F-f-R%
ZF-\F-A=t-A
CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico  Personal 799,741 - - (799,741) - 1 February 2008 1 February 2009 to 1.4
&3 EA “ESN\EZR-R 31 January 2018
“ZENFZR-BE
Z2-\F-A=t-A
1,199,613 - - (1,199,613) - 1 February 2008 1 February 201010 1.242
“TZ)\EZA-8 31 January 2018
~3-3£-5-B%
ZI-\F-A=t-A
1,999,354 - - (1,999,354) - 1 February 2008 1 February 2011 to 1.242
“FSN\EZf-R 31 January 2018
—5-—F-f-B%
ZF-\F-A=t-A
CHENG Yuk Wo Personal 799,741 - - (799,741) - 1 February 2008 1 February 2009 to 1.4
il EA “ESN\EZR-R 31 January 2018
“ZENFZR-BE
Z2-\§-A=t-A
1,199,613 - - (1,199,613) - 1 February 2008 1 February 201010 1.242
“TZ)\EZA-8 31 January 2018
“3-3£-f-8%
ZI-\F-A=t-A
1,999,354 - - (1,999,354) - 1 February 2008 1 February 2011 to 1.242
ZES\EZf-R 31 January 2018
“5-—F-f-B%
ZF-\F-A=t-A
Albert Thomas DAROSA,  Personal 799,741 - - (799,741) - 1 February 2008 1 February 2009 to 1.4
Junior faA “ZZ\5ZF-H 31 January 2018
Bl “FENE-A-BHZ
Z2-\F-A=t-A
1,199,613 - - (1,199613) - 1 February 2008 1 February 201010 1.242
“ZZ\F-A-R 31 January 2018
“I-3%£-f-8%
ZT-\F-A=t-A
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Share option schemes (continued)

e IE))

Share options of the company (continued) AT ZBIRE =)
Number of share options
BRESR
Exercise
Outstanding at Outstanding at price
1 January Cancelled/ 31 December per share
Name Nature of interest 2015 Granted  Exercised Lapsed 2015 Date of grant Exercise period (HKS)
RZ%-1% RZ%-1%
-R-H t-B=t-H SRITHE
#e EHlE HARTE BRI B CHE/BAX HAITE REaH s (B7)
1,999,354 - - (1,999,354) - 1 February 2008 1 February 2011 to 1.242
“ESN\EZf-R 31 January 2018
“5——%-f-H%
ZE-N\f-A=1+-A
An Ex-Director Personal 799,741 - - (799,741) - 1 February 2008 1 February 2009 to 1.242
—ZHES EA “ETNEZR-R 31 January 2018
“ETNE-A-AZ
ZE-\§-A=t-A
1,199,613 - - (1,199,613) - 1 February 2008 1 February 201010 1.242
“ZZ)\E2R-8 31 January 2018
“5-ZFf-f-HZ
“2-N\f-R=1-H
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Share option schemes (continued)

e I

Share options of the company (continued) EKATZBIRESE
Number of share options
BREHR
Exercise
Outstanding at Outstanding at price
1 January Cancelled/ 31 December per share
Name Nature of interest 2015 Granted  Exercised Lapsed 2015 Date of grant Exercise period (HKS)
R=Z-1f R-Z-1%
-B-H tZA=t+-A SRR
#4 BEEE HATE EEY B CHE/BAX HATE REa® fi:d:] (B7)
1,999,354 - - (1,999,354) - 1 February 2008 1 February 2011 to 1.242
“ZZ/\5ZF-H 31 January 2018
“5--f-f-R%
ZE-N\f-A=1-A
Sub-total 78,916,839 - (6,500,000 (72,416,889 S
INet
Employees and other 3,998,700 - - (3,998,700) - 15 December 2006 15 December 2007 to 1.066
participants “E5ET-ATRA 14 December 2016
EEREMSEAL “IStETCRTRAZE
ZE-RETZATEA
6,997,733 - - (6997,733) - 15 December 2006 15 December 2008 to 1.066
v o il 14 December 2016
“EFE\E+-fATRRAZ
ZE-~ETZATIA
11,662,901 - - (11,662,901) - 15 December 2006 15 December 2009 to 1.066
ZERAETZATRR 14 December 2016
“EENET-ATRAZE
ZE-~E+ZATEA
10,796,504 - - (10,796,504) - 1 February 2008 1 February 2009 o 1.242
“Z3)\F2A-8 31 January 2018
“§ENFZR-HZ
ZE-\F-A=t-A
16,194,761 - - (16,194,761) - 1 February 2008 1 February 2010 to 1.242
“ZZ\52F-H 31 January 2018
“3-35-3-H%
Z2-\§-A=t-A
26,991,283 - - (26,991,283 - 1 February 2008 1 February 2011 to 1.4
“SE/\fZh-H 31 January 2018
“5-—f-f-H%
ZE-\§-A=t-A
4,800,000 (3,800,000 (1,000,000) - 15 April 2013 15 April 2014 to 0.269
“Z-ZERAtRA 14 April 2016

FRER(EB)ERRAR —B-—HFFR
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EEEREE

Share option schemes (continued)

7,200,000 - (5,700,000)  (1,500,000)
12,000,000 - - (12,000,000)
Sub-fotal 100,641,882 - (9,500,000) (91,141,882)
Mt
Total 179,558,771 - (16,000,000) (163,558,771)
e

Save as disclosed above, no share option was granted,
exercised, cancelled nor lapsed during the year ended 31
December 2015 under the HKC Option Scheme.

China Renewable Energy Investment Limited (“CRE"), a
subsidiary of the Company, adopted a share option scheme (the
“CRE Option Scheme”) on 27 May 2008. Particulars of the CRE
Option Scheme are set out below:

(a) Purpose

The principal purposes are to recruit and retain high
caliber Eligible Persons (as defined below) and attract
human resources that are valuable to the CRE Group
or any entity in which any member of the CRE Group
holds an equity interest (“Invested Entity” or “Invested
Entities”), to recognise the significant contributions of
the Eligible Persons to the growth of the CRE Group or
Invested Entities by rewarding them with opportunities to
obtain ownership interest in CRE and to further motivate
and give incentives to these Eligible Persons to continue
to contribute to the long term success and prosperity of
the CRE Group or Invested Entities.

HKC (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2015

BT e
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Report of the Directors

ESEHREE

Share option schemes (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Eligible persons

Any employee (whether full time or part time), senior
executive or officer, manager, director (including
independent non-executive director) or consultant of any
members of the CRE Group or any Invested Entity who,
in the sole discretion of the board of directors of CRE,
have contributed or will contribute to the growth and
development of the CRE Group or any Invested Entity.

Maximum number of shares available for issue

The total number of shares of CRE available for issue
under the CRE Option Scheme is 76,353,475 shares
which represent approximately 3.24% of the issued
share capital of CRE as at the date of this Annual Report.

Maximum entitlement of each eligible person

The total number of shares of CRE issued and to be
issued upon exercise of options (whether exercised or
outstanding) granted in any 12-month period to:

(i) each Eligible Person must not exceed 1% of the
shares of CRE in issue; and

(ii) a substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive director of CRE must not exceed 0.1%
of the shares of CRE in issue and not exceed
HKS5 million in aggregate value.

Period within which the shares must be taken up
under an option

An option must be exercised within 10 years from the
date on which it is granted or such shorter period as
the board of directors of CRE may specify at the time of
grant.

Minimum period, if any, for which an option must
be held

At the time of the grant of an option, the board of
directors of CRE must specify the minimum period(s), if
any, for which an option must be held before it can be
exercised.

BRE 8
(b) &EHAL
PEBERERESEREBIERA

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

ARG HPEBERIRE
BRI EER BRI ERE
HERzTEBLRRERE ME
AIRBRREREERE 2 2Bk
BEE SRITBABHTEA
8 &2 EF(BRBILIFNT
Ex)3ER -

AHBTROZESEE

RIE BB AR RIE AU A 81 ] i
BT CPEBEERRNDARS
76,353,4750% - HHER P EB A
BERN AR F 3 B H 2 B BITRAR A
3.24% °

BEERATZBSRE

REL 2+ @A HM - 17(F
EREBRE(T WD EITER M
RITE)BERATALEHEITES
TEITZHEBLERRRD AR

(i) BRAEERAL  TEBA
PEBEREREETRMD
1% : &

(i) EERRITEHLERSE
MIFMITES  TRBBET
BB AERRE #H1T70.1%
X #185,000,000/ 7T °

REBREAIBRO ZHEH
B ZAN L ARt 105 35
BBLERESS AN LR
A2 BE HAR AT TE o
FEBEREZBREHR(MA)
REBRERLER - DEBLERRE

SR AR REAITEAR A BAE
ZEEHR(IE) -
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EEEHREE

Share option schemes (continued)

(g) Period open for acceptance of an option and
amount payable upon acceptance
An offer of the grant of an option shall remain open for
acceptance for a period of 10 business days from the
date of offer and a consideration of HKS1.0 must be paid
upon acceptance.

(h) Basis of determining the subscription price of an

option

The exercise price must be at least the higher of (i)
the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant;
(ii) the average closing prices of the shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant;
and (iii) the nominal value of a share.

(i) Remaining life
The CRE Option Scheme has a life of 10 years and will
expire on 27 May 2018 unless otherwise terminated in
accordance with the terms of the CRE Option Scheme.

Movements of share options granted under the CRE Option
Scheme during the year are as follows:

Mr. LEUNG Wing Sum,  Personal 1,375,000 - - (1,375,000
Samuel note) A

2EREE (W)

Total 1,375,000 - - (1,375,000

3t

Note: Mr. LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel is a director of CRE, the listed
subsidiary of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, no share option was granted,
exercised, cancelled nor lapsed during the year ended 31
December 2015 under the CRE Option Scheme.
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Report of the Directors

ESEHREE

Directors’ interests in securities EENESF2ES

At 31 December 2015, the interests and short positions of the W—-_ZFE—RF+-_A=+—H  K&=
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares, RARFTTFEBFTHAER AN TS ET
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its  {AJ}RESEE (T &E BB A5 L HE GG ([ F
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SN HIEEHI ) ) EXVEL Z XD ~ HEEIK
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ")) as recorded inthe M NREHFDTEE B R EA5 LB EEM
register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or E 302G EFEME LM Z I AR
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange & : siBiE A D B EL4 2 F 38 B M 4%
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by + & F iR TAZEHITBEISHE
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in {ZXSFR|([ZX.ESTR] )| EHEME RNA
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules adopted by the Company were 5] REE T 7 e A BT ¢

as follows:

OEl Kang, Eric Corporate 8,399,498,497! 63.532%
=l NE]
Joint 201,074,6962 1.521%
[
LEE Shiu Yee, Daniel Personal 180,000 0.001%
TEER f&A
WONG Jake Leong, Sammy Personal 2,500,000* 0.019%
=HER 1&A
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EEEHREE

Directors’

interests in securities (continued)

China Renewable OEl Kang, Eric  Corporate
Energy Investment =M NC]
Limited (“CRE")

FEBERERIEE
BRAR ( [HEH
BEgR] )

Joint
HA]

Notes:

The corporate interest of Mr. OEl Kang, Eric represents
an interest in 4,819,185,212 shares of the Company
held by Creator Holdings Limited (“Creator”) and an
interest in 3,580,313,285 shares of the Company
held by Genesis Capital Group Limited (“Genesis”).
Both Creator and Genesis are wholly owned by Claudio
Holdings Limited (“Claudio”), a company owned as to
50% by Mr. OEIl Kang, Eric and as to the remaining 50%
by his wife, Mrs. OEIl Valonia Lau.

504,134,682 shares out of 4,819,185,212 shares of
HKC held by Creator and 582,980,881 shares out of
3,580,313,285 shares of HKC held by Genesis were
converted from warrants of HKC (warrant code:1403)
(the “HKC Warrants”) during the year. All the HKC
Warrants expired at 4:00 pm on Thursday, 15 October
2015.
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ESEHREE

Directors’ interests in securities (continued) EENEF2ER B

Notes: (continued) ex - (88)

2. The joint interest of Mr. OEI Kang, Eric represents an 2. EMAEEZ KFEFERIEHRKE
interest in 201,074,696 shares of the Company jointly EEZFRERTHRAFEEZ
held with his wife, Mrs. OEI Valonia Lau (47,784,950 201,074,696 IR A< 1 A1 % 17 2 #
shares out of which were converted from the HKC %5 (E R 47,784,950 A% A% 19 T3
Warrants during the year). RAFEAESREFBERR

fEHERE) -

3. The personal interest of Mr. LEE Shiu Yee, Daniel 3. TERLEEZEAAETIE
represents an interest in 180,000 shares of the 180,000 & & » &) f% 15 # =
Company (4,000,000 shares were acquired through (4,000,0000% i% 17 i B AR F
exercise of share options under the HKC Option Scheme BERITEE B ERERETE
and were fully sold during the year). E;)Z%Hﬁ%?% I =R

4, The personal interest of Mr. WONG Jake Leong, Sammy 4, HHERLAE ZE ANEZE
represents an interest in 2,500,000 shares of the 2,500,000 & & =~ 7 I 15 # =
Company (all of which were acquired through exercise (BEHBEBRNAFERNITESR
of share options under the HKC Option Scheme during BERERETEETNZER
the year). BIES) ©

5. Since as at 31 December 2015, the Company was held 5. ERR_ZFE—HF+ A
as to approximately 63.53% by Claudio (via its wholly- =+—8 ' A&A2F AClaudio$#
owned subsidiaries, Creator and Genesis), a company BH63.53%(FERBEZEMEB
owned as to 50% by Mr. OEl Kang, Eric and as to ~aalEKEZ|) - mClaudio
the remaining 50% by his wife, Mrs. OEl Valonia Lau, AR EMEEF BN ED
Mr. OEl Kang, Eric is deemed to be interested in the TH50% %z AR 2 Z F2
same parcel of shares of CRE in which the Company is ZEEHE  BWERLEEER
interested. The corporate interest of Mr. OEl Kang, Eric RE—H AR EEERZ
represents (i) an interest in 1,275,540,924 shares held BEGERRKRMD T ESE
by the Company in CRE; (i) an interest in 276,065,897 =B AN g ()]
shares of CRE held by Genesis; and {iii) an interest in N BEREIRTEEE

(=]
N

V)N <
150,918,990 shares of CRE held by Creator. 275,540,924R% B in#Ezs ¢ (i)

= £l B 35 5 276,065,897 i% 1
BAgeRlkmEzs o &gl
FT#E 4 150,918,990 i% =
EReRR DR -

IS
af

JH i D D BB S SR
o
‘D_H
S

6. The joint interest of Mr. OEl Kang, Eric represents an 6. FHIAEEZ LRERIERRKE
interest in 26,899,439 shares of CRE jointly held with WeETESLTHRFKAL
his wife, Mrs. OEI Valonia Lau. 26,899,4390% /1 B 5 £ BE R A%

52 HE S -

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the [& F X BT EE VN + RANFE XN (T[] B
company, its subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries, its parent [ XA F) - EME AT - AEHE A
company or its other associated corporations a party to any @] « A& sk AREE A BB 5T
arrangement to enable the directors and chief executives of the A ZHHF AN ES L TFTETHAE
company (including their spouse and children under 18 years (BEKELAYEEXISUTFL)R
of age) to hold any interests or short positions in the shares AR ARIskEFFLE X EMBR EER 2
or underlying shares in, or debentures of, the company or its &% ¥R D sk B &P A T A s
specified undertakings or other associated corporation. SORE o
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EEEHREE

Directors’ right to acquire shares or
debentures

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
that enabled the Directors or any of their spouses or children
under the age of 18 to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

Directors’ interests in competing businesses
Mr. OEI Tjie Goan is the chairman and a director of PT. Sinar
Mas, a company together with its subsidiaries, associates,
including Asia Pulp & Paper Company, Ltd., and its holding
companies (if any) (the “Sinar Mas Group”) are engaged in,
among other things, general trading and property development
and investment. Save as disclosed above, Mr. OEl Tjie Goan is
not interested in any business which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the
Group. Mr. OEl Kang, Eric, a member of the Oei Family and the
son of Mr. OEI Tjie Goan, does not hold any directorship in the
Sinar Mas Group. Having considered that the Company itself has
its own management supervising the daily operation and making
financial and business decisions, the Company can operate its
business independently from the Sinar Mas Group.

Mr. OEl Kang, Eric, Mr. LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel and Mr.
WONG Jake Leong, Sammy are executive directors of CRE
whose principal business activities are alternative energy
business.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or their
respective associate(s) was interested in any business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the business of the Group during the year.
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EEEREE

Directors’ and controlling shareholders’
Interests in contracts of significance

Save as disclosed under the sections “Connected Transactions”
and “Continuing Connected Transactions” in this Report of
Directors and “Related Party Transactions” in note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements, no contract of significance
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and
in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

Substantial shareholders’ interests in
securities

At 31 December 2015, the following persons (other than a
Director or chief executive of the Company) had interests or
short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 336 of the SFO:

OEl Valonia Lau Corporate
= NS
Joint
H[F

Beneficial owner
BEmlEA A

Claudio Holdings Limited

Beneficial owner
EmfEAA

Creator Holdings Limited
BlEESEER AR

Beneficial owner
BEmEA A

Genesis Capital Group Limited
ERIEEBRAF

BERERRRREXSH 2
m

BAEEEREEL [HERXS IR [FHE
ER S | B RRAMBHRRMEITZ
(BB TR B I REEN  RFERKEF
PRI ] - K2 =] 3 B AT (] Y BB 2 A
VEITVEMEFEREXRERRETEX
BEZBRAEK -

TERRNE S 2 Em

R-E—HF+_A=+—8H ' UTA
FT(ARRBEEFHEZTHABERIIN) R
KpalzBhRBEERDTPHEEBER
REBEE LB EEOIEIB6IEREFENE
Rtz EESAE -

8,399,498,497! 63.532%

201,074,696 1.521%
8,399,498,4973 63.532%
4,819,185,212¢ 36.451%
3,580,313,285° 27.081%
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Substantial shareholders’ interests in securities
(continued)

Notes:

1. The corporate interest of Mrs. OEl Valonia Lau represents
an interest in 4,819,185,212 shares of the Company held
by Creator and an interest in 3,580,313,285 shares of the
Company held by Genesis.

2. The joint interest of Mrs. OEl Valonia Lau represents an interest
in 201,074,696 shares of the Company jointly held with her
husband, Mr. OEl Kang, Eric.

3. The beneficial interest of Claudio includes an interest in
4,819,185,212 shares of the Company held by Creator and
an interest in 3,580,313,285 shares of the Company held
by Genesis. Mr. OEl Kang, Eric and Mrs. OEl Valonia Lau are
directors of Claudio.

4. The beneficial interest of Creator includes an interest in
4,819,185,212 shares of the Company. Mr. OEl Kang, Eric and
Mrs. OEI Valonia Lau are directors of Creator.

5 The beneficial interest of Genesis includes an interest in
3,580,313,285 shares of the Company. Mr. OEl Kang, Eric and
Mrs. OEl Valonia Lau are directors of Genesis.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, the
Company had not been notified by any person, other than
Directors and chief executive of the Company, who had interests
or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company which are required to be recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 336 of Part XV of the SFO.

Related party transactions

The Company and its subsidiaries entered into certain
transactions in the ordinary course of business and on normal
commercial terms which were “Related Parties Transactions”,
the details of which are set out in note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements. Some of these transactions also constitute
“Continuing Connected Transactions” under the Listing Rules as
summarized below.
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Continuing connected transactions
Details of the continuing connected transactions entered into by
the Group during the year are set out below:

The Company has provided, by itself directly or its
wholly-owned subsidiary indirectly, guarantees in
respect of project loan facilities granted by banks to
the relevant project companies, which are subsidiaries
of CRE (the “Guarantees”). CRE is a subsidiary of the
Company and Mr. OEl Kang, Eric (Executive Director
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company) and his
associates held approximately 19.26% direct interest
in CRE as at 31 December 2015. The provision of the
Guarantees is subject to reporting, annual review and
disclosure requirement under Rule 14A.60 of the Listing
Rules. Details of the Guarantees were disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 30 September
2011.
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Continuing connected transactions (continued) FEBEERS (&)
The salient particulars of the Guarantees are set out ERZEBEFHBEINWT -
below:
(1)  Date . 28 August 2006
A &1 ZETERFENAZTNH
Project company MR S EE (AT ) B R A A (Asia Wind Power (Mudanjiang)
(borrower) Company L|m|ted), which is currently a non-wholly owned subsidiary of
HEBRAE (BF) CRE. L \ )
Jllﬂjj *‘%(flﬁiﬁxl)ﬁﬁﬁ Al BRIRPEBLERRZIEEZE
IKﬁ YN
Amount secured . The Guarantee provided for this project company was given in favour of the
EReHE bank to secure repayment of all monies due from the operating company to

the lending bank under the loan facility, including the principals, interests

accrued and other losses, damages and monies payable under the loan

facility.

mtEE A Tﬁﬁ{’ﬁﬁjzjﬂfﬂ%ﬁwﬁﬁt& A BREEENR

é{IET{ﬁ,?ﬁEhJTﬁH& LENRIZFIBENE  BREEFRMEBTAR
FEEHFI B R LA B8 - 185k R B EKE o

The loan in the sum of RMB200 million (approximately HK$236 million)
was originally granted and utilized. The loan was a term loan and carried
interest at such annual rate as agreed with lending bank, determined
by reference to PBOC Benchmark Rate for loans of the same grade and
tenure. The interest rate will be adjusted annually on each anniversary of
the related advancement (and, in relation to an extended term agreed by
lending bank, on each anniversary of the date falling immediately after the
original maturity date) based on the PBOC Benchmark Rate then in effect
as prescribed in the facility agreement.

RERERERz ERXERE B AR 200,000,000 7T ( 4
236,000,000 7T) - EXRATEHER - ZHEE miﬁfﬁﬂ%mzﬁfﬂ
FERRHS  WREREAARBIRAASZRRED &2 Zﬁ
RFREE - ﬁéﬁﬁz’mﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ MEFRBEPEHARRITER
EREERNE  RERBRR2E—FAFER (Iﬁdﬂ{ﬁ,kfﬁfﬂéz’;m
ZEREE  BRERIIMAAR2EAFER)IRFRAE -

As at 31 December 2015, the total outstanding principal was RMB90
million (approximately HK$S106 million); and the extent of the Guarantee
was for the same amount.

RZE—RAFT+ZA=1T—H REEXEREAARK
90,000,00075(Z’7106,OOO,OOO/%7E)  EREBINVERR -

Repayment and . The loan is repayable by installments scheduled over the term of the loan
maturity dates of as provided in the facility agreement, with the final maturity date falling on
loan facility 30 August 2021.

EXmEZERR EREWmEAT  EXRERHASHERSRE  SZIABR-ZF
2R :—i)\ﬁ_‘f—lﬂ °
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Continuing connected transactions (continued) FEBEAERXS (®)
(2)  Date : 3 March 2006
H Hf :TT/\i H=H
Project company cBER NEBE(BE) B R A A (Hong Kong Wind Power (Muling)
(borrower) Company Limited), which is currently a non-wholly owned subsidiary of

HERAR (EF) CRE. o . )
BEERNEE(BR)ERAR  BRIRTEBARRZIEZEMN
BT -

Amount secured . The Guarantee provided for this project company was given in favour of the

BEREEE bank to secure repayment of all monies due from the operating company to

the bank under the loan facility, including the principals, interests accrued
and losses, damages and other monies payable under the loan facility.
mMUtIEE A TFM’E&ZW%EMET?BX s A BREEERE
,éiIETfEfﬂ“Hﬁz SENRIZABENE  EREXBEETLASE
FEETFE REBE - BRREMENKEE -

The loan in the sum of RMB200 million (approximately HK$S236 million)
was originally granted and utilized. The loan was a term loan and carried
interest, settled quarterly, at such annual rate as agreed with lending
bank, determined by reference to PBOC Benchmark Rate for loans of the
same grade and tenure. The interest rate will be adjusted annually on
each anniversary of the date of related advancement (and, in relation to
an extended term agreed by lending bank, on each anniversary of the date
falling immediately after the original maturity date) based on the PBOC
Benchmark Rate then in effect, as prescribed in the facility agreement.

RERERFERAZEFEE R AR 200,000,000 7T (4
236,000,000/ 7T) ° %HX%EH B REGRBRITHELEH
FREFBWIRFEERE  K2EFEARBIRBRERLFH
TEHCEEREET o RBE BB H - FEEREDEA
Efﬁﬂaﬁﬁﬁixﬁlzgﬁﬂz NEBBR G- RFER (X

FERTTHE 2 R EAME - B8 BEE

%6‘(0

ED\

As at 31 December 2015, the total outstanding principal was RMB90
million (approximately HK$106 million); and the extent of the Guarantee
was for the same amount.

RZE—RAF+ZA=1T—H REELXTREREARK
90,000,0005T(#7106,000,0007T) @ EREREIMEHER ©

Repayment and . The loan is repayable by installments scheduled over the term of the loan
maturity dates of as provided in the facility agreement over the term of the loan, with the
loan facility final maturity date falling on 27 February 2021.

EXmEZERK REXBHANERBERRRT  ERRERPARADHHEE - KED
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Continuing connected transactions (continued) ZIERAERLS (8)

(3) Date
A &f

Project company
(borrower)
HERAR (EF)

Amount secured
EREE

Repayment and
maturity dates of
loan facility

ERmE 2 ERK
LS
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: 22 December 2008

—EE\FT-A=+=A

C PBEFEER M F T HER BE B PR A F(Hong Kong New Energy Si Zi Wang

Qi Wind Power Ltd.), which is currently a wholly-owned subsidiary of CRE.
BEMERMNFEEREERAR  BRIATRBAERRZEE
HEBAR -

. The Guarantee provided for this project company was given in favour of the

bank to secure repayment of all monies due from the operating company to
the bank under the loan facility, including the principals, interests accrued
and other losses, damages and monies payable under the loan facility.
MEE QARIPMEH ZERIDABITAZ A - BREEE N
BIETMRITEKREERARIZFIAENE  EREEXBREETASE
FERTFIE R EAMEE - 1BRRIENKEE -

The loan in the sum of RMB300 million (approximately HK$354 million)
was originally granted and utilized. The loan was a term loan and carried
interest at such annual rate as agreed with lending bank, determined
by reference to PBOC Benchmark Rate for loans of the same grade and
tenure. The interest rate will be adjusted annually on each anniversary of
the date of related advancement based on the PBOC Benchmark Rate then
in effect, as prescribed in the facility agreement.
RERERFERAZERBE R AR 300,000,000 7T (4
354,000,000 7) - ERAEHER @ REEFRITHE LB M
FNEHE  K2EZEFEARRITRARSEARFHZER CE
ENNEEF - BERMEBZEMIA - MEXFRBPEARRITER
Bz BEERE  REARR 2T —AFERRFHAE -

As at 31 December 2015, the total outstanding principal was RMB150
million (approximately HKS177 million); and the extent of the Guarantee
was for the same amount.

RZE—RAF+_A=Z=+—H REELXLBEAEARK
150,000,0007t(#9177,000,000/7T) « EREREINEAER ©

. The loan is repayable by installments scheduled over the term of the loan

as provided in the facility agreement over the term of the loan, with the
final maturity date falling on 22 December 2021.
NEFHANIZRENZAT  EXRERAASHER &
HAAR-_ZT_—F+_-_HA=-+=H-
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Continuing connected transactions (continued)

Opinion from the Independent Non-executive
Directors on the continuing connected transactions
The Independent Non-executive Directors of the
Company were given sufficient information to discharge
their duties in monitoring the continuing connected
transactions described above (“Continuing Connected
Transactions”). The Independent Non-executive Directors
of the Company had assessed that the Continuing
Connected Transactions were conducted in accordance
with the terms of the relevant agreements governing
the Continuing Connected Transactions and on normal
commercial terms. The internal control systems and
procedures of the Company had provided an internal
audit function to ensure that the Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company had sufficient
information to properly review the Continuing Connected
Transactions.

In accordance with rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the
Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company
have reviewed and approved the Continuing Connected
Transactions and confirmed that the Continuing
Connected Transactions were carried out in accordance
with the following principles:

(a) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

(b) on normal commercial terms no less favourable
than terms available to (or from) independent third
parties;

(c) in accordance with the terms of the relevant
agreements governing the Continuing Connected
Transactions; and

(d) on a fair and reasonable basis and in the interest
of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.
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Continuing connected transactions (continued)

Report from the auditor on the continuing
connected transactions

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on
the Group’s continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The auditor has issued his unqualified letter containing
his findings and conclusions in respect of the
abovementioned continuing connected transactions
disclosed by the Group in accordance with the Main
Board Listing Rule 14A.56. A copy of the auditor’s
letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.

Use of proceeds from exercise of bonus
warrants

On 16 October 2014, the Company issued 2,248,377,085
units of warrants (Warrant Code: 1403) on the basis of 1
warrant for every 5 existing shares of the Company held by the
shareholders of the Company (“Bonus Warrants”). Each Bonus
Warrant entitles its holder to subscribe for one new ordinary
share of HKS0.01 each (“new Shares”) at a subscription price
of HKS0.17 (subject to adjustment) at any time during 16
October 2014 to 15 October 2015. Details of issuance of Bonus
Warrants were disclosed in the announcement dated 26 August
2014 (the “Announcement”) and the circular in relation thereof
dated 23 September 2014.
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Use of proceeds from exercise of bonus
warrants (continued)

From the date of issue of Bonus Warrants to 31 December
2015, 1,962,970,738 new Shares were issued upon the
exercise of 1,962,970,738 units of Bonus Warrants at
a subscription price of HKS0.17 per share. Among the
1,962,970,738 new Shares, 1,487,842,255 new Shares were
issued upon the exercise of 1,487,842,255 units of Bonus
Warrants by Mr. OEl Kang, Eric and his associates. 30,000 new
Shares were issued upon the exercise of 30,000 units of Bonus
Warrants by an executive director of the Company, Mr. LEE
Shiu Yee, Daniel, and 475,098,483 new Shares were issued
upon the exercise of 475,098,483 units of Bonus Warrants
by the public shareholders. The listing of the Bonus Warrants
had been withdrawn from the Stock Exchange after 4:00 p.m.
on Thursday, 15 October 2015 and there were 285,406,347
units of Bonus Warrants remained outstanding (represents
12.69% from the total issued warrants). Details of the expiry and
withdrawal of the listing of Bonus Warrants were disclosed in
the announcement dated 15 September 2015 and the circular in
relation thereof dated 18 September 2015.

As disclosed in the Announcement, the Company intended to
apply the net proceeds raised from issuance of new Shares
upon conversion of Bonus Warrants to finance the future
business development and general working capital of the Group.
As at 31 December 2015, the accumulated net proceeds of
approximately HK$333.7 million raised from issuance of new
Shares upon conversion of Bonus Warrants have been used for
financing the Group’s property development and investment
projects in the PRC in accordance with the intended uses as
described in the Announcement.

Management contract

Apart from those disclosed under the heading “Related
Party Transactions” in note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements, no contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed during the
year.
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Major customers and suppliers
the percentages of the Group’s purchases and sales for the year
attributable to its major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases

The largest supplier 20.9%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate 35.1%
Sales

The largest customer 7.3%
Five largest customers in aggregate 14.4%

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, any of
their associates, or shareholders of the Company (which to
the knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in the Group’s
five largest suppliers or customers noted above.

Purchase, sale or redemption of the company'’s
listed securities

During the year ended 31 December 2015, neither the Company
nor its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.

Mandatory general offers

On 22 January 2015, Creator Holdings Limited (“Creator”),
which is owned by Mr. OEl Kang, Eric and his spouse, and
Promontoria Holding XXI B.V. and Cerberus International, Ltd.
had entered into the conditional sale and purchase agreement
which Creator purchased from Promontoria Holding XXI B.V.
and Cerberus International, Ltd. approximately 13.7% of the
total issued shares and 16.8% of the total issued warrants of
the Company at HKS$0.25 per share and HKS0.08 per warrant.
The acquisition was completed on 29 January 2015. In addition,
Creator, through a subsequent required mandatory general
offers, purchased from the public an additional 5.9% of the
entire issued share capital and an additional 6.2% of the existing
total number of warrants of the Company. As at 31 December
2015, Creator and parties acting in concert with it, own 65.05%
of the entire issued share capital of the Company.
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Corporate governance
The Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in
the Corporate Governance Report on pages 23 to 47.

Model code for securities transactions by
directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of
conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Specified
employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished
inside information of the Group are also subject to compliance
with guidelines on no less exacting terms than the Model Code.
A Code for Securities Dealings by Employees has also been
adopted in this regard.

Retirement benefits schemes
Information on the Group's retirement benefits schemes is set
out in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

Sufficiency of public float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the
date of this report, there is sufficient public float of more than
25% of the Company’s issued shares as required under the
Listing Rules.

Review of the audited financial statements by
audit committee

The audit committee of the Company comprises three
independent non-executive directors with written terms of
reference in accordance with the requirements of the Listing
Rules, and reports to the Board. The audit committee has
reviewed the audited consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2015.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements for the year have been
audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for reappointment. A resolution for
the reappointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of the
Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

Permitted Indemnity Provisions

Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company, every Director and
other officers of the Company shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from
and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which he/she may incur or sustain in or about the
execution of the duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation
thereto, provided that the indemnity shall not extend to any
matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach to
any of said persons.
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The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to
indemnify the Group's Directors for their liabilities arising out of
corporate activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed on an
annual basis.

Update on directors’ information

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, changes in the
information of the Directors since the date of the 2015 Interim
Report are set out below:

Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo
(Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. CHENG was appointed as an independent non-executive
director, the chairman of the audit committee and a member of
the nomination committee and the remuneration committee of
DTXS Silk Road Investment Holdings Company Limited (formerly
known as “UDL Holdings Limited”) with effect from 2 November
2015.

Mr. CHENG resigned as an independent non-executive director,
the chairman of audit committee and a member of the
nomination committee, the remuneration committee and the
special committee of Imagi International Holdings Limited with
effect from 28 January 2016.

Mr. LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel
(Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. LEUNG was appointed as the executive director of the
Company with effect from 1 September 2015 and was
appointed as the chief financial officer of the Company with
effect from 26 October 2015.

Mr. CHAN Kwok Fong, Joseph
(Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. CHAN resigned as the executive director of the Company
with effect from 1 September 2015, resigned as the chief
financial officer of the Company with effect from 26 October
2015.

On behalf of the Board

HKC (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

OEIl Kang, Eric

Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 22 March 2016

HKC (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2015

ARACLZHEEEERR - UBEXR
SEHEERCXREBELZAEE - AR
ABFRa R EE -

EEENERH

RiE EHRAELISIBIE - EFER
BARBI —_ZE-AFREFHMXERSAH
HADASRE BB SN T

RN o
(B LIHBTTEE)

BEEB-_T—AF+—A_BEEZR
ERARBEAM AR EZEBARQE (A
BIATEBEBRAR ] BIIFERNTE
= ERZBEIR  RBZBERF
MEZBeKE -

B T —"F—AZT+ N\BEH
TESHBERERARIBYIERNITE
= BERZZESIR  ERZEQ ¥
MEEeRFHEZEEZKE °

REHKE
(RITEFREEHMHE)

RELB-_ZE-—RAFNA—HEEZRE
REARBATEE YA _ZT—HFT+
AZ+RAREZERARAEFEHH
T o

BREQFS &£
(RITEFREEHMHE)

REEB _ZE-—RAFNA—BHEBEER
NERTEE - YB _T-HFTH
“HARARBERLFEREVEE -

RREES
BEER(ER)ARAT
=
HTTEFRTTIARE,

T8 —T-RF=RAZ+=H



Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZEEN RS

=
pwc

Independent auditor’s report

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF HKC (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of HKC
(Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries set out
on pages 81 to 223, which comprise the consolidated balance
sheet as at 31 December 2015, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section
90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B XA RS

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Company
and its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2015, and of their
financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 22 March 2016
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Consolidated Income Statement
mEBRmK

For the year ended 31 December 2015

BE-T- RE+-A=+—RAILER

Revenue U 2=
Cost of sales SHEE AN
Gross profit EA
Other income H At g A
Fair value adjustments on BB
investment properties NEEHAE
Provision for impairment losses BERE
on assets Eria R
Selling and distribution costs SHEE R SHAC AR
Administrative expenses THEHA
Other and general expenses Hihk—REA
Operating (loss)/profit g (BR) RR
Finance income BN
Finance costs BbE A A
Finance costs — net B E R A FER
Share of profits less losses of FE(L & R A

associated companies s ARUE 1R
Share of profits less losses of JEIEE &R T]
joint ventures e ) Rk 5 18

(Loss)/profit before income tax FrigHiAT (&518), %R

Income tax expense FriS s

(Loss)/profit for the year KEE(FBR) EF

Attributable to: AT FEML -

Equity holders of the Company RARERFEEA

Non-controlling interests e i

Loss per share for loss AT EEIEEAERN
attributable to equity holders BiEz8RES
of the Company, expressed in  BLEKBLFIR
HK cents per share

Basic BN

Diluted e

2015

—ZE-AfF

Note HKS$ Million
i = BEEBT

5 1,273.4
(859.7)

413.7
6 176.4

5 (469.8)

7 (135.6)
(47.2)

(198.2)

(60.9)

(321.6)
32.5
(150.3)

(117.8)

O O O

21 96.4

22 (228.3)

(571.3)
12 (8.8)

(580.1)

(497.7)
(82.4)

(580.1)

13
(4.0)

(4.1)

2014
T
HKS Million

BEBT

881.2

(563.2)

318.0
120.3

351.5

(223.4)
(44.4)
(183.7)
(72.0)

266.3
48.8
(151.6)

(102.8)

65.4

(10.9)

218.0
(168.7)

49.3
(87.2)

136.5
49.3

81
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mEEMHER
For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE =Skt = =—E 5 E

(Loss)/profit for the year

Other comprehensive (loss)/income
Items reclassifiable to profit or loss
Translation of financial statements of
foreign operations
— Currency translation differences
— Currency translation differences
reclassified to profit or loss upon
liquidation and disposal
Investments available for sale
— Gain in fair value

Items not reclassifiable to profit or loss

Gain on property revaluation

Other comprehensive loss for
the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive loss for the year

Total comprehensive (loss)/income
attributable to:

Equity holders of the Company

Non-controlling interests

HKC (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2015

AEE(BR), BT
Hitt2E(BE), WA
REEHOEERBNIEE
BEBINET I RE

- ERRE =
- RNEERTER
B EERBERZ
fEHRE =5
AfEHERE
— D EUE
rTEENPEERFNEHR
el
AEEHMEEES
MBRHE
AEELEEEHAHE
LT EE2E(ER),
N -t
RATE=FAA
FEFE AR A S

2015
—ZE-AfF
HKS$ Million
BEBT

(580.1)

(857.0)

0.6

(856.4)
(1,436.5)

(1,229.2)
(207.3)

(1,436.5)

2014
—T—mEF
HKS Million

BEET

49.3

(351.1)

(26.3)
2.1

11.7

(363.6)
(314.3)

(396.1)
81.8

(314.3)



Consolidated Balance Sheet

REBEERER

As at 31 December 2015
INE=ER—SabE = B Sqr—E

ASSETS BE
Non-current assets EREBEE
Investment properties REYE
Prepaid land lease payments TEN LA E R

YE I Y S
— Htp¥x - B MR

Property, plant and equipment
— Other property, plant and
equipment

— Construction in progress —EETRE
Intangible assets | EE
Properties under development BEERPME

NN 5o
RAEZLERFZ R

Interests in associated companies
Interests in joint ventures

Available-for-sale financial assets AHHECRERE
Prepayments and other receivables F&15t 5k K2 £ 1 JiE U 3¢
Total non-current assets FRBEEATE
Current assets REBEE

Properties under development BEERAME
Inventories FE

Properties held for sale 1ESHERE 2 W%

Financial assets at fair value through & AFEEEZKIEZ

profit or loss EREE
Trade and other receivables i LAt BR R % EL th 8 U SR
Restricted cash ZRHIIRE
Short-term bank deposits REHRIRIT IR
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEeEEY
Total current assets REEEHALE
Total assets EEHBE

Note
P 5E

15
16

17
17
18
19
21
22
23
27

19
25
26
27
28

29

31 December
2015
—E-HF
+=BA=+—8H
HKS$ Million
BEET

8,229.7
1,563.2

1,138.1
1.1
1,098.3
489.1
1,189.9
1,892.1
24.9
97.1

15,723.5

950.7
5.9
2,809.9

13.4
176.2
614.5

4.3
974.2

5,549.1
21,272.6

31 December
2014
—E—OF
+=-—A=+—8H
HKS Million
BEBT

8,044.1
1,720.8

1,282.8
0.5
1,183.7
644.8
1,223.3
2,225.0
26.8
258.2

16,610.0

1,554.7
6.1
2,240.9

14.2
229.8
765.0

1,102.8
5,913.5
22,523.5
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

mEBEERER

As at 31 December 2015
RZFE—AHF+=-A=+—H

EQUITY

Capital and reserves attributable
to equity holders of the
Company

Share capital

Reserves

Equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company

Non-controlling interests
Total equity

LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities
Borrowings

Other non-current payables
Deferred income tax liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables

Borrowings
Current income tax liabilities
Total current liabilities
Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities
Net current assets
Total assets less current
liabilities
OEIl Kang, Eric
LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel
Directors

84
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Note
P 5E

30
31

32

34

33
32

31 December
2015
—E-HE
+=BA=+—8H
HKS$ Million
BEBT

132.2
11,628.1

11,760.3
2,081.4

13,841.7

3,011.4

1,037.9
4,049.3

2,072.6
1,119.4
189.6

3,381.6
7,430.9
21,272.6
2,167.5

17,891.0

31 December
2014
—E—OF
+=—A=+—H
HKS Million
BEBTT

116.0
12,587.4

12,703.4
2,392.8

15,096.2

2,968.4
13.7
1,198.3

4,180.4

1,854.0
1,211.0
181.9

3,246.9
7,427.3
22,5235
2,666.6

19,276.6



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

mERBEBER

For the year ended 31 December 2015

BE—F-—Af+-A=t+—HILFE

Balance at 1 January 2014

Comprehensive (loss)/income
(Loss)/profit for the year
Other comprehensive (loss)/income
Translation of financial statements of foreign
operations
- Currency translation differences
- Currency translation differences
reclassified to profit or loss upon
liquidation and disposal
Investments available for sale
- Gain in fair value gain
(Gain on property revaluation

Total comprehensive (loss)/income for
the year

Transaction with owners

Exercise of bonus warrants

Employee share option benefits

Release of reserve upon cancelled/
lapse of share options

Total transactions with owners
Balance at 31 December 2014
Balance at 1 January 2015

Comprehensive loss
Loss for the year
Other comprehensive loss
Translation of financial statements of foreign
operations
- Currency translation differences
Investments available for sale
- Gain in fair value gain

Total comprehensive loss for the year

Transactions with owners

Exercise of bonus warrants

Exercise of share options

Employee share option benefits

Release of reserve upon cancelled/
lapse of share options

Buy-back of convertible preference shares
issued by a subsidiary

Total transactions with owners
Balance at 31 December 2015

R-Z-MmE-F-R&H
2E(FR) /WA
REE(B8R)/ 65
Hit2E(BE) /KA
REBNEBUHRR

ExuEzE
~RBRRHELEFSE
SE%ERREEE

THLERE
-0 ¥k

NEENE

AEERE(ER)/ RALE

BREAZRS

TEAT AR
EEBIRERMN
BREL S/ AAERLEE

BREAZRBHE
RIE-MEFZA=+-HEH
R-E-RE-fF-H&H
2EEER

REEEE

Hit2EFE
BERNERIBRR

~ENREEE
THLERE

~ DTk
AEEREEALE

BRAEANZRS

IERA AR EE

IfembE

EEBRERN

BIRETH KNS
BLFER

5 i — A B 2 AR ATR AR
BB

BREAZRARE

R-E-REFZA=+-HEH

Note
Bzt

3l

3l

31
3l

30,31
31

3l

3l

3l

30,31
3l
3l
3l

31

Attributable

to equity
holders of the
Company
UG
BREE AR
HKS Million
BEET

13,036.7

(87.2)

(296.4)

(26.3)

2.1
117

(396.1)

60.2
1.2

1.4
62.8

12,703.4
12,703.4

(497.7)

(732.1)

0.6
(1,229.2)

273.5
4.3
1.0

0.5

6.8
286.1
11,760.3

BREREBOERLDR —B—AFFH

Non-
controlling
interests

E2dly
HKS Million
BE#T

2,312.4

136.5

(54.7)

(1.4)
(1.4)
2,392.8
2,392.8

(82.4)

(124.9)

(207.3)

(0.5)

(103.6)
(104.1)
2,081.4

Total
equity

EResE
HKS Million
BE#T

15,349.1

49.3

(351.1)

(26.3)

2.1
11.7

(314.3)

60.2
1.2

61.4
15,09.2
15,096.2

(580.1)

(857.0)

0.6
(1,436.5)

273.5
4.3
1.0

(96.8)
182.0
13,841.7
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

= N~ =}
. \éiﬁglﬁii
For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE =Skt = =—E 5 E

Cash flows from operating
activities

Cash generated from/(used in)
operations

Income tax paid, net

Net cash generated from/(used in)
operating activities

Cash flows from investing
activities

Interest received

Dividend received

Development costs paid for
investment properties under
development

Additions to prepayment for property,
plant and equipment and investment
properties under development

Purchase of property, plant and
equipment

Proceeds from the disposal of
- Prepaid land lease payments and

property, plant and equipment

— Available for sale financial assets
- An associated company

Increase in advances to a joint venture

Increase in short term bank deposits

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing
activities

Proceeds from exercise of
share options

Proceeds from exercise of
bonus warrants

Repayment of bank borrowings
and other loans

Decrease in restricted cash

Increase in bank borrowings and
other loans

Repurchase of convertible preference
shares issued by a subsidiary

Interest paid

Net cash generated from financing
activities

Net decrease in cash
and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
1 January

Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes

Cash and cash equivalents at
31 December

REXBMEZRTRE

BEETBFIE/
(FR)AS
EAEBIEE
BEEBFE,/
(FTR) B 54
REAZDRETE

EURFLE

B

ENERFRANEY
HEMA

W - a0 AR
BRPBREMEN
BIMEN BRI

%%%%*%%&

ax
PG 3OR
— BN HEERAR
WE  BERDE
- e S RAE
— —RBEAR
B —RA AR
S H4R T A A D
REFDFAAS S
BAZDRETE

TERBRE 2 TS50

FEARIRBEE
Fia A \
EERTER R ER

SRHIBHD
SRATE SR AL B D
BE—RHEA TR
B %R

ERFE
REEDHERERE

RERRSEENRD FHE

R—A—BZBEE&R
BeZEEY
EEEH o TE
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2015

—EB-hF

Note HKS Million
BitsE BEAT

38 582.5
(83.6)

498.9

22.0
49.3

(753.4)

(123.3)
(41.2)

95.
1

1 Lo

(4.3)
(753.6)

4.3
273.5

(1,185.4)
107.4

1,354.8

(96.8)
(253.5)

204.3

(50.4)
1,102.8
(78.2)

974.2

2014
—T—NF
HKS Million

BEBT

(4.6)
(58.3)

(62.9)

32.5
93.9

(982.9)

(62.5)
(121.8)

I Owo R

SO

(1,010.7)

60.2

(477.9)
299.0

1,219.4

(241.3)
859.4

(214.2)
1,364.3
(47.3)

1,102.8



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

General information

HKC (Holdings) Limited (the “Company” or “HKC”) is a
limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The
address of its registered office is Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) are principally engaged in the business of
property development and investment, alternative
energy investment and operation and infrastructure.
The investments of the Group are mainly located in the
Mainland China.

The shares of the Company are listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The ultimate holding company is Claudio
Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands since 29 January 2015.

These consolidated financial statements are presented
in million of Hong Kong dollars (HKS Million), unless
otherwise stated. These consolidated financial
statements were approved for issue by the Board of
Directors on 22 March 2016.

Summary of significant accounting
policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

The consolidated financial statements of HKC
(Holdings) Limited have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS”). They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified
by the revaluation of investment properties,
available-for-sale financial assets, and financial
assets and financial liabilities (including derivative
instrument) at fair value through profit or loss,
which are carried at fair value.

—REHR

BEERZ(ER)BRAR(AR
Al [ BEER]) AR B R ETM
Y Z2BREERAT o EMHERER
ik A Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda °
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REERIRE M EANMERER -
AEEZRETFBUNTEAM

AR REBBERXIMEA
PBRARI([BEARFAT]) ER ET - B
H B R 2 R B i A 3 /9 Claudio
Holdings Limited - B =& — A% —
AZ TN BRAEERABREERA
E] °

BrR BRI - WFHE T RE
NBEBBETIR EFGER-F
—ARNEZAZT-HIETIELS
AR -

TESTBERE

REZFGRAMBHRREM TR
SETBREINWT - BB B HHA
O REBRRCNIB2RFENA
EREM -

FrER(ER)BRAFZ
HAEMBHmRIBREREY
B EAN(TEEMBHRE
ZR DR - ZFHEMB
BRIZELRABEHRE -
HEMREYE  AAHEE
THEE RAVEERR
RIEZEMEERTRE
B(BRFEITETR) ZEME
HEETI AR FEFIER -

BREREBOERLDR —B—AFFH

87



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed
in Note 4.

Changes in accounting policy and

disclosures

(a) Amended standards and interpretation
adopted by the Group

Annual Annual improvements to
improvements  HKFRSs 2010 - 2012
project cycle

Annual Annual improvements to
improvements  HKFRSs 2011 - 2013
project cycle

The adoption of these amendments to
standards and interpretation have no
significant effects on the Group’s financial
information.

(b) Amended standards mandatory for the first
time for the financial year beginning on 1
January 2015 but not currently relevant
to the Group (although they may affect
the accounting for future transactions and
events)

HKAS 19 (2011)
(Amendment)

Defined benefit plans:
employee contributions

HKC (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2015
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

2  Summary of significant accounting 2 FESTHHEHEBEm@m)
policies (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and SHBERREEZ2EEH(E)

disclosures (continued)

(c)  New standards, amendments and (c) RZE—FHF—H—
interpretations have been issued but H Fi6.< M FE 2
are not effective for the financial year AEHEE H R E XL AR
beginning on 1 January 2015 and have not EENEIER RN
been early adopted FrER - AZFT AR 22

=
The following standards and amendments WTAEBEMmANKE
to standards have been published and E-_E—XR&F—AF—
are mandatory for the Group’s accounting Bl AERB 2 AE
periods beginning on or after 1 January B e st B R sk & 12
2016 or later periods, but the Group has MBI ER » ARE
not early adopted them: EIRI T =

AR SR 2 5T -

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

RT3 A
A3l A
S HBER
HKAS 1 (Amendment) Disclosure initiative 1 January 2016
BREHERELR(BA) REE —ET-RF-H—H
HKFRS 10, 12 and HKAS 28 Investment entities: applying the consolidation 1 January 2016
(Amendment) exception —E-RF—-A—H
ARMBREERELON « £125% REER: ERAHHRE
RAB LR ERE28% (BFA)
HKFRS 11 (Amendment) Accounting on acquisition of interests in joint 1 January 2016
operation TR ¥—-H—-H
ERUBREENEIR(BITA) WESEEBEE 2 gE
HKFRS 14 Regulatory deferral accounts 1 January 2016
B BREENE145 EERIER I =
HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Clarification of acceptable methods of 1 January 2016
(Amendment) depreciation and amortisation —T-"¥—-H-H
ERSHEAZIORREAS  BENERBENTREZ A
RRIE 38K (BFTA)
HKAS 16 and HKAS41 (Amendment) Agriculture: bearer plants 1 January 2016
BReHEAZIORRESS  BE: £EMHEY 2 F-A-H

ERIFA15 (BATA)

BREREBOERLDR —B—AFFH



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

2 Summary of significant accounting 2
policies (continued)

FESTHTHERE @)

Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures (continued)

BN BRREE 225 ()

(c)  New standards, amendments and (c) R-EFE—FHF—H—
interpretations have been issued but H Fi6.< M FE 2
are not effective for the financial year AEHEE R LR AR
beginning on 1 January 2015 and have not EENEIERIR N2
been early adopted (continued) FrER - (EFT AR 2

()
Effective for

accounting periods
beginning on or after

20

RTFIBE
Rz EBERZ
BHHBER
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or contribution of assets between an To be announced
(Amendment) investor and its associate or joint venture B
ERMBREENEIORRES HREFREBESAEARCANEELER
SEERIE 285 (1571 4) Bz
HKAS 27 (Amendment) Equity method in separate financial statements 1 January 2016
BB GIERE2TH (BRI A) BN BRE 2 ERE —E-R"F—H-H
Annual Improvements project Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012 - 2014 1 January 2016
cycle
FEYEEE BERUBREEN S —FE_T-NFAE T ~F-A-H
ZERRE
HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers 1 January 2018
BB B RS &R 155 BFEAHNE —E-N\§—H—-H
HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (hedge accounting and 1 January 2018
amendments to HKFRS 9, HKFRS 7 and
HKAS 39)
BB BIREERFE% SRTAE R RBEBTEREER —E-\§—H—-H

FI9 - BEMBREENETHRR
BRI ERNFEINR 2 EITR)

The Group has not early adopted the new
standards and amendments to standards,
which have been issued but are not
effective for the financial year beginning 1
January 2015. The Group has commenced
an assessment of the related impact but
is not yet in a position to state whether
any substantial changes to the Group’s
accounting policies and presentation of the
financial information will be resulted.

HKC (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2015
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures (continued)

(d)

New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap.622)

In addition, the requirements of Part 9
“Accounts and Audit” of the new Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)
come into operation during the financial
year, as a result, there are changes to
presentation and disclosure of certain
information in the consolidated financial
statements.

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and all its
subsidiaries made up to 31 December.

(a)

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity over which the
Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to,
or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. Subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that
control ceases.

FESHHREME@m)

S BRERIRE B (&)

(d) #EER KD

(F622%)

1 N b /NTE S
Bl (5 622% ) F98B
[BR B MERT IR E
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BF - At 6
BHREAETERD
2 RBETAEM
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e ISR

2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

(a)

Subsidiaries (continued)

The Group uses the acquisition method
of accounting to account for business
combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the
former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed
as incurred. Identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis. Non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present
ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of
the entity’s net assets in the event of
liquidation are measured at either fair
value or the present ownership interests’
proportionate share in the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at their
acquisition date fair value, unless another
measurement basis is required by HKFRS.

HKC (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2015
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

(a)

Subsidiaries (continued)

The excess of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interest in the acquiree over the
fair value of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If this is
less than the fair value of the net assets
of the subsidiary acquired in the case
of a bargain purchase, the difference is
recognised directly in profit or loss.

In the Company’s balance sheet,
investments in subsidiaries are accounted
for at cost less impairment. Cost includes
direct attributable costs of investment.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving
dividends from these investments if the
dividend exceeds the total comprehensive
income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying
amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.

Inter-company transactions, balances
and unrealised gains on transactions
between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.
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2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

(a)

(b)

Subsidiaries (continued)

When the Group ceases to have control,
any retained interest in the entity is re-
measured to its fair value at the date
when control is lost, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying
amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as
an associated company, joint venture
or financial asset. In addition, any
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.

Changes in ownership interests in
subsidiaries without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions —
that is, as transactions the owners of the
subsidiary in their capacity as owners.
The difference between fair value of any
consideration paid and the relevant share
acquired of the carrying value of net
assets of the subsidiary is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to
non-controlling interests are also recorded
in equity.

HKC (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2015
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

(c)

(d)

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control,
any retained interest in the entity is
remeasured to its fair value at the date
when control is lost, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying
amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as
an associated company, joint venture
or financial asset. In addition, any
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.

Associated companies

Associated companies are all entities over
which the Group has significant influence
but not control, generally accompanying
a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in
associated companies are accounted for
using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method of accounting,
the investment is initially recognised
at cost, and the carrying amount is
increased or decreased to recognise the
investor's share of the profit or loss of
the investee after the date of acquisition.
The Group’s investment in associated
companies includes goodwill identified
on acquisition. Upon the acquisition of
the ownership interest in an associated
company, any difference between the
cost of the associated company and the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the
associated company’s identifiable assets
and liabilities is accounted for as goodwill.
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2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

(d)

Associated companies (continued)

If the ownership interest in an associated
company is reduced but significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.

The Group's share of its associated
companies’ post-acquisition profits or
losses is recognised in profit or loss, and
its share of post-acquisition movements
in other comprehensive income is
recognised in other comprehensive
income with a corresponding adjustment
to the carrying amount of the investment.
When the Group's share of losses in an
associated company equals or exceeds
its interest in the associated company,
including any other unsecured receivables,
the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associated
company.

The Group determines at each reporting
date whether there is any objective
evidence that the investment in the
associated company is impaired. If this
is the case, the group calculates the
amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the
associated company and its carrying value
and recognises the amount adjacent to
share of profits less losses of associated
companies in the income statement.
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2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

(d)

(e)

Associated companies (continued)
Unrealised gains on transactions between
the Group and its associated companies
are eliminated to the extent of the Group's
interests in the associated companies.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associated
companies have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses arising in
investments in associated companies are
recognised in profit or loss.

Gains and losses on disposals are
determined by comparing the proceeds
with the carrying amount and are
recognised within other income or other
and general expenses in profit or loss.

Joint ventures

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement
whereby the Group and other parties
undertake an economic activity which is
subject to joint control and none of the
participating parties has unilateral control
over the economic activity.

Investments in joint ventures are accounted
for by the equity method of accounting. The
consolidated income statement includes
the Group's share of the results of joint
ventures for the year, and the consolidated
balance sheet includes the Group's share
of the net assets of the joint ventures
and goodwill (net of any accumulated
impairment loss) on acquisition.
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e ISR

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

(e)  Joint ventures (continued)

Unrealised gains on transactions between
the Group and its joint ventures are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the joint ventures. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of the joint ventures
have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker (“CODM").
The CODM, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the
Group’s most senior executive management that
makes strategic decisions.

(a) Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements
of each of the Group’s entities are
measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The Company’s functional
currency is Renminbi and the Group's
presentation currency is Hong Kong
dollars to facilitate analysis of the financial
information of the Group, which is listed in
Hong Kong.
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2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

(b)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are
translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions or valuation
where items are remeasured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange
rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in profit or loss.

Changes in the fair value of monetary
securities denominated in foreign currency
classified as available-for-sale are
analysed between translation differences
resulting from changes in the amortised
cost of the security, and other changes
in the carrying amount of the security.
Translation differences related to changes
in the amortised cost are recognised in
profit or loss, and other changes in the
carrying amount are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary
financial assets and liabilities such as
equities held at fair value through profit
or loss are recognised in profit or loss
as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation differences on non-monetary
financial assets such as equities classified
as available for sale are included in other
comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all
the group entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency
as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each
balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

(ii) income and expenses for each
income statement are translated
at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which
case income and expenses are
translated at the rate on the dates
of the transactions); and

(iif) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising
on the acquisition of a foreign entity are
treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign entity and translated at the closing
rate. Currency translation differences
are recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

(d)

Disposal of foreign operation and
partial disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that
is, a disposal of the Group’s entire interest
in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation, a
disposal involving loss of joint control
over a joint venture that includes a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of
significant influence over an associated
company that includes a foreign
operation), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the equity holders
of the Company are reclassified to profit or
loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does
not result in the Group losing control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, the proportionate share of
accumulated exchange differences are
re-attributed to non-controlling interests
and are not recognised in profit or loss.
For all other partial disposals (that is,
reductions in the Group’s ownership
interest in associated companies or
joint ventures that do not result in the
Group losing significant influence or
joint control) the proportionate share of
the accumulated exchange difference is
reclassified to profit or loss.
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2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

Properties are interests in land and buildings
other than investment properties. Leasehold land
classified as finance lease, buildings, electric
utility plant and equipment, other plant and
equipment, comprising plant and machineries,
motor vehicles and furniture and fixtures are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the items.

Leasehold land classified as finance lease
commences amortisation from the time when the
land interest becomes available for its intended
use. Amortisation on leasehold land classified as
finance lease and depreciation on other assets
is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their cost to their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold land classified  shorter of remaining
as finance lease lease term or useful

life
Buildings 50 years
Electric utility plant and 20 years

equipment
Other plant and equipment 3 to 15 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
balance sheet date.

All direct and indirect costs relating to the
construction of property, plant and equipment,
including borrowing costs during the construction
period are capitalised as the costs of the assets,
which are classified as construction in progress.
No depreciation is provided on construction in
progress until such times as the relevant assets
are completed and available for intended use.
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

Subsequent costs are included in the carrying
amount of the asset or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of item
can be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged in profit or
loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognised within other income or other
and general expenses in profit or loss.

Investment property, principally comprising
leasehold land and buildings, is held for long-term
rental yields and is not occupied by the Group.
Land held under operating leases are accounted
for as investment properties when the rest of the
definition of an investment property is met. In
such cases, the operating leases concerned are
accounted for as if they were finance leases.

Property that is being constructed or developed
as investment property is carried at fair
value. Where fair value is not determinable,
such investment property under construction
is measured at cost until either its fair value
becomes reliably determinable or construction is
completed (whichever is earlier).
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2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

Investment property is initially measured at
cost, including related transaction costs and
where applicable borrowing costs. After initial
recognition at cost, investment properties are
carried at fair value, representing open market
value determined at each reporting date by
external valuers. Fair value is based on active
market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any
difference in the nature, location or condition
of the specific asset. If the information is not
available, the Group uses alternative valuation
methods such as recent prices on less active
markets or discounted cash flow projections.
These valuations are reviewed annually by
Knight Frank Petty Limited (“Knight Frank”), an
independent professional valuer.

The fair value of investment property reflects,
among other things, rental income from current
leases and assumptions about rental income
from future leases in the light of current market
conditions.

The fair value also reflects, on a similar basis,
any cash outflows that could be expected in
respect of the property. Some of those outflows
are recognised as a liability, including finance
lease liabilities in respect of land classified as
investment property, others, including contingent
rent payments, are not recognised in the financial
statements.

Subsequently expenditure is included in the
asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the
asset will flow to the Group and the cost of the
asset can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance costs are expensed in profit or
loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

Changes in fair values are recorded as part of a
valuation gain or loss in fair value adjustments on
investment properties in profit or loss.

The Group transfers a property from investment
property to property, plant and equipment
and prepaid land lease payments when and
only when there is a change in use, evidenced
by commencement of owner-occupation. The
deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment
and prepaid land lease payments is the fair value
of the property at the date of change in use.

The Group transfers a property from property,
plant and equipment to investment property when
and only when there is a change in use, evidenced
by end of owner-occupation. Any difference
resulting between carrying amount and the fair
value of the property at the date of transfer is
treated as the same way as a revaluation under
HKAS 16. Any resulting increase in the carrying
amount of the property is recognised in income
statement to the extent that it reverses a previous
impairment loss, with any remaining increase
recognised in other comprehensive income
and increase directly to equity in revaluation
surplus within equity. Any resulting decrease in
the carrying amount of the property is initially
charged in other comprehensive income against
any previously recognised revaluation surplus,
with any remaining decrease charged to income
statement.
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2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

Prepaid land lease payments represent prepayments
for leasehold land held under operating leases, which
are stated at cost and subsequently are amortised
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease or when there is impairment,
the impairment is expensed in profit or loss. During
the course of the properties development, the
amortisation is included as part of the costs of the
properties under development.

Properties held for sale are initially measured
at the carrying amount of the property at the
date of reclassification from properties under
development. Properties remaining unsold at the
end of the year are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value.

Cost comprises land and development costs
attributable to the unsold properties.

Net realisable value represents the management’s
estimated selling price based on prevailing
market conditions less costs to be incurred in
selling the property.

The Group transfers a property from investment
property to properties held for sale when and
only when there is a change in use, evidenced by
commencement of development with a view to
sale. The deemed cost of the properties held for
sale transferred from investment property is the
fair value of the property at the date of change in
use.
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2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

Properties under development including the
properties developed for resale comprises
development cost of properties which are stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Properties under development are classified
under current assets when they are expected to
be realised in the Group’s normal operating cycle
and comprise development costs of properties
and the costs paid to acquire land use rights
which are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. On completion, the properties
under development are transferred to completed
properties held for sale.

Net realisable value takes into account the price
ultimately expected to be realised, less applicable
variable selling expenses and the anticipated
costs to completion.

Development cost of properties comprises
construction costs, borrowing costs and
professional fees incurred during the
development period.

Costs directly attributable to the construction
of property, plant and equipment including
borrowing costs during the construction period
are capitalised as the costs of the assets, which
are classified as construction in progress. On
completion, the construction in progress is
transferred to property, plant and equipment
at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
No depreciation is provided on construction in
progress.
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2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

(a)

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of
subsidiaries represents the excess of the
consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
and the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identified net
assets acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business
combination is allocated to each of the
cash-generating units (“CGUs"), or groups
of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination. Each
unit or group of units to which the goodwill
is allocated represents the lowest level
within the entity at which the goodwill
is monitored for internal management
purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the
operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are
undertaken annually or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment. The
carrying value of the CGU containing the
goodwill is compared to the recoverable
amount, which is the higher of value in use
and the fair value less costs of disposal.
Any impairment is recognised immediately
as an expense and is not subsequently
reversed.
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

(b)

(c)

Concession rights

The costs incurred for the construction
or upgrade work or the acquisition of the
toll road under the service concession
arrangements of the Group with relevant
local governments are accounted for an
intangible asset if the Group receives a
right to charge users of the toll road.

These expenditures are amortised on an
units-of-usage basis, making reference
to the proportion of actual traffic volume
achieved for a particular period over the
total projected traffic volume throughout
the periods within which the Group is
granted the rights to operate the toll
road. The total projected volume of the
respective concession right is reviewed
regularly with reference to both internal
and external sources of information and
appropriate adjustments are made should
there be a material change.

Land use rights acquired in conjunction
with the service concession arrangement
which the Group has no discretion or
latitude to deploy for other services other
than the use in the service concession are
treated as intangible assets.

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets acquired in a
business combination are recognised at
fair value at the acquisition date. Other
intangible assets have a finite useful life
and are carried at cost less accumulated
impairment and amortisation. Amortisation
is calculated using the straight-line method
over their estimated useful lives of five
years.
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2  Summary of significant accounting 2 SETBEREME &)
policies (continued)
Assets that have an indefinite useful life or RIEFTAFEAFHZEESK

intangible assets not ready to use are not
subject to amortisation and are tested annually
for impairment. Assets which are subject to
amortisation are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).
Assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of
the impairment at each reporting date.

Contract costs are recognised as an expense
by reference to the stage of completion of the
contract activity at the balance sheet date. When
the outcome of a construction contract cannot be
estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised
only to the extent of contract costs incurred that
are likely to be recoverable. When the outcome
of a construction contract can be estimated
reliably and it is probable that the contract will be
profitable, contract revenue is recognised over
the period of the contract by reference to the
stage of completion. When it is probable that total
contract costs will exceed total contract revenue,
the expected loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.
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2 Summary of significant accounting 2
policies (continued)

Variations in contract work, claims and incentive
payments are included in contract revenue to
the extent that may have been agreed with the
customer and are capable of being reliably
measured.

The Group uses the “percentage of completion
method” to determine the appropriate amount
to recognise in a given period. The stage of
completion is measured by reference to contract
costs incurred up to the balance sheet date as
a percentage of total estimated costs for each
contract. Costs incurred in the year in connection
with future activity on a contract are excluded
from contract costs in determining the stage of
completion. They are presented as inventories,
prepayments or other assets, depending on their
nature.

The Group presents the net contract position for
each contract as an asset when the gross amount
due from customers for contract work for all
contracts in progress for which costs incurred
plus recognised profits (less recognised losses)
exceed progress billings. Progress billings not
yet paid by customers and retentions are included
within trade and other receivables.

The Group presents the net contract position
for each contract as a liability when the gross
amount due to customers for contract work for all
contracts in progress for which progress billings
exceed costs incurred plus recognised profits
(less recognised losses).
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables and
available-for-sale. The classification depends
on the purpose for which the financial assets
were acquired. Management determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition.

(a) Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are financial assets held
for trading. A financial asset is classified
in this category if acquired principally
for the purpose of selling in the short
term. Derivatives are classified as held
for trading unless they are designated
as hedges. Assets in this category are
classified as current assets.

(b) Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current
assets, except for the amounts that are
settled or expected to be settled more
than twelve months after the balance
sheet date. These are classified as non-
current assets. The Group’s loans and
receivables comprise “trade and other
receivables”, “cash and cash equivalents”
and “restricted cash” in the balance sheet.

(c) Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in
this category or not classified in any of
the other categories. They are included in
non-current assets unless the investment
matures or management intends to
dispose of the investment within twelve
months of the balance sheet date.
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2 Summary of significant accounting 2
policies (continued)

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade-date - the
date on which the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised
at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial
assets not carried at fair value through profit or
loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value,
and transaction costs are expensed in profit or
loss. Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the investments
have expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale financial
assets and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair
value. Loans and receivables are subsequently
carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Gains and losses arising from changes in fair
value of the “financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss” category are presented in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise. Dividend
income from financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss is recognised in profit or loss
when the Group’'s right to receive payments is
established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in a foreign currency and classified
as available-for-sale are analysed between
translation differences resulting from changes in
amortised cost of the security and other changes
in the carrying amount of the security. Changes
in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary
securities classified as available for sale are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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2 Summary of significant accounting 2
policies (continued)

114

When securities classified as available for sale
are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value
adjustments recognised in equity are included
in profit or loss as other income or other and
general expenses.

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated
using the effective interest method is recognised
in profit or loss as part of other income. Dividends
on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss as part of other
income which the Group’s right to receive
payments is established.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the
net amount reported in the balance sheet when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on
future events and must be enforceable in the
normal course of business and in the event of
default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company
or the counterparty.

For the purposes of assessing the fair value
of unlisted securities, the Group established
fair value by using valuation techniques.
These include the use of recent arm’s length
transactions, reference to other instruments
that are substantially the same, discounted cash
flow analysis and option pricing models, making
maximum use of market inputs and relying as little
as possible on entity-specific inputs.
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2 Summary of significant accounting 2
policies (continued)

The Group assesses at each balance sheet
date whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets
is impaired. In the case of equity securities
classified as available for sale, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the security
below its cost is considered as an indicator that
the securities are impaired. If any such evidence
exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that financial
asset previously recognised in profit or loss —
is removed from equity and recognised in profit
or loss. Impairment losses recognised in profit
or loss on equity instruments are not reversed
through profit or loss.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on
the date a derivative contract is entered into and
are subsequently re-measured at their fair value
at each balance sheet date. The change in the fair
value is recognised in profit or loss.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using
the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable variable
selling expenses.
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2 Summary of significant accounting 2
policies (continued)

116

Trade and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less provision for impairment. A
provision for impairment of trade and other
receivables is established when there is objective
evidence that the Group will not be able to collect
all amounts due according to the original terms
of the receivables. Significant financial difficulties
of the debtor, probability that the debtor will
enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation,
and default or delinquency in payments are
considered indicators that the trade receivable
is impaired. The amount of the provision is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the original effective interest
rate. The amount of the provision is recognised
in profit or loss. When a trade receivable is
uncollectible, it is written off against other
expenses in profit or loss. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited to
other income in profit or loss.

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost;
any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is
recognised in the income statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities
are recognised as transaction costs of the loan
to the extent that it is probable that some or all
of the facility will be drawn down. In this case,
the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To
the extent there is no evidence that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down,
the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.
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2 Summary of significant accounting 2
policies (continued)

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the balance sheet date.

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets, until such time
as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of
any qualifying asset are capitalised during the
period of time that is required to complete and
prepare the asset for its intended use. Other
borrowing costs are expensed.

In the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and
cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits
held at call with banks, other short-term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank
overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current
liabilities on the consolidated balance sheet.
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2 Summary of significant accounting 2
policies (continued)

118

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liability at fair value through profit or
loss is financial liability held for trading. A financial
liability is classified in this category as designated
by the Group upon initial recognition.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of the “financial liability at fair value through
profit or loss” category are presented in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise.

The tax expense for the period comprises current
and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date in the countries where the Company’s
subsidiaries and associated companies and joint
ventures operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to
be paid to the tax authorities.
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2 Summary of significant accounting 2
policies (continued)

Deferred income tax is recognised using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred income
tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the
time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries,
associated companies and joint ventures, except
for deferred income tax liability where the timing
of the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred income taxes
assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either the
taxable entity or different taxable entities where
there is an intention to settle the balances on a
net basis.
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

(a)

(b)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and
long service leave are recognised when
they accrue to employees. A provision is
made for the estimated liability for annual
leave and long service leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the
balance sheet date. Employee entitlements
to sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.

Defined contribution plans

The Group uses a mandatory provident
fund scheme (“MPF”) and employee
pension schemes established by municipal
government in the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC") for the eligible employees in
Hong Kong and the PRC respectively.

The Group’s and the employees’
contributions to the MPF comply with
the related statutory requirements. The
Group has no further payments obligations
once the contributions have been paid.
The Group’s contributions to the MPF
are expensed as incurred and are not
reduced by contributions forfeited by
those employees who leave MPF prior
to vesting fully in the contributions.
Prepaid contributions are recognised as
an asset to the extent that a cash refund
or a reduction in the future payments is
available. The assets of MPF are held
separately from those of the Group in
independently administered funds.

The Group’s contribution to the employee
pension schemes in the PRC is at a
percentage in compliance with the
requirements of respective municipal
governments.
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

(c)

(d)

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated by the Group
before the normal retirement date,
or whenever an employee accepts
voluntary redundancy in exchange for
these benefits. The Group recognises
termination benefits at the earlier of
the following dates: (a) when the Group
can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits; and (b) when the entity
recognises costs for a restructuring that is
within the scope of HKAS 37 and involves
the payment of termination benefits. In
the case of an offer made to encourage
voluntary redundancy, the termination
benefits are measured based on the
number of employees expected to accept
the offer. Benefits falling due more than
twelve months after the balance sheet date
are discounted to their present value.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled,
share-based compensation plan in
which the entity receives services from
employees as consideration for equity
instruments of the Group. The fair value
of the employee services received in
exchange for the grant of the options
is recognised as an expense. The total
amount to be expensed over the vesting
period is determined by reference to
the fair value of the options granted,
including any market performance
conditions (for example, an entity’s share
price), excluding the impact of any non-
market vesting conditions (for example,
profitability and sales growth targets and
remaining an employee of the entity over
a specified time period) and including the
impact of any non-vesting conditions (for
example, the requirement for employees
to save).
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

(d) Share-based compensation (continued)
Non-market vesting conditions are
included in assumptions about the number
of options that are expected to become
exercisable. At each balance sheet date,
the entity revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to
become exercisable based on the non-
marketing performance and service
conditions. It recognises the impact of
the revision of original estimates, if any,
in profit or loss, and a corresponding
adjustment to equity over the remaining
vesting period.

In addition, in some circumstances
employees may provide services in
advance of the grant date and therefore
the grant date fair value is estimated for
the purposes of recognising the expense
during the period between service
commencement period and grant date.

When the options are exercised, the
Company issues new shares. The
proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited
to share capital (nominal value) and share
premium when the options are exercised.

Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a present legal or constructive obligation as
a result of past events, it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation, and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Where the Group expects a provision
to be reimbursed, for example under an insurance
contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a
separate asset but only when the reimbursement
is virtually certain.
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required
in settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow
with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value
of the expenditures expected to be required to
settle the obligation using a pre-tax that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the obligation.
The increase in the provision due to passage of
time is recognised as interest expense.

Revenue comprises the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the sale
of goods, properties and services in the ordinary
course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is shown
net of business tax and after eliminating sales
within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount
of revenue can be reliably measured, it is
probable that future economic benefits will flow
to the entity and specific criteria have been met
for each of the Group’s activities as described
below. The amount of revenue is not considered
to be reliably measurable until all contingencies
relating to the sale have been resolved. The
Group bases its estimates on historical results,
taking into consideration the type of customer,
the type of transaction and the specifics of each
arrangement.

2

EEedBEMEw@m)

WEZEBUEE €EE
ERETEMABERRE
TRELHFEBRLER - A
ERRE EH B BEMA—IE
M Z AT RE MR - T AR
o

BRBRBEHETETRER
M ZBE AR RBRIRET
Btz BB EREENRE
ERAS E B 2 B AT LE R 5t
B -REBEELZRET
iBHERSF B -

WEEARBERT RSB
BPEEEM  WEIRE
ME R ERRENRF
18 o Wan fERRE X R 8
KB HERII

g 2% 0 B AR A 90 T 3 3
B - RRADEFIRAE A
RAGHER MALES
EEBIHA XA A
BEIE  AEERERK
%o BEBEABOHA
SABIEHE MR + &AM
EOBETRR A A %
8 o ARERRBE
tEBESER - X HEE
15 08 %2 ko0 4% B 1 B £
o

BREREBOERLDR —B—AFFH

123



124

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Revenues from infrastructure and
alternative energy are generated from
electricity supply and the toll road. They
are recognised based on the following:

(a) Revenue from alternative energy
is recognised based on power
dispatched during commercial
operation. Commercial operation
starts when obtaining a Power
Purchase Agreement, safety
certificate from the State Electricity
Regulatory Commission (“SERC”)
or Provincial Grid Authority,
and 240 hours commissioning.
Revenue attributable to the sales
of electricity generated during
construction and testing period
is not included in the electricity
sales revenue, but is offset against
the cost of property, plant and
equipment.

(b) Revenue arising from toll road
is recognised when services are
rendered.

Rental income from investment properties
is recognised in the income statement on
a straight-line basis over the terms of the
respective leases.

Revenue from individual construction
contracts is recognised under the
percentage of completion method.

Sales of food and beverages are
recognised in the income statement at the
point of sale to customer.
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

(v)

(viii)

(a)

Revenue from sales of properties is
recognised when the risks and rewards
of the properties are passed to the
purchasers. Deposits and instalments
received on properties sold prior to the
date of revenue recognition are included
under current liabilities.

Dividend income is recognised when the
right to receive payment is established.

Interest income is recognised on a time
proportion basis using the effective
interest method.

Property management fee income
is recognised when the services are
rendered.

Finance leases (lessee)

Leases that substantially transfer to
the Group all the risks and rewards
of ownership of assets are classified
as finance leases. Finance leases are
capitalised at the lease’s commencement
at the lower of the fair value of the leased
property and the present value of the
minimum lease payments. Each lease
payment is allocated between the liability
and finance charges so as to achieve
a constant rate on the finance balance
outstanding. The corresponding rental
obligations, net of finance charges, are
included in liabilities. The finance charges
are charged to the income statement
over the lease periods so as to produce
a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each
period.
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2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

(b) Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of
the risks and rewards of ownership are
retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are charged to
the income statement on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Group. It can also be a present
obligation arising from past events that is not
recognised because it is not probable that outflow
of economic resources will be required or the
amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but
is disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that the
outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a
provision.

Dividend distribution to the Company’s
shareholders is recognised as a liability in the
financial statements in the financial period in
which the dividends are approved.
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3

Financial risk management

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including foreign
exchange risk, price risk and interest rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s major
financial instruments include trade and other
receivables, amounts due from an associated
company and a joint venture, restricted cash,
cash and cash equivalents, derivative financial
instrument, financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, available-for-sale financial assets,
trade and other payables, bank loans and loans
from non-controlling shareholders. Details of
these financial instruments are disclosed in the
respective notes.

It is the policy of the Group not to enter into
derivative transactions for speculative purposes.
The derivatives held are not for speculative
purpose and cannot be traded in the market.

The Company’s Board of Directors focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance. The Board of Directors
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
these risks and they are summarised below.
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3

Financial risk management (continued)

(a)

Market risk

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates mainly in the
Mainland China. Entities within
the Group are exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from future
commercial transactions and
monetary assets and liabilities that
are denominated in a currency
that is not the entities’ functional
currency.

The Group currently does not
have any foreign currency
hedging activities. However, the
management of the Group monitors
the foreign exchange exposure
closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

If Renminbi had strengthened/
weakened by 5% against the Hong
Kong dollars and US dollars as at
31 December 2015 with all other
variables held constant, the Group’s
loss before income tax would have
been HKS14.7 million lower/higher
(2014: the Group’'s profit before
income tax have been HKS$13.4
million higher/lower).
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3

Financial risk management (continued)

(a)

Market risk (continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest-rate risk arises
from bank borrowings. Borrowings
issued at variable rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk
due to fluctuation of the prevailing
market interest rate. The Group’s
results and operating cash flows
are substantially dependent of
changes in market interest rates.

The Group does not use any
derivative contracts to hedge
its exposure to interest rate
risk. However, management will
consider hedging significant
interest rate exposures should the
need arise.

As at 31 December 2015, if
the interest rate had increased/
decreased 100 basis points with
all other variables held constant,
the Group’s loss before income tax
would have increased/decreased
by HK$16.3 million (2014: the
Group's profit before income tax
would have decreased/increased
by HKS$19.7 million).
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3

Financial risk management (continued)

(a)

(b)

Market risk (continued)

(i) Price risk
The Group has minimal exposure to
price risk during the years ended
31 December 2014 and 2015.

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk in its
restricted cash, cash and cash equivalents
and trade and other receivables.

The carrying amount of restricted cash,
cash and cash equivalents and trade and
other receivables, represent the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in
relation to its financial assets.

To manage the credit risk associated
with restricted cash and cash and cash
equivalents, most of the deposits are
mainly placed with certain state-owned
banks in the PRC which are high credit
quality financial institutions and banks with
high credit rankings in Hong Kong.

To manage the credit risk associated
with trade and other receivables, the
Group adopts risk control to assess
the credit quality of the customers and
debtors, taking into account their financial
positions and past experience. The Group
has monitoring procedures to ensure
that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts.
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3

Financial risk management (continued)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

For alternative energy business, the Group
is exposed to significant concentration
of credit risk in terms of electricity sales
as the Group's sales of electricity were
made to state-owned provincial power
grid companies. The Group normally
does not require collateral from trade
debtors. It normally grants credit terms of
30 days to these power grid companies.
However, part of the trade receivables
due from the power grid companies relate
to government subsidy which are subject
to government allocation of the tariff
surcharge for renewable energy. Based
on past experience and industry practice,
these tariff premiums are generally paid
in 6 to 12 months from the date of the
sales recognition. Ageing analysis of the
Group's trade receivables is disclosed in
Note 27. Management makes periodic
collective assessment as well as individual
assessment of the recoverability of trade
receivables based on historical payment
records, the length of the overdue period,
the financial strength of the debtors and
whether there are any disputes with the
relevant debtors.

Other than alternative energy business,
there is no concentration of credit risk with
respect to trade receivables from third
party customers as the customer bases
are widely dispersed in different sectors
and industries.
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3

Financial risk management (continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (continued)

In addition, the Group monitors the
exposure to credit risk in respect of
the financial assistance provided to
subsidiaries, associated companies and
joint ventures through exercising control
significant influence or joint control
(where applicable) over their financial and
operating policy decisions and reviewing
their financial positions on a regular basis.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group
is unable to meet its current obligations
when they fall due. The Group measures
and monitors its liquidity through the
maintenance of prudent ratios regarding
the liquidity structure of the overall
assets, liabilities, loans and commitments
of the Group. The Group also maintains
a conservative level of liquid assets to
ensure the availability of sufficient cash
flows to meet any unexpected and material
cash requirements in the course of
ordinary business.

During the year, the Group complied
with all externally imposed loan covenant
requirements to which it is subject to.
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3

Financial risk management (continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The table below analyses the Group’s
contractual maturity for their financial
liabilities. The amounts disclosed in the
table have been drawn up with reference
to the undiscounted cash flows of the
financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to

pay.

At 31 December 2015

Borrowings

Trade and other payables

Financial guarantee for credit
facilities granted (Note 37(b))

Financial guarantee for mortgage
facilities granted to certain
property buyers (Note 36(b)

At 31 December 2014

Borrowings

Trade and other payables

Other non-current payables

Financial guarantee for credit
facilities granted (Note 37(b)

Financial guarantee for mortgage
facilities granted to certain
property buyers (Note 36(b))

R-B-EF+ZA=1-H
fE3t

ERERRA RN
AEREERARRIRER
(HizE37(0))
ARATHEERRAH
BERARANE
R (HEE300b))

RZE-ME+-A=1-A

AR

ERER R
EtIERBENT

FEREERERRIBER
(B3E37(b))

RRRTMEEZE LN
IRiaR A REE T
ER(HE36(b)

3 B¥ERREEm@m

(c)

Between

Less than land?2
1 year years
-FR  -Z@E

HKS Million HKS Million
BE%nr  BEER

1,320.6 871.3
1,811.0 -

1275 -

222.2 -

1,422.6 951.5
1,3924 =
0.9 141

150.1 =

307.6 =

REBEEERE

TEROMAKE LR
BEZEMEMAE -
TREBEZHEZ
EAKEANKZ &
FERHeRMABZAK
MEBRERERE -

Between

2and 5 Over
years 5 years Total
ZEIf  RENE L
HKS Million  HKS Million HKS Million
BEBT HEET BERAR
1,865.3 8035  4,866.7
- - 18110
- - 1215
- - 222.2
1,422.6 1,1759 49726
- - 1,392.4
- 05 15.5
- - 150.1
- - 307.6
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3  Financial risk management (continued) 3 HXEREEGE
The Group’s objectives when managing capital REBEEBERNITE BR
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue P 7N 2 B 35 B 0 & TS 2 B
as a going concern in order to provide returns for B Bk AIRERE R HR &
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders AEMERMERES KT
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to HWHEESENERNER
reduce the cost of capital. MR E S ©
In order to maintain or adjust the capital ARG AERERERE K
structure, the Group may adjust the amount of EFE e ARMEEIRMNZ
dividends paid to shareholders, raise new debt B o%E - EEHELR
financing, issue new shares, share options and & BTG BRRER
warrants or conduct share buy-backs. R FSGETTEREIRD -
The Group monitors its capital structure by REHBBETEBEER
reviewing its gearing ratio and cash flows HEREHSREERERHE
requirements, taking into account of its future BARREE miKeZEH
financial obligations and commitments for this KRR TG E TR AL - K&
purpose. The Group defines gearing ratio as total BEEEANLERREAE
debt divided by total equity. Total debt is the BHRER AR AR - B
aggregate of current and non-current borrowings BEEAGEEEBBRIT
as shown in the consolidated balance sheet and B N IEmENE N ARE o
total equity is also as shown in the consolidated HEENNGEEEAER
balance sheet. Bl 7R o
The gearing ratios at 31 December 2015 and RZE-—RFR-_ZT—-MNF
2014 were as follows: +-_A=+—HBZB8EE&EXK
HRmT
2015 2014
—E—FRF —ZET—u&F
HK$ Million HKS Million
HEBT BEETT
Current borrowings mEE R 1,119.4 1,211.0
Non-current borrowings IEMBNE 3,011.4 2,968.4
Total borrowings fE R ABER 4,130.8 4,179.4
Total equity B 13,841.7 15,096.2
Gearing ratio BEEAREE
(total debt/equity ratio) (Ef54R% s i8%) 29.8% 27.7%
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3

Financial risk management (continued) 3
The table below analyses financial instruments
carried at fair value, by valuation method. The
different levels have been defined as follows:

Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities
(level 1).
Inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (that is, as
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from
prices) (level 2).
Inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs) (level 3).
The following table presents the Group’s financial
assets and liabilities that are measured at fair
value at 31 December 2015.
Level 1
ENE
HK$ Million
BEBR
BE
Availablefor-sale financial assets AIEHESREE -
Financial assets at fair value BATEERRE
through profit or loss Sz S RAE 0.2
Total assets EELE 0.2
Liability 8f
Financial liabilities at fair value ~ RAFEHEEZER
through profit or loss Sz e RBE -
Total liability BREE -

B E T (@)

TRERGEEHEATE
SIBE > S R T B#ITAH -
TRGHAEDT

- BABRNEEXE
BERAR™M S 2 RE
(REHE)(F1F) -

- RFEIFFAZRE
AONRI B (BB B E
%) (AERE
RELE)BREEX
BEMBIRARR(H
28%) -

- UHRABEMSH
B (BN FE RSB
ANBEB)ZEESARE
RAEE (F34%) -

TREIAKRER-_F—A
FH+-_A=1T—HERQA¥E
AEZEMEENBE-

Level 2 Level 3 Total
2R ERF g

HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million
BEBT B BEBT
7.2 17.7 24.9

- 13.2 13.4

7.2 30.9 38.3

- 280.7 280.7

- 280.7 280.7

BREREBOERLDR —B—AFFH
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e ISR

3

The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets is based on quoted market prices
at the balance sheet date. A market is regarded
as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer, broker,
industry group, pricing service, or regulatory
agency, and those prices represent actual and
regularly occurring market transactions on an
arm’s length basis. The quoted market price
used for financial assets held by the Group is
the current bid price. These instruments are
included in level 1. Instruments included in level 1
comprise primarily equity investments classified
as trading securities under financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss.

HKC (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2015

Financial risk management (continued) 3
The following table presents the Group’s financial
assets and liabilities that are measured at fair
value at 31 December 2014.

Level 1
Z1R
HKS Million
BEAT
Assets BE
Availablefor-sale financial assets A HESREE -
Financial assets at fair value BATEERRR
through profit or loss Sz S RAE 0.2
Total assets BEAE 0.2
Liability a8
Financial liabilities at fair value ~ RAFEHEBHER
through profit or loss Iz eREE -
Total liability BEEE -

B SR e ()

TREJNAEBR TN
FT_A=+—HRATFE
ArECERMEENMAE -

Level 2 Level 3 Total
E2M F3R bk

HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million
BEAT BEBTL BEATL
7.2 19.6 26.8

- 14.0 14.2

7.2 33.6 41.0

- 297.8 297.8

- 297.8 297.8
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ZRFEDRERGHE B
BHIGERTHE o WAL
ERBEBXZH 5@
R4~ FHRAER - mERS
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3

Financial risk management (continued)

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market is determined by using
valuation techniques. These valuation techniques
maximise the use of observable market data
where it is available and rely as little as possible
on entity specific estimates. If all significant
inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable, the instrument is included in Level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not
based on observable market data, the instrument
is included in Level 3.

The valuation technique and inputs used in the fair
value measurements within Level 2 and Level 3
are as follows:

Valuation technique

fEER

Available-for-sale financial assets Quoted market prices for
(Level 2) similar instruments

FEfETAMTERE

Available-for-sale financial assets Net asset value®ote

AHEHESREE(F2MH)

(Level 3)
AHEESmEE(FEIR)
Financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss (Level 3)
BAFEEEBERRIIERE S

PRIEE(F3R)

Financial liabilities at fair value

through profit or loss (Level 3)

& FE

& FE )

BAVEERRRIIEKZ
ERABEEIR)

FIRBEME

Note: The Group has determined that the reported
net asset value represents fair value at 31
December 2015 and 2014.

3

Net asset valueMote)

Discounted cash flow

B E T (@)

AEEEERMSEESRT
BAZ RFESRBGEEEE
o BEUESAERETSEH
BRI A AT BER D KRR B BRI
EfETE - EEERIAE
EERABEMSHE i
AE-HTAZRAFERS
MEBEXHABIRZHE B
o ABITAS AR -

(R FEEQEEPR PN €
I FEAR 4% A] BR 2R T 5 BB AT
B AEIAESHAREIL -

FE2R R EBIM AT EFERN
£ Az fh B BT Ko i A B 40
™~

Significant inputs
EPN PN ¢

Observable quoted market
price

ABRmiSRE

Not applicable

NEA
Not applicable

NaEH

Discount rate and expected
recoverable amount of
underlying project

AL R R TEHAMRREIE B &
AT el 51 EE

Mzt : AEBETM2II2E
EFEDRRR_ZT
—RAFRZFT—NF
tTZA=+—RHZA¥
B
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3 Financial risk management (continued) 3

Additional information about fair value
measurements using significant unobservable

inputs (Level 3):

Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss Mote)
BAFEEERERIIEZ
& RhE &

Note:

Significant
unobservable inputs
BEAELBENW AZE

Discount rate

ARIR

Expected recoverable amount
of underlying project

T BAAE B TE B /9 AT Y Bl SRR

The valuations are performed and reported at

each of the Group’s reporting dates to Group
management. The higher the discount rate, the
lower the fair value. The higher the expected
recoverable amount of underlying project, the

higher the fair value.

There were no changes in valuation techniques

during the year.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers
into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy
levels as of the date of the event or change in
circumstances that caused the transfer.

During the years ended 31 December 2015 and
2014, there were no significant transfers of
financial assets between level 1, 2 and 3 fair value

hierarchy classifications.

The fair value of the following financial assets and
liabilities approximate their carrying amounts:

e Trade and other receivables

¢ Amount due from an associated company, net

e Amount due from a joint venture

e (Cash and cash equivalents
e Restricted cash

e Trade and other payables
e Borrowings
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3

4

Financial risk management (continued)

The following table presents the changes in level
3 instruments for the years ended 31 December
2015 and 2014.

At 1 January 2014 RZZ2-NE—-A—-AH
Net unrealised loss recognised  RAEBZFRAZ KRR
in profit and loss BEFE
Net gain/lloss) recognised REETRAZ IS/
in reserves (BB) 58
At 31 December 2014 R-E-NE+-A=+-H
At 1 January 2015 RZE-hE-A-A
Disposal e
Net unrealised gain recognised AR FHEA 2K AR
in profit and loss s Fa
Net gain/(loss) recognised REERRAZ IS/
in reserves (BB) 58
At 31 December 2015 RZE-RET-A=1-H

Critical accounting estimates and
judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.

3

Available-
for-sale
financial
assets

AHHE
SREE
HK$ Million
BEETR

17.5

2.1
19.6

19.6
(1.5)

(0.4)
177

B E T (@)

TRRABE-T—HER
—®-mE+-A=+—F

IFEEZFEIRTEES -
Financial Financial
assets at liabilities

fair value  at fair value
through profit through
or loss  profit or loss Total
BAVEE BRAVER
BR&Ikz BERIKZ
SREE tRAE B
HKS Million ~ HKS Million ~ HK$ Million

BEATL BEBT BERAL
14.3 (279.0) (247.2)

- (26.6) (26.6)

0.3) 78 96
140 (297.8) (264.2)
14.0 (297.8) (264.2)

- - (15)

- 0.4 0.4

0.8) 16.7 15.5
13.2 (280.7) (249.8)

B RS EET R HE

AEERBEATERLEMER
(BRERHRREMAMELETRIB
MATHREBREZER) - T
T M AR E AT A -

R BER R L AT MR - B
ZRE - ALz EEEEL A
BRANERGERER - ST — &
MBREEEEMBBERBELRE
RFBRAR < G5 RBRERE T X

[
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4

Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (continued)

The fair value of each investment property,
and the recoverable amount of prepaid land
lease payments portfolio excluding the property
development projects achieved pre-sales
stage as at 31 December 2015 and 2014, are
individually determined at each balance sheet
date by an independent valuer based on a market
value assessment. Knight Frank was engaged
to carry out the independent valuation of the
Group’s investment property and prepaid land
lease payments portfolio as at 31 December
2015 and 2014. This valuation was carried
out in accordance with the Valuation Standards
on Properties of the Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors which defines market value as “the
estimated amount for which a property should
exchange on the date of valuation between a
willing buyer and a willing seller in an arm’s-length
transaction after proper marketing wherein the
parties had each acted knowledgeably, prudently
and without compulsion”.

Knight Frank has derived the valuation of the
Group’s property portfolio by capitalising the
rental income derived from existing tenancies with
due provision for reversionary income potential
and where appropriate, by reference to market
comparable transactions. The assumptions
are based on market conditions existing at the
balance sheet date.
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Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (continued)

For the prepaid land lease payments excluding
the property development projects achieved
pre-sales stage, management determined the
recoverable amount based on the valuation report
prepared by Knight Frank. Knight Frank has valued
the investment properties under development/
recoverable amount of prepaid land lease
payments on the basis that the properties will
be developed in accordance with the information
provided from management. It is assumed that
approvals for the development scheme will be
obtained without any onerous condition which
would affect the value of investment properties
under development/recoverable amount of
prepaid land lease payments. In arriving the
opinion of value, Knight Frank has made reference
to comparable transactions in the locality and
has also taken into account the construction
costs that will be expended to complete the
development and the quality of the completed
development in the development scheme.

Management has reviewed the Knight Frank
valuation and compared it with its own
assumptions, with reference to comparable
sales transaction data where such information is
available, and has concluded that the Knight Frank
valuation of the Group’s investment property
portfolio and prepaid land lease payments is
reasonable.

If the valuation of the investment properties
had been 10.0% higher or lower than the value
stated on the valuation report, the fair value
adjustment before taxation, excluding the
investment properties held through joint ventures,
for the year arising from the Group’s investment
properties would have been increased or
decreased by HK$823.0 million (2014: HKS804.4
million).
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4

Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (continued)

The Group assesses the carrying amounts of
properties held for sales, properties under
development and prepaid land lease payments
according to their estimated net recoverable
amount based on the realisability of these
properties, taking into account of costs to
completion based on past experience and
net sales value based on prevailing market
conditions. Provision is made when events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amounts may not be realised. The
assessment requires the use of judgement and
estimates.

The Group tests annually whether intangible
assets have suffered any impairment in
accordance with the accounting policy. The
calculations use pre-tax cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by
management.

The unit prices used for the analysis are
determined by management making reference
to the agreements approved by the government
authorities. The average growth rate used are
consistent with the forecasts expected in the
industry. The discount rates used are pre-tax
and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant
segments.

The Group has performed impairment assessment
by using the discounted cash flow model with
the assumptions that traffic flow would increase
by 9.7% every year on average, the tariff rate
would increase by 7.5% every five years and
the discount rate is 10.0%. According to the
impairment assessment using value-in-use model,
the recoverable amount of Guilin Tollroad is
higher than the carrying value as at 31 December
2015.
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4

Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (continued)

If the discount rate used in the value-in-use
calculation had been 10.0% higher than
management’s estimates at 31 December 2015
and 2014, there would be no further impairment
on the Group’s concession right (toll road).
Similarly, if the traffic flow of the toll road is
10.0% lower than the management’s estimates
at 31 December 2015 and 2014, there would be
no further impairment on the Group’s concession
right (toll road).

Plant and equipment are reviewed by
management for impairment losses whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
The recoverable amount is the higher of fair
value less costs to sell and value in use of
the plant and equipment. Management makes
judgements on whether such events or changes
in circumstances have occurred, and makes
estimates in determining the recoverable amount.
In the situation where the value in use of plant
and equipment cannot be assessed due to the
uncertainties of the operation model in the
future, management has assessed the respective
recoverable amount solely based on the fair value
less costs to sell. Provision is made when events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amounts may not be recovered.
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4

Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (continued)

The Group tests whether property, plant and
equipment, prepaid land lease payments and
interests in associated companies engaged in the
alternative energy businesses (“Alternative Energy
Projects”) have suffered any impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable in
accordance with the accounting policy in Note
2.12. The Group reviews certain indicators of
potential impairment such as actual electricity
dispatched, tariff of electricity, market unit price
of Certified Emission Reduction (“CER”) and other
general market conditions.

If an indication of impairment is identified, the
need for recognising an impairment loss is
assessed by comparing the carrying amount
of the assets, to the higher of (i) the fair
value less cost to sell, and (ii) the value-in-use
on a project-by-project basis. The fair value
is either determined by referring to recent
transactions or by independent valuers whenever
appropriate. The value-in-use of the assets
represents estimated future cash flows from
the continuous use of the assets, and requires
complex assumptions and estimates such as
future electricity dispatched, tariff of electricity,
CER and discount rates. The discount rates
used to discount the estimated future cash flows
are based on the relevant industry sector risk
premium and the gearing ratio.
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4

Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (continued)

During the year, the Group has performed
impairment assessment on the Alternative
Energy Projects. The value-in-use calculation
was based on the key assumptions, including (i)
average annual tariff increment at approximately
2.0% (2014: 3.0%) based on management’s
expectation on market development and general
inflation, (ii) projection of volume of electricity
dispatched based on the operational feasibility
reports and historical performances, and (iii)
assuming the contributions from CER is of
negligible amount. The pre-tax discount rates
applied to the cash flow projections are between
10.59% and 12.82% (2014: 11.29% and 13.65%)
per annum.

Based on the impairment assessment, the
recoverable amounts of subsidiaries operating
wind farms and interests in associated companies
are higher than their respective carrying amounts.

With all other variables held constant, if there
is an average annual tariff increment at 1.0%
(2014: 1.5%) throughout the operating period, the
loss before taxation would have been increased
by HK$16.8 million (2014: the profit before
taxation would have been decreased by HK$36.2
million). Similarly, with all other variables held
constant, if the volume of electricity dispatched
is 10.0% (2014: 10.0%) less than management
expectation, the loss before taxation would have
been increased by HKS57.6 million (2014: the
profit before taxation would have been decreased
by HK$53.7 million).
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4

Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (continued)

The Group is subject to income taxes mainly in
Mainland China. Significant judgement is required
in determining the provision for income taxes.
There are many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determined is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises liabilities for potential tax exposures
based on estimates of whether additional taxes
will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will affect
the income tax and deferred tax provision in the
period in which such determination is made.

The fair value of financial instruments that are
not traded in an active market is determined
by using valuation techniques. The Group uses
its judgement to select a variety of methods
(including but not limited to discounted cash flow
analysis) and make assumptions that are mainly
based on market conditions existing at each
balance sheet date.

The Group uses the Binomial Model to determine
the fair value of share options issued during the
year. Under this model, the value of the share
options is subject to a number of assumptions
such as the risk-free interest rate, the expected
life of the options and historical volatility based
on annualised volatility of the closing price of
the share. Therefore the value may be subjective
and would change should any of the assumptions
change.
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Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (continued)

The policy for allowance for bad and doubtful
debts of the Group is based on the evaluation of
collectability and ageing analysis of receivables
and management’s judgement. A considerable
amount of judgement is required in assessing the
ultimate realisation of these receivables, including
the creditworthiness and the past collection
history of each customer.

Segment information

Segment information disclosed in the annual report
has been prepared in a manner consistent with the
information used by the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources between
segments. In this regard, the Group is organised into the
following segments: Properties development (for sale or
lease upon completion of construction work), Property
investment and leasing, Infrastructure, Alternative energy
and Other operations.

The Group’'s most senior executive management
assesses the performance of the operating segments
based on operating profit/(loss) after interest income
and expenses, taxation and share of profits/(losses) of
associated companies and joint ventures. Corporate
expenses mainly include the employee expenses of
the head office, interest income and expenses arising
from the holding companies and other administrative
expenses of the head office.

The Group’s segment assets exclude financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, available-for-sale
financial assets which are managed on a central basis.
These are part of the reconciliation to total balance
sheet assets. Corporate assets mainly include the
cash at bank, property, plant and equipment and other
receivables held by the head office. The assets of
each reportable segment comprise the inter-segment
receivables.
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5 Segment information (continued)
Sales between segments are carried out on terms
equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length
transactions. The revenue from external parties reported
to management is measured in a manner consistent
with that in the consolidated income statement. Total
segment revenue also represents the Group’s turnover.

The segment information for the reportable segments
for the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 is as

follows:
Properties development
NEYR
Shanghai
and
Ihejiang  Shenyang Tianjin ~ Jiangmen

LERAFIL ) Py iIf
HKS Million ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Million
EBET  EEER  EEER  FEEER

Year ended 31 December  HZ-2-1F

2015 TZA=+-ALEE
Revenue from external RENREF 2 e

customers 21.3 495.3 309.0 79.0
Inter-segment revenue Ak - - - -
Total revenue W88 213 495.3 309.0 790
Operating profit/{loss) %A/ (58 (432.5) (102.2) 135 23
Finance income EHHA 33 1.2 11 11
Finance costs BEKE - (11.2) (142) (75)

Share of profits less losses ~ TEGB &R
of associated companies AR - - - -
Share of profits less losses ~ E(EAE AT

of joint ventures wEE (228.3) - - -
Profit/{loss) before FrERaER/ (8)

income tax (657.5) (112.2) 0.4 (4.1)
Income tax (expensel/credit AR () /BS 99.7 (39.1) (14.3) 8.8)
Profit/[loss| for the year ~ AEEXH /(&) (557.8) (151.3) (13.9) (12.9)
Depreciation ik 0.2) 6.1) 0.2) (0.4)
Amortisation B4 - - (208) -
Fair value adjustments on LS

investment properties ATERR (411.7) - - -

Provision for impairment losses HEEERE (135.6) - -
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HKS Willion
BERER

DEER (@®)
DEEHEERERNFERZHERZ
EREMEREIT - MERERERE
INAR P Z W THiREgR S B
FTAE Bz ATE - ol
BENRRANEF 2 EHFE -

BE-F-—FER-F—ME+=
ISyl e
BABMT ;

Property Total
investment Alternative Other  reportable
and leasing Infrastructure energy  operations  segments
NERE B
REE EE  ERER  HfbEE  S9EE

HKS Million ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Milion ~ HKS Million
BEE%n  EE®n  BE®r  BE®n  BEER

152.0 719 1329 - 12734
0.4 - - 2.8 32
152.4 719 1329 2.8 1,276.6

91.8 326 258 105.9 (262.8)

12 02 66 19 166
A (645 (432) (08  (1488)
206 - 758 - %.4

- - - - 8y

106.2 (3L.7) 650 1000 (5269
(36) - 75 (352 (83)

102.6 (3L7) 51.5 718 (535.7)

03) 02 (13 08  (85)
L0 (196) 07) - (2.1)
(58.1) - - - (4698)
- - - - (1358)
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5 Segment information (continued) 5 D EE R @)
Properties development
NEER

Property Total

Shanghai and investment Alternative Other  reportable

Ihejiang  Shenyang Tianjin ~ Jiangmen  Shenzhen and leasing Infrastructure energy  operations  segments

NERE DS

RRIIT & RE il el REE BE  HRER  HttER  H%eR

HKS Million ~ HKS Milion ~ HKS Millon ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Milion ~ HKS Millon  HKS Million  HKS Million  HKS Million
BEET BERL BERT ASET BEET BEAL BEET  ASET  BEET  BEARL

As at 31 December RZ2-1F
2015 +-A=t+-AH
Total assets BEESR 8,336.8 2,168.8  3,226.7 675.7 1926 44059 1,110.1  2,069.9 6.4 22,1929
Total assets include: EEBRRE:
Interests in associated ~ MEEAFZER

companies - - - - - 458.4 - 7315 - 1,189.9
Interests in joint ventures A E AR 2 ER 1,892.1 - - - - - - - - 18921
Total liabilities RELE 2,696.6 16957  2,410.1 420.9 - 552.8  1,615.7 631.9 39.7 10,063.4
As at 31 December RoB-mE

2014 +=B=t-H
Total assets EELE 8,495.6 2,212.4 3,580.1 655.8 204.1 4,646.9 1,194.1 2,354.5 85 234120

Total assets include: BEREAE:
Interests in associated ~ FAEEAEZ R

companies - - - - - 473.7 - 749.6 - 1,223.3
Interests in joint ventures A E QA2 R 2.225.0 - - - - - - - - 2250
Total liabilies BE0E 20004 15782 26311 3728 - 6625 16977 7916 99 97932
A reconciliation of (loss)/profit for the year of reportable A EHH I ERN(EER) 5 F) R
segments to (loss)/profit for the year of the Group is REBBERN(EIE) SR EEMND
provided as follows: T :

2015 2014
—E-RF T4
HKS Million HKS Million
BEBT BEBT
(Loss)/profit for the year of A2/ EBFEARN(EER),
reportable segments bl (535.7) 42.6
Unallocated amounts: ROMEH
Corporate expenses, net ERTFRE (51.7) (50.2)
Gain on disposal of an associated BRFifE HEB S A a2
company, net of tax ek - 33.8
Gain on completion on liquidation ~ SEAXHIEB A AEE 2
of subsidiaries - net Wz ¥ 58 - 16.7
Intra group elimination SEAZPEH 7.3 6.4
150 (Loss)/profit for the year of the Group ANEEFE A (EE) 5@ F (580.1) 49.3
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Non-current assets other than available-for-sale financial
assets are mainly located in the Mainland China.

5 Segment information (continued) 5 o EBE R (@)
Reportable segments’ assets are reconciled to total RO EEEE EALEHERWN
assets as follows: T :
2015 2014
—E—-HF —ZT—NF
HKS Million HKS Million
BESBT BEBT
Total segment assets DEEEER 22,192.9 23,412.0
Head office assets BRI EEEE 825.5 863.3
Intra group elimination CSEIARIE SRS (1,784.1) (1,792.8)
Available-for-sale financial assets At HESRIEE 24.9 26.8
Financial assets at fair value through ¥z A FEEEZERVIEZ
profit or loss TREE 13.4 14.2
Total assets per consolidated IREBEaBERMY
balance sheet BELREE 21,272.6 22,523.5
Reportable segments’ liabilities are reconciled to total TE2fn e EHaEazEE R
liabilities as follows: T
2015 2014
—E—HF = bis e
HKS$ Million HKS Million
BEBT BEBT
Total segment liabilities nEBEER 10,063.4 9,793.2
Head office liabilities BIREREE 775.4 758.1
Intra group elimination CSEIARIESES (3,407.9) (3,124.0)
Total liabilities per consolidated e BEAERXRMY
balance sheet NGk 7,430.9 7,427.3
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5 Segment information (continued) 5 D EE R @)
Analysis of revenue by category: BOREE S 2 UMD HT
2015 2014
—E-AF —ZE—mF
HK$ Million HKS Million
BEBT BEBTT
Sales proceeds from properties HEREHE Y
held for sale P8 s IE 910.6 593.3
Rental income from investment KEMERS
properties WA 152.0 123.3
Alternative energy BREER 132.9 97.4
Infrastructure i 77.9 67.2
1,273.4 881.2
For the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, HE —_E—FREN_ZE—E+—
revenue from external customers is solely attributable A=+—HBIFEE AP 7K
to the China market and there is no revenue derived HEXRBFETYE KEKBFE—
from a single external customer exceeding 10% of total GNRB=B IS HBIE W EzE 7
revenue. 10% -
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Other income

Property management fee income

Rental income generated from
properties held for sale

Gain on disposal of prepaid land
lease payments and property,
plant and equipment - net

Gain on disposal of an associated
company

Gain on completion of liquidation
of subsidiaries — net

Write back of provision of
other payables

Net exchange gain

Profit on completed
construction contract

Costs reversal on completed
construction contracts

Fair value gain on financial assets
and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or
loss — net

Others

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

MESEEIRA
REIEHEREZWHEZ
A& U A
HEFEM LT HBEETIAR
M - WEERERE
WS — H 58
HEBERARZ

Uz
TERHBARERZ
U2k —H58

H b 5 TR A

o]

P& 5 W a5 R 58
ERTITREL

Y25

BB TEERLKRA
o]
BATEEBRRIEZ
EREERSHREE
N AW —FHE

Hit

Haug A
2015
—E-—TF
HKS$ Million
BEBT
19.0

12.7

91.5

27.0

16.8
3.8

176.4

2014
—T—mEF
HKS Million

BEET

22.5

12.8

0.4
36.9

16.7

25.6

2.7
120.3
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7

Provision for impairment losses on assets 7

Provision for impairment losses on

— prepaid land lease payments

— properties under development

(Note)
— properties held for sale

Note:

BERBERE
— T TSR
—BERPYE
(BfaE)
—(FIHERZZME

For the year ended 31 December 2014, certain of

the properties under development were classified as

properties held for sale.

Operating (loss)/profit

Operating (loss)/profit is arrived at after (charging)/

crediting the following items:

Employee benefit expenses (Note 10) & B 4& %52 (Bi7£10)

Employee share option benefits,
net (Note 10)

Amortisation
— prepaid land lease payments

(Note 16)

- intangible assets (Note 18)

Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment (Note 17)

Cost of inventories

Cost of properties sold

Direct operating expenses arising
from investment properties that
generate rental income

Auditor’s remuneration — audit
services

Operating lease payments

Net exchange (loss)/gain

Fair value gain/(loss) on financial
assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or
loss — net
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2015
—E-REF
HKS$ Million
BEBT

(104.5)
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(135.6)

2014

— U
HKS Million
AEBTT

(206.5)
(16.9)

(223.4)

M 82T - HmF+-A=1+—
AEFE ETHRRHAYRD
NRBIEHER R ZME -

g (EE) aRl

e (B8R, CRFIE (F0k) B R

THIER

2015
—E-REF
HK$ Million
BEET

(109.4)
(1.0)
(22.6)
(19.7)
(83.7)
(2.0)
(740.8)
(3.6)
(5.0)

(8.1)
(5.8)

NP EWE(BR) - F8

16.8

2014

—E U
HKS Million
BEBTT

(113.2)
(1.2)
(23.1)
(16.0)
(68.8)
(2.4)
(464.4)
(3.7)
(5.0

(8.4)
2.7

(18.8)



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

9 Finance income and costs

Interest expenses:

Bank loans wholly repayable
within 5 years

Bank loans not wholly repayable
within 5 years

Other loans wholly repayable
within 5 years

Other loans not wholly repayable
within 5 years

Less: amounts capitalised

Finance costs
Finance income

Net finance costs

MEFX
BARAFERNZE
BEZIRITER
BEARNAFERZE
B8 2 |ITER
ERAFALH
R HE R
BARDFAEE
B2 HE R

NSS

W EEAMEEER
BB A
BN

BB RAF R

Note: The capitalisation rate applied to funds borrowed was
between 3.50% to 6.90% (2014: 4.86% to 7.38%) per
annum during the year ended 31 December 2015.

B R U A R B & L AR
2015 2014
—E-HF —T-F
HKS$ Million HKS Million
BEBT AEBTT
(154.8) (136.3)
(77.8) (94.6)
(0.8) (0.9)
(20.1) (8.4)
(253.5) (240.2)
103.2 88.6
(150.3) (151.6)
32,5 48.8
(117.8) (102.8)

e - Bz2—_ZE—RHFE+_-_A=+—
AIEFE  SAERZESE
A BREARERTFIH0%E
6.90%( —Z—MF : 4.86%%
7.38%) °

BREREBOERLDR —B—AFFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

10 Employee benefit expenses 10

TE - HahEMEHN

BB BERET - FE

RIRERA— ERHR
&I ()

AL F AR

EREEmRMERFER

Wages, salaries and other benefits

Employee share option benefits, net

Pension costs — defined
contribution plan (Note)

Write back of unused annual leave

Charged to income statement, net

Note:

The Group uses the MPF scheme under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees
employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined contribution retirement
scheme administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF
scheme, the employer and its employees are each required
to make contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employee’s
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HKS$30,000 (HKS$25,000 prior to 1 June 2014). Contributions
to the scheme vest immediately. The Group’s contribution to
the employee pension schemes in the PRC is at a percentage
in compliance with the requirements of respective municipal
governments.
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EERTARAX
2015 2014
—E-RF —T-F
HKS$ Million HKS Million
BEBT BEBT
(108.0) (111.2)
(1.0) (1.2)
(1.5) (2.1)
0.1 0.1
(110.4) (114.4)

B&E -

AREZRBEL B MERRDS B %
B2 RERY —ABRELTE - /IR
BEEEEBKRIIZEZEE MR - &
BEtERERBYERATEZER
HHERAKR DS - RIFBEDRF S
BEINMHEREHAEZKRESHEBERA
Z5%REtEEHHEK BB A ZHH
Y ALA30,00078 T (= F—MFRA—
HZA/25,00087T) & LR - 584
FENEHENER - ARE AT E
BERAKSFE 2 HFTIIRT A
MERAFREZ B DAL o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRME
11 Five highest paid individuals 11 EEMEEsAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest FER - NEBRAEZESEH AT
in the Group for the year include four (2014: four) ME(ZZE—WNF : UR)EF - &
directors whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis ZE7ME 2R E4020 2 DR
presented in Note 40. The emoluments payable to the o FREMNG T —RZ(ZE—N
remaining one (2014: one) individuals during the year are F o —Z)AMATZEEMT
as follows:
2015 2014
—E-RF —T—mEF
HKS Million HKS Million
BEEBT BEATT
Salary and other benefits e REMmET 2.3 2.2
Discretionary bonus BIIEIEAL 0.4 0.3
Share-based compensation f&1pwE1E 0.1 0.1
2.8 2.6
The emoluments fell within the following bands: MEeFERITWT :
No of individuals
AE
2015 2014
—E-HF —F-MmF
Emoluments band (in HK dollar) AR R (GBT)
HKS2,500,001 — HKS3,000,000 2,500,001/&7C—
3,000,000/ ¢ 1 1

157
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e

12

PR ERAR BT RE

Income tax expense

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made
as the Group has no assessable profit for the years
ended 31 December 2015 and 2014. Mainland China
income tax includes corporate income tax which has
been provided on the estimated assessable profits of
subsidiaries operating in the Mainland China at 25%
(2014: 25%), and which withholding tax has been
provided at 10% (2014: 10%) on income sourced from
the Mainland China by the Group’s non-tax resident
enterprises, including profit on direct or indirect equity
transfer transactions, interest and dividend income
received and receivable.

Mainland China land appreciation tax is provided at
progressive rates ranging from 30% to 40% (2014:
30% to 40%) on the appreciation of land value, being
the proceeds of sale of properties less deductible
expenditures (including costs of land use rights and
property development expenditures).

BHIRT S %
P EAMATIF
B + i
BED

Current income tax
Mainland China income tax
Mainland China land
appreciation tax

Deferred income tax (Note 34)
Credited/(charged) to
the income statement

e,/ (k)

Note:

The share of income tax expense of associated companies
amounting to HKS14.7 million (2014: HKS$17.3 million) and
the share of income tax credit of joint ventures amounting to
HKS$75.1 million (2014: HKS2.4 million) are included in the
Group's share of profits less losses of associated companies
and share of profits less losses of joint ventures respectively.
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TP ST (P RE34)

12

FriEdix i
HRAEBRBZE T —AFN_
E-NF+_A=1T—HIFEL
BRRPEHN - KL ERFEFEF
BMAELBE - PEAMAER(E
REXEMEHR) ZREFEAME
LB RR] AR ERBUER) - B
25%( — T —PH4F ¢ 25%) 2 TR {E
BB MIEMBR IR ANEBIED
BREREEBFEAMMABRAZR
10%(=F— M4 : 10%) 2 B R{E
LR ERRERSERRES
B H2mM - B R EKFHE K
I BUA

r B P 3t o 3 3R B B Bt 30 THE AR
NMF30%E40%(=F—M4F : 30%
E40%) 2 REDEREME - LT
BRI EYRMERRE A
P (BYE L MR A R %
BRHAS)

2015 2014
—E-HF —ZE—O4F
HKS Million HKS Million
BHEBT BEBTT
(62.1) (50.7)
(43.3) (24.5)
(105.4) (75.2)
96.6 (93.5)

(8.8) (168.7)

CEX

BIEBERAZABHRIAER
14,700,000 & 7T ( — & — M %
17,300,000/ 7T) M fE {5 & & A 2 At
1S % 575,100,000 T (== —M
% : 2,400,000 7T) © DHIFFAREH
ZERBE N RS MRS E M ER A E
DAL FRER o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

12

Income tax expense (continued)

12

The tax of the Group’s profit/(loss) before income tax
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using
the weighted average tax rate applicable to profits/
(losses) of the consolidated entities as follows:

(Loss)/profit before income tax and
share of results of associated
companies and joint ventures

Tax credit/(charge) calculated at the
domestic rates applicable to
losses/(profits) in the respective
countries

Expenses not deductible for taxation
purposes

Income not subject to tax

Tax losses and temporary differences
not recognised

Utilisation of previously unrecognised
tax losses

Withholding tax on dividends from
associated companies

Mainland China land appreciation tax

Deferred tax (charged)/reversed on
undistributed profits

Tax expense

PrSBiAT (E1R) a7
AR FEIEEE AR R
CR-NCIE S

REAHEBERAZ
B8 Carl) i
EHHEAEZHIA
B, (k)

PRI Z
£H

BARTIA

REER Z IR B &
EHRER

£ F SE T AR HERR
HIAER

BERNRIRE IS 2
B

o B8 79 3 3t 4R (E A

ADEHEZELE
BIR(NE) BE

BIA

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 26.6%

(2014: 25.1%).

e o)
AEBEHINERN,(EE) Z2FH
TE - EAER A ONRE 5 B R i AR
BHOERRN(BE)ZEBWH
15 - ZREN

2015 2014
—E-I1f%F —TmF
HKS$ Million HKS Million
BEBT BHEBT
(439.4) 163.5
116.7 (41.1)
(88.6) (100.7)
46.1 30.7
(35.9) (27.7)

4.7 -

(6.0) (8.5)
(43.3) (24.5)
(2.5) 3.1

(8.8) (168.7)

MHEFEERRER26.6%(—F
—MF : 25.1%) °
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e ISR

13 Loss per share

Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the
loss attributable to equity holders of the Company
by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue during the year.

Loss attributable to equity
holders of the Company
(HKS Million)

Weighted average number
of ordinary shares
in issue (Million)

Basic loss per share
(HK cents per share)

HKC (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2015

13 BkEE

HE
2015
—E-REF
RARERFEA
FE(R B
(BEAT) (497.7)
BETLERZ
DN 5
(B&) 12,419.8
FREAREE
(=B (4.0)

BERERNBRIIREBEARAQF
R A ARIGEBERFR
EEITEBRZ NE IR

2014
O

(87.2)

11,308.5

(0.8)



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

13 Loss per share (continued)

Diluted loss per share is calculated by adjusting
the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding to assume conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares including the
share options. A calculation is made in order to
determine the number of shares that could have
been acquired at fair value (determined as the
average market share price of the Company’s
shares during the year) based on the monetary
value of the subscription rights attached to
outstanding share options. The number of shares
calculated as above is compared with the number
of shares that would have been issued assuming
the exercise of the share options.

Loss attributable to RAFE=FAA
equity holders of the Company  fE(5E51E
(HKS Million) (BEBT)

Effect of assumed conversion of %% # i E A 7]
convertible preference shares — Z&77 A IE L iE &

=

and convertible notes issued by AR 2 &

subsidiaries (HKS Million) (B&HBT)
Weighted average number of STEEREEEE

ordinary shares for calculation &3P H0#EF 15 %

of diluted loss per share (B&)
(Million)

Diluted loss per share FlEEER
(HK cents per share) (BFRBL)

13 SREA @

BEREEBERIEBBAER
1T T AR 2 DI 8
ARRPTE #E BT L B
(BREBRE) DD ELRM
A8 - BRETEIRER A
TTEBBREMMNRBEEZE
BEEFLD  AUEBETERE
URFE(BERSFALRR
Al D 2 ST SR E ) UL
BzBRMHBE - EXEE
et 81 B 5 HL (R AR BB AU
T2 BT 2 B8 A 1F
HLEs -

2015 2014
—E-hF —E—F
(497.7) (87.2)
(14.9) (16.0)
(512.6) (103.2)
12,419.8 11,308.5
(4.1) (0.9)
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e ISR

13 Loss per share (continued)

Diluted loss per share for the year ended 31
December 2015 did not assume the exercise
of the share options and bonus warrants of the
Company and the share options of a subsidiary
outstanding during the year since the exercise
would have an anti-dilutive effect.

Diluted loss per share for the year ended 31
December 2014 did not assume the exercise
of the share options and bonus warrants of the
Company and the share options, convertible notes
and subscription rights for convertible preference
shares of subsidiaries outstanding during the
year since the exercise would have an anti-dilutive
effect.

14 Dividends
The Board of Directors do not recommend the payment
of final dividend for the years ended 31 December 2014
and 2015.

15 Investment properties

At 1 January n—H—H
Currency translation differences MEH M E =
Additions NE

Transfer from prepaid land lease EEEN TSR

13

14

15

payments
Transfer from property, plant and #5473 « #eS M &E
equipment
Fair value adjustments, net N (E PR HRE
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H
Notes:
(a) At 31 December 2015, investment properties

in Mainland China of HK$7,170.9 million (2014:
HKS$6,861.4 million) were pledged as securities for the
Group's borrowings (Note 32).
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BRER @)

HE2_ZT—HRF+ A
“+—HLEFEEZERES
BERITEBRFAERITE
AN A AR R AT R R AR
RN —HEKEB AR 2B
IR AE@EITER
REEFE -

HE-_Z—DOF+ = A
Tt HALFEZzERESE
B EBRKFTEARNEARITE
2 AN B BB AR I AT F R R
BEEAREMB AR ZER
- A RBREERBRRRE
LRz RBEETE  BE
BiITFEAEREETE -

iR =

S TRENBE_TNOFEK
—E-AFTA=+t—HILFE
IR REAR S

BEWE
2015 2014
—E-51F —T—mEF
HKS$ Million HKS Million
BEBT BHEBTT
8,044.1 6,771.1
(431.6) (152.7)
1,087.0 1,039.9
- 29.1
- 5.2
(469.8) 351.5
8,229.7 8,044.1

Mo

(a) RZE—RF+-_A=1+—8H "
R R & (E 7,170,900,0007%
T(ZZ—Mm%E : 6,861,400,000
B ZIREME  BEALE
BFTEE R 2 B (H5E32) °
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15 Investment properties (continued) 15
Notes: (continued)

(b)

The Group’s interests in investment properties at their
carrying values and the lease terms are analysed as
follows:

In Mainland China, held on: R EAHRE :
Leases of between 10 to 50 years N F10&E50F 2 HE
Leases less than 10 years LPRIOFEZHE

Fair value hierarchy

An independent valuation of the Group’s investment
properties was performed by the valuer, Knight Frank
to determine the fair value of the investment properties
as at 31 December 2015 and 2014. The following table
analyses the investment properties carried at fair value
using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) in fair
value measurements.

Investment properties: BB -
— Commercial properties under —REBHNERS
development in Shanghai EEX/ES

— Commercial properties in Nanxun, — @@= b5« Z#I
Beijing, Shenzhen and Tianjin SN NHE S ES

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date
of the event or change in circumstances that caused the
transfer.

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3
during the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014.

REWE @)
MIsE - (88)
(b) AEERBEMECERZEHR
REELEBRSTHOT :
2015 2014
—ZE-AfF —E—mFE
HKS$ Million HKS Million
BEET AEATT
8,011.2 7,746.0
218.5 298.1
8,229.7 8,044.1
(c) NEEEFR
REBEREMENBLMHEL
TERMEMABEET BT
KEMER-_ZE—RAFR_Z
—ME+-_A=+—HB2ZA¥F
B TRERAENEEER
B ABR(EIFERFER=Z
IR ANFEYR 2R EEE
1T0H o
At At
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
R-ZE—HF RZZT—mF
+=-—A=+—-8B +=A=+—H
HKS Million HKS Million
BEBT BEABTT
5,993.1 5,622.2
2,236.6 2,421.9
A6 B B R A B o
EREROEREE B
E' ’ ﬁEﬂ/LLA&LHjZ\\qZ@H‘-
HEZT—AK-_T—NOF+=
ﬂf-i— EIJJ:EF %1 2K3
oz TN B o
EREZ(ZER)BERAR ZE—hFEFR
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e

15

AR SR M

Investment properties (continued)

The Group measures its investment properties at fair
value. The fair value of the Group’s investment properties
at 31 December 2015 and 2014 has been determined
on the basis of valuations carried out by an independent
qualified valuer not related to the Group, who holds a
recognised relevant professional qualification and has
recent experience in the locations and segments of
the investment properties valued. The Group employed
Knight Frank to value its investment properties. For
all investment properties, their current use equates
to the highest and best use. Discussion of valuation
processes and results are held between the Group’s
senior management and valuers at least once every
six months, in line with the Group’s interim and annual
reporting dates. At each reporting date the Group's
senior management:

- verifies all major data inputs to the independent
valuation report;

- assess property valuations movements when
compared to the prior period valuation report;

- holds discussions with the independent valuer.

Changes in Level 3 fair values are also analysed at each
reporting date by the Group’s senior management.
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15

BEVE@®)

REEZATFEFEHEEREDE -
AEBR-_Z—RAFR_ZT—NOF
T A=+—BZ2REMEZLF
BENREARNEEYEEE B A
ERHEMETNHEMSDH @ %
HEMFAEEERITEEER - I
B FT L BRI E W) 3 69 10 B4 A0 QR 13
B  ANEBEZEHRFEHH
CEYEEITHE - HEREY
¥ms HENEARASERERS
MEEBH - BEEEASERNTH
MFEERELH  AEE2aRE
BERMGEMKOENEARE —
R A EREMEBEER - B
EHREHH  AEEzaHER
:

- REBYVGHERSNAAEE
REEBE@HA

- AHEMERGEERBEHRMG
ERE LB TOEE)

— BEBYVHERET o
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AR SR M

Investment properties (continued)

Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs

Fair values of completed commercial properties in
Nanxun, Shenzhen and Tianjin are generally derived by
using the income capitalisation method. This valuation
method is based on the capitalisation of the net
income and reversionary income potential by adopting
appropriate capitalisation rates, which are derived
from analysis of market transactions and valuers’
interpretation of prevailing investor expectations. The
prevailing market rents adopted in the valuation have
been referenced to recent lettings, within the subject
properties and other comparable properties.

Fair value of completed commercial properties in Beijing
is generally derived by using the income capitalisation
method with reference to its profit rent originated from
the lease term interest and its rights in sub-letting and/or
transferring the lease term interest of the property.

Fair values of commercial properties under development
in Shanghai are derived by using the residual method.
This valuation method is essentially a means of valuing
the property by reference to its development potential by
deducting development costs together with developer’s
profit and risk from the estimated capital value of the
proposed development assuming completed as at the
date of valuation.

There were no changes to the valuation techniques for
the valuation for the years ended 31 December 2015 and
2014.

15

BEWMEm)

R AE AR BR MR ABETT
WATFEIE

KR RIRRR L B RS
UELPNG BTN - £
BT - W EEDERBBRA
B AL E - EERAF
BRAERRAFNENE - AL
ELL % Ty BIBE 45 52 B & fh EEAD
DINRITREE 2 HETHEL - &
S R A 34T T A YA
3 R E AR 3 03 BT
R -

RIERZEZXBRDENRAFE
BERBRABREIEE  A2E
HEHMESENES Uy HE
R/ SR E PR -

RESNBERTERVDENAFE
RAMREZEIEE - WHETDEEXE
RASEZYMENERE N MEEE
TRHRENTTE  EEEFREERR
B(BREVEERZER)NERE
R ANRR 2 R A A K R e A E
KB o

HE T RAFR_FT—WNF+=
A=+t—HIEEZHENGEER
Mo RE (] B o
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15 Investment properties (continued)

15 REWEE (@)

RAEREZEENGARIBET

Fair value measurements using significant

unobservable inputs (continued) HAFESTE(HE)
Range of
unobservable Relationship of
Unobservable inputs (probability- unobservable
Description inputs weighted average) inputs to fair value
ELBEEH\HEEE ELBERHAHER
RE BLRRBAYE (BEMETHE) AVENBRE
Commercial properties in Market unit rate RMB26,700 (2014: RMB26,700) square The higher the market unit rate,
Shanghai meter for retail portion, and RMB53,000 the higher the fair value
(2014: RMB60,700) square meter for
office portion and RMB250,000 (2014:
RMB250,000) per unit for carparks
REBZEENE miFEER SEAAETARARE2,7007 mHENEERR
(254 - AR%26,7007T) ATERR
HABAGTAANRED3 0007
(25— : AR%60,7007)
kEAEREN ARE250,000
(Z5-mF : \R%250,0007)
Interest rate 4.75% (2014 6.00%) The higher the interest rate,
the lower the fair value
il 4.75% (Z5—|% : 6.00%) fkas  ATERE
Estimated costs to RMB929.6 million The higher the estimated costs,
completion (2014: RMB1,649.0 million) the lower the fair value
B InA AR%929,600,0007( =5 —1% : RitfARR  ATERE
AE1,649,000,0007)
Estimated profit margin -~ 8.00% (2014: 8.00%) The higher the profit margin,
required of the the lower the fair value
development

Commercial properties in
Nanxun, Beijing, Shenzhen

Income capitalisation

BRMT EATER
Capitalisation rate

8.00% (=T Mm% : 8.00%)
4.85% - 6.75%
(2014: 4.85% - 6.75%)

fExaR  ATEAR
The higher the capitalisation
rate, the lower the fair value

and Tianjin
WEE R FIRKE  WAERE N [digs 4.85% - 6.75% BN ERR - ATERE
LEENE (25— : 4.85% - 6.75%)
Average market rental RMB0.9 - RMB8.6 (2014: RMB0.9-RMB8.3)  The higher the daily rental value,
(square meter per day)  per square meter per day the higher the fair value
Tmsae BRETARARRIITZARES 6T BHEERERR
(8RE¥AR) (Z5-Im%: \R¥0I91Z ATERR
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16

At 1 January

Currency translation differences
Additions

Disposal

Transfer to properties held for sale
Transfer to investment properties

Transfer to properties under
development

Transfer from construction in progress

(ain on revaluation
Provision for impairment loss
Amortisation

- Capitalised in properties under

development

- Charged to income statement

(Note 8)
At 31 December

In Mainland China, held on:
Leases of over 50 years

Leases of between 10 to 50 years

Prepaid land lease payments
The Group’s interest in leasehold land and land use rights
representing prepaid operating lease payments and their
net carrying values is analysed as follows:

R—A—H
EXBREEE

AE

&
BHERHEREZNE
BHERAMZE
BHERRTNE

BRARETR

Bl

REEERE

3
—ERERTYE

EXfE
—ERERENR
(HI&E8)

Rt-A=+-H

R ERIEE :
HBS0FZHE
NTF10Z50F 2 HE

HKS15.3 million (2014: HK$79.9 million) (Note 32).

16 FAMNTHBEER
A= BRI E L R+ 0 A2

ERIERMEERER - HEMmF
BT :
2015 2015 2014 2014
—E-5f —E-IF —Z-F —2-F
HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million
BEBR BB BEBT BEAT
1,720.8 2,601.6
(90.4) (57.6)
185.7 110.8
(4.1) -
- (377.4)
- (29.1)
(98.6) (499.9)
- 4.1
- 16.7
(104.5) -
(23.1) (25.3)
(22.6) (45.7) (23.1) (48.4)
1,563.2 1,720.8
1,196.5 1,288.8
366.7 432.0
1,563.2 1,720.8

Certain bank borrowings are secured by the Group’s
prepaid land lease payments with carrying values of

A& ERRME{EL5,300,000%& T (=
T -4 : 79,900,000 T) 2 18

N AERD BERUBGE TR
TR (MEE32) ©

BREREBOERLDR —B—AFFH

167



17 Property, plant and equipment 17 W% - HBERFRE

168

HKC (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2015

/




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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17 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2015 BECE-RET-A=T-ALEE
(Opening net book amount ENEEFE

Currency translation differences EANEES

Additions hE

Cost adjustments RAHE

Disposals HE

Depreciation ik

Closing net book amount EREEEE

At 31 December 2015 R-E-RFTZR=1-H
Cost B

Accumulated depreciation and impairment ZNERAE

Net book amount REFE

Certain bank borrowings are secured by certain of the
Group’s properties, plant and equipment with carrying
values of HKS$1,111.4 million (2014: 1,246.7 million)
(Note 32).

The Group’s interests in land and buildings at their
carrying values and the lease terms are analysed as

17 % - BERFRHE@®m

Electric

utility plant Other
Construction and  plantand  Land and
inprogress  equipment  equipment  buildings Total

KERR At
kRIR Hh BERYE DLRET g
HKS Milion ~— HKS Millon — HKS Milion~ HKS Milion ~ HKS Milion
BEdnr  BEST  BEET BEET BEER

05 11686 122 1020  1,2833
- (61.4) (0.8) (L3) (63.5)

0.6 1.0 1.6 - 32
- 0.2 - - 0.2
- - (0.3) - (0.3)

(725 (85 27 (837
11 1,039 42 980 11392

L1 15148 89.2 1189 17240
(478.9) (85.0) (20.9)  (584.8)

L1 1,039 4.2 980 11392

A& ERE(E]L111,400,000% 7T

—Z—mM% :1,246,700,000% 7T)
ZETYER  HBREERESEFA
BUSE TRITER(MEE32)

AREBERREEES R L3 Mg
FZEGEARERADHFOT

follows:
2015 2014
—E-RF —ZT—4%
HKS Million HKS Million
BEBT BEBT
In Hong Kong, held on: REBFE

Leases of between 10 to 50 years /1M F10E=50F 2 HHE 75.9 78.0

In Mainland China, held on: R EAHEE :
Leases of between 10 to 50 years N F10=50F 2 & 22.1 24.0
98.0 102.0

BREREBOERLDR —B—AFFH
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RE R
18 Intangible assets 18 EFEEE
Concession Other
rights - intangible
Goodwill toll road assets Total
e -
5L KEAE HtEVEE aE
HKS Million ~ HK$ Million ~ HKS Million  HKS Million
BEBT HEBTL BEBT BERBTL
At 1 January 2014 RZZ-mFE-A—H
Cost A 409.5 1,773.2 0.8 2,1835
Accumulated amortisation 2ErH#ER
and impairment BE (409.5) (546.8) (0.4) (956.7)
Net book amount FEFE - 1,226.4 0.4 1,226.8
Year ended BE-Z-MmE
31 December 2014 +=f=t-BLEE
Opening net book amount FNEDFE - 1,226.4 0.4 1,226.8
Currency translation differences EHREER - (27.1) - (27.1)
Amortisation (Note 8) B3 (H7E8) - (15.9) (0.1) (16.0)
Closing net book amount FREmFE - 1,183.4 0.3 1,183.7
At 31 December 2014 RZZ-ME
+=B=1+-H
Cost YA 409.5 1,733.8 0.8 2,144.1
Accumulated amortisation Z5T#ER
and impairment A (409.5) (550.4) (0.5) (960.4)
Net book amount EEFE - 1,183.4 0.3 1,183.7
Year ended B2-ZT-1f
31 December 2015 +-A=t-HLEE
Opening net book amount FONEDFE - 1,183.4 0.3 1,183.7
Currency translation differences EHMEZE - (65.7) - (65.7)
Amortisation (Note 8) #in (M58 - (19.6) (0.1) (19.7)
Closing net book amount FREmFE - 1,098.1 0.2 1,098.3
At 31 December 2015 R-Z-1F
+=ZB=+-H
Cost YA 409.5 1,636.3 0.8 2,046.6
Accumulated amortisation RETEHR
and impairment WA (409.5) (538.2) (0.6) (948.3)
Net book amount EHFE - 1,008.1 0.2 1,098.3
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e IR
19 Properties under development 19 BEPYE
2015 2014
—E-REF —E—F
HKS$ Million HKS Million
BEBRT BEBT
Properties under development EERAMERSE :
comprise:
Construction costs and BEK AR K
capitalised expenditure BEARRR 1,162.3 1,636.3
Prepaid land lease payments TEfT AR E 5K 277.5 563.2
1,439.8 2,199.5
Less: current portion B mENEL D (950.7) (1,554.7)
489.1 644.8
The properties under development are all located in the BERAYED IR BEAM -
Mainland China.
Properties under development of HK$950.7 million ¢ & 4 % 950,700,000/8 7t (=
(2014: HKS1,554.7 million) are expected to be Z—P4F :1,554,700,0007& )&
completed and available for sale within next twelve HIMAR+ @A RFERK + BAJ#H
months. At 31 December 2015, certain bank HE N ZE—FHF+_A=1+—
borrowings are secured by the Group’s properties under B AN&EBERMEEL43,900,000%
development with carrying values of HK$443.9 million T(ZZF—M4F :1,433,200,000/%
(2014: HK$1,433.2 million) (Note 32). T ZERPYEEEBURGE

TRITER(MEE32) »
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ARE SRR M EE

20 Subsidiaries 20 KB E]
The total non-controlling interests as at 31 December R-E—FRF+-_A=1+—H2ZI
2015 is HK$2,081.4 million (2014: HK$2,391.8 million), TEH%ZEE, 158 /32,081,400,0005%

of which HK$677.4 million (2014: HK$800.3 million)
is for China Renewable Energy Investment Limited and
HKS1,465.2 million (2014: HKS$1,670.2 million) is
attributed to Shanghai Guangtian Real Estate Development
Company Limited. The profit allocated to non-controlling
interests of China Renewable Energy Investment Limited
is HK$25.4 million (2014: HKS$29.7 million) and the
loss allocated to non-controlling interests of Shanghai
Guangtian Real Estate Development Company Limited is
HKS116.2 million (2014: the profit allocated is HKS128.1
million) for the year ended 31 December 2015. The
ownership interests held by non-controlling interests of
China Renewable Energy Investment Limited and Shanghai
Guangtian Real Estate Development Company Limited are
45.87% and 40% as at 31 December 2015 and 2014.
The non-controlling interests in respect of these subsidiary
companies are material to the Group.

Set out below are the summarised financial information
(before inter-company eliminations) for each subsidiary
that has non-controlling interests that are material to the
Group.

Summarised income statement for the year ended
31 December

China Renewable Energy

EE 2 391 800 000
H 677, 400 OOO /’é 7T
(== m¢ 800,300, OOOJ%?E)
%¢lﬁ$mﬁ&§ﬁ@ EIPS
1,465,200,0008 c( ZZE— P 4F :
1,670,200,0008 t) %k 8 £t /B E
HEMWERZARAR - HZ2—-F
—hRF+-_A=+—HIEFE &
YRR BLEREREARARZ
JEIZ B% M = W 0 H & 25,400,000
/%75( ZT—m4E 29,700, OOO
JT) m%tAﬁE%mFﬁ
%E@@ﬁZ#Tk% SEE A
116,200,000 0 ( = — U4 :
B E A A128,100,000%8 7T ) °
RZEBE—RFER-_ZT—NFE+_A
E+—E’¢ﬁﬁiﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁ
T&bﬂfﬁﬂ%i@?ﬁﬁ?‘ﬁﬁﬁ@
T#?k% S B T B EERD
E'Ji%45 87% K 40% - & B % & K
RAIZFFEREREAEEMS
%EK

TXHIABUAEBMEEEX
ZIFEB R 2B ARSEARA
AR HER B ERRE

BE+-A=+—HLEFEZER
REE

Shanghai Guangtian
Real Estate Development

Investment Limited Company Limited
HEBLERERRERRAE LEERRHERRERAR
2015 2014 2015 2014
“Z-%F e S fa3 —E-5fF “E-mE
HKS$ Million HKS Million  HKS Million HKS Million
BEER BEBTT BEER BEAT
Revenue e 132.9 97.3 - -
Profit/(loss) for the year KEEEF/ (BR) 39.4 13.0 (290.4) 320.3
Total comprehensive 2E(BR)/ WA
(loss)/income ek (55.1) (32.5) (512.4) 230.6
Dividends to non-controlling ~ JERAFEHEALIERS
interests RE - - - -
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e IR
20 Subsidiaries (continued) 20 K2R @)
Summarised balance sheet as at 31 December RTZRA=+—HzZzEEEEX
BE
Shanghai Guangtian
China Renewable Energy Real Estate Development
Investment Limited Company Limited
HEBERRREERAR TEERARHEREERAT
2015 2014 2015 2014
—2-3f —T-@WF C—B-1f —T-[@F
HKS$ Million HKS Million  HKS Million HKS Million
BEBT BEATL BEBT BEAT
Non-current assets FREEE 2,005.6 2,188.5 6,061.7 5,716.0
Current assets MENEE 257.1 388.4 190.4 351.8
Total assets BEAE 2,262.7 2,576.9 6,252.1 6,067.8
Non-current liabilities FnBBE 504.9 624.0 2,066.0 1,473.0
Current liabilities mEaE 150.8 194.0 523.9 420.2
Total liabilities Gfe@sE 655.7 818.0 2,589.9 1,893.2

Summarised cash flows for the year ended
31 December

Shanghai Guangtian

China Renewable Energy Real Estate Development
Investment Limited Company Limited
FEBERERRERRAR LEEAEHERRERAR
2015 2014 2015 2014
ZB-0F —E-ImF —B-IF it Sifo2

HKS$ Million HKS Million  HKS Million HKS Million
BEET BEBT BEBET BEBT

Net cash generated from/ MEERHE/(FA)

(used in) operating activites ~ BR& 5% 130.7 66.2 (8.7) 14.7
Net cash generated from/ BREEBHME/(FTA)
(used in) investing activities Re 58 8.6 335 (904.2) (918.1)
Net cash (used in)/generated ~ BEEEEN(FTA),/Fi5
from financing activities BeF8 (225.9) (88.3) 855.8 915.3
Net (decrease)/increase in cash ¥4 K3 &Z(EY
and cash equivalents (Rd)/BinFaE (86.6) 11.4 (57.1) 11.9
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are set out on FTEMBRRIZHBENE214F
pages 214 to 221. 2218 °
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21 Interests in associated companies 21 RAEBENTZER
2015 2014
—_E—FE —E—F
HKS$ Million HKS Million
BHE®BT BEBTT
Group’s share of net assets AEBRGEEEFE 1,050.6 1,084.0
Amount due from an associated JiE U — R Bt & A B
company, net FIRF R 139.3 139.3
1,189.9 1,223.3
Amount due from an associated company is unsecured, JE Ul — FET B 2 R B FRIB 0 A R
interest free and not repayable within the next twelve RERBARAR+TZEARNE
months. The carrying amount approximates its fair B oRMEEHENTERSE - E4
values. The balance is denominated in Hong Kong dollar. BRABTTEE -
The following financial information, after making THHBER (BFTEARSEENX
adjustments to conform to the Group's significant FHEEMARE) RRASES
accounting policies, represents the Group’s aggregate HELBEEAR(2HABIIELTD
share of revenue and results of associated companies, F) WA T ¢

all of which are unlisted, and is summarised as below:

2015 2014

—E-51F —FmF

HKS$ Million HKS Million

BEBT BEBT

Revenue & 273.5 271.4
Profit before income tax PS5 A& A 111.1 82.7
Income tax expense IS i (14.7) (17.3)
Profit for the year RF[E 5 F 96.4 65.4
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e

21

MR
Interests in associated companies 21 REE QTR @
(continued)
Hong Kong Construction SMC Development Limited, EEEXREEEEARAR - PE
CECIC HKC (Gansu) Wind Power Company Limited geEE(HER)RIREEEA TR
and CECIC HKC Wind Power Company Limited are the hEfRERER N BE(RIL)ERA
associated companies that are material to the Group. AAEAEEmMSBE A 2SN
E—J o
Details of principal associated companies are set out on FTEBMERRZAFBEHRFE222
page 222. H o
Set out below are the summarised financial TXEHEKREENR) ZHIEER
information for the material associated companies. HE - AHEERNRMEBE N NTH
The information reflects the amounts presented in BIFRERR N2 5B FREE - W FEA
the financial statements of the associated companies EFHEBE N NTZEEHRENE
adjusted for differences in accounting policies between BIEEFHE -
the Group and the associated companies.
Summarised income statement for the year ended BFEt+-HA=t+—BLFEEzEZR
31 December xEE
Hong Kong CECIC HKC (Gansu) CECIC HKC
Construction SMC Wind Power Wind Power
Development Limited Company Limited Company Limited Total
EEERAR HERAR(HEED T ARENRE
YEERLA EERLR (FL)ERAR b
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Z8-1f “5-MF -%-Rf S5-I C-B-REF _5-MF C-B-RF 5-IF
HKS Million ~ HKS Milion  HKS Million ~ HKS Milion  HKS Million ~ HKS Milion  HKS Million ~ HKS Milion
EE%n AEAT EBBn  EBEAL  AEMR  EEEr  BEMR  BEARN
Revenue W& 102.2 108.3 2813 198.6 226.0 6.6 609.5 5535
Profit for the year BEFAT 515 102 1197 469 60.5 86.3 317 1434
Other comprehensive loss A2AER (89.9) 26.9) (17.0) (179 (46.8) (182 (153.7) (63.0)
Total comprehensive (oss)/income 2 (FlE) /KhALE (38.4) (167 1027 29,0 137 68.1 78.0 804
Dividends from the associated BN
companies LRE - 2.7 15.6 U1 320 429 476 87.7

BREREBOERLDR —B—AFFH
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21 Interests in associated companies 21 MREEQT 2R @)
(continued)
Summarised balance sheet as at 31 December RT-BA=1+—HZEEEERXRE
=
Hong Kong CECIC HKC (Gansu) CECIC HKC
Construction SMC Wind Power Wind Power
Development Limited Company Limited Company Limited Total
BRERER THEEE(HE)E N TR ARRNRE
YRARAH REARAR (FL)ERAR g
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Z%-Bf “5-WF -%-BF S5-I C-%-EF _5-MF C-%-RF 5-IF
HKS Million ~ HKS Milion  HKS Million ~ HKS Milion  HKS Million ~ HKS Millon  HKS Million ~ HKS Millon
EE%n AEAT EEBn  EBEEAL  FEEER  EEEr BEBR EERRn
Non-current assets AR 14315 15303 13124 14776 12217 13734 39656 43813
Current assets THEE 94.8 493 236.1 3449 162.3 256.9 493.2 651.1
Total assets LEEE 15263 15796 15485 18225 13840 16303 44588 50324
Non-current liabilties ESEIEL 103.7 699.4 - - - - 103.7 699.4
Current liabilities e 2.9 442 7362 10439 658.4 8426 14195  1930.7
Total liabilities alEeg 128.6 7436 7362 10439 658.4 8126 21232 26301
Net assets BETE 191.7 836.0 812.3 7186 725.6 817 2336 24023
Reconciliation of the summarised financial BASEEREERBE A AERM
information presented to the carrying amount of the FREE SR B 75 & B E ¥ RR 10
Group’s interests in its material associated companies: ™
Hong Kong CECIC HKC (Gansu) CECIC HKC
Construction SMC Wind Power Wind Power
Development Limited Company Limited Company Limited Total
BRERER hE AR (HE)E S TR ARENRE
YRARDE REERAR (FL)ERAR g
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Z§-EF “5-NF -E-BF -5 C-5-EF -5-F CE-REF 5-If
HKS Million ~ HKS Milion  HKS Million ~ HKS Milion ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Millon  HKS Million ~ HKS Million
EE%T BEAT EEBT  BEAn  FAERRT  BEEEr  EERR BERn
Closing net assets EREEFE 191.7 836.0 812.3 718.6 125.6 1817  2,335.6 24023
Group's share of net AEEEGEE
assets (40%) FE(40%) 319.1 3344 324.9 3115 290.2 315.1 934.2 91.0
Amount due from an associated R —FBE LA
company, net FEFE 139.3 139.3 - - - - 1393 1393
176 Carrying amount A 458.4 473.7 3249 3115 290.2 3151 10735 11003
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21

22

Interests in associated companies
(continued)

The Group has interests in a number of individually
immaterial associated companies. The following table
analyses, in aggregate, the share of profit and other
comprehensive income/(loss) and carrying amount of
these associated companies.

21 REBERT

AEER % EE 5 I IF & K A9 B

MAT%H%*OT%%fMM
EHE NN &EEMEEY

A (E18) REREEM DT o

2015 2014
—E-HF —TmE
HKS$ Million HKS Million
BHEBT BEBT
Share of profit for the year &5 R F [ 55 F 3.7 8.0
Share of other comprehensive loss fE{5E b2 EEE (6.8) (4.2)
Share of total comprehensive EiEEmE(EER) WA
(loss)/income #aza (3.1) 3.8
Carrying amount of interests RZEHE AR Z
in these associated companies w2 BRAE 116.4 123.0
Interests in joint ventures 22 NEERTIZER
2015 2014
—E-AfF —F—-F
HKS Million HKS Million
BEBRT BEBT
Group's share of net assets AEEEGEEFE 1,672.8 2,003.8
Amount due from a joint venture Y —FE& & A RIFIE 219.3 221.2
1,892.1 2,225.0
As at 31 December 2015, amount due from a joint R_E— EE‘T' A=+—8 &
venture is unsecured, of which HK$208.5 million (2014: KWEEQNRIFIBAEERNIE - H

HKS204.7 million) is interest bearing at 5% (2014:
8%) per annum and the remaining balance is interest
free. The balance is denominated in Renminbi and not
repayable within the next twelve months.

There are no material contingent liabilities relating
to the Group’s interest in the joint ventures and no
contingent liabilities within the respective entities as at
31 December 2015 and 2014.

43208,500,000/’%75(_2( a4
204,700,000 7% 7T ) = F F & 5%
% 8%)EE - SR TERR
2B - ARk ﬁ%b&/\ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂﬁ
ARRRT —EAREE -

R-ZFB-—HAER-_FT-—NFE+_HA
_-1— B YTEEBEAKERGE

RE| 2R ZERNREE - M
HEESARTEXRBE-
BEEER(ER)ERLF —B-HFFH
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e

22

AR SR M

Interests in joint ventures (continued)

The following financial information represents the
Group’s aggregate share of results of the joint ventures
and is summarised as below:

Loss before income tax FriSFi Rl &8
Income tax credit S fiE e
Loss for the year AEEEE

Shanghai Jingang North Bund Real Estate Company
Limited is the joint venture that is material to the Group.

The Group has interests in a number of individually
immaterial joint ventures. The share of results of these
joint ventures for the years ended 31 December 2015
and 2014 and the share of their carrying amounts as at
31 December 2015 and 2014 are nil.

Details of the principal joint ventures are set out on page
223.

Set out below are the summarised financial information
for the joint venture that is material to the Group. The
information reflects the amounts presented in the
financial statements of the joint venture adjusted for
differences in accounting policies between the Group and
the joint venture.

HKC (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2015

REENT 2R @)
THHBEERRMAEES HEMN
BRENBZEEBMINT

2015 2014
—E-HF —E—UF
HKS Million HKS Million
BHEAR BEBT
(303.4) (13.3)
75.1 2.4
(228.3) (10.9)

tESBIINEEXBRAF /Y
AEBEMSEBERNGERT -

AEBRZEBBLTIEEANE L
NABEER HE-_T—AFK
—E-NFE+-_A=1+—HIFE
ERZEAERAEERR T
—hER_E—NF+=-_A=+—
HEMZEALEAREAELAT -

TERLERAZHBHEHRF223
"o

BN

TXEIHEAEEMERBEANS
LRARPBERRE - BAERK
RS & R R B 7% Rk 251’
B UTERAREESERR]ZHE
SRR ERFELFE
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Interests in joint ventures (continued)
Material joint venture (continued)

Summarised income statement for the year ended
31 December

22

REE DT 2L m)
EXESE DT E)
BEt+-A=+—HLEEEZESH
REE

2015
—E-RE
HK$ Million
HEBT

(913.2)
(460.6)

FRER(EB)ERRAR —B-—HFFR
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B S 3R 2R MY EE
Interests in joint ventures (continued) 22
Summarised balance sheet as at 31 December
Non-current assets JEMBEE
Current assets MENE B
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEEEY
Others HAh
Total current assets MENVE E AR
Non-current liabilities EMBEE

Financial liabilities (excluding AR EEEN
trade and other payables and R SR L Ath FE T 5K
provisions) LA K #8485 )

Others HAh

Total non-current liabilities E S EIR=NEFEL
Current liabilities mEE &

Financial liabilities (excluding cRtBECrBRIEEN
trade and other payables and R 3R L Ath FE T 5K
provisions) LA K #8485 )

Others Hth

Total current liabilities B A B
Net assets B ERE

REENT 2R @)

RT-ZA=+—HzEERER
BE

Shanghai Jingang
North Bund Real Estate
Company Limited

EsEBENEEXERAT
2015 2014
—E-RF —F-mF
HKS$ Million HKS Million
HEBT BEBIT
13,001.7 13,310.0
323.5 560.0
3.4 4.2
326.9 564.2
2,915.3 2,232.6
962.8 1,324.5
3,878.1 3,557.1
2,759.2 2,301.8
2,759.2 2,301.8
6,691.3 8,015.3



22

Interests in joint ventures (continued) 22 REEQTZER @

Material joint venture (continued) BEAREENT(E)

Reconciliation of the summarised financial information BAREBNREE XS LN AR
presented to the carrying amount of the Group’s interest IREEF RIS E R E SR
in its material joint venture: T

2015
—E-HF
HKS Million

BEEET
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23 Available-for-sale financial assets

At 1 January R—H—H
Currency translation differences PEHIRE =5E
Disposal =
Net gains recognised in equity iR 2 Wz
(Note 31) =8 (PMRE3L)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8”
Available-for-sale financial AN ECRHEERRE
assets include the following: T5%18 :
Unlisted securities IELEmFES
Equity securities — PRC EARFES— &
Club debentures gHES

Available-for-sale financial assets are denominated in the
following currencies:

Hong Kong dollars BIT
Renminbi AR
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23 UHHESHMEE

2015
—ZE-AfF
HKS$ Million
BEBT

26.8
(1.0)
(1.5)

0.6
24.9

17.7
7.2

24.9

2014
—E—O4F
HKS Million

BEBIT

26.1
(0.4)
(1.0)

2.1
26.8

19.6
7.2

26.8

AHEESREENTIEE

18 :

2015
—E-REF
HKS$ Million
BHEBT

6.7
18.2

24.9

2014
—T-mF
HKS Million

BHEBTT

6.7
20.1

26.8
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e ISR

24 Financial instruments by category

Assets as per consolidated
balance sheet
At 31 December 2015

Available-for-sale financial
assets (Note 23)

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
(Note 26)

Amount due from an associated
company, net (Note 21)

Amount due from a joint venture
(Note 22)

Trade and other receivables
under current assets
(Note 27)

Other receivables under
non-current assets
(Note 27(h))

Restricted cash (Note 28)

Short-term bank deposits

Cash and cash equivalents
(Note 29)

Total
At 31 December 2014

REEEEEX
ZEE
R-Z—h%F
+-RA=+—H
AL ESHEE
(BizE23)
BRATEEBERIRZ
SREE (HF26)

- AARE
548 (21
A%
08 ([3£22)
FBAEDRERESR
TR (H327)

FRBEETNEM
FENR (BH5E27(h))

RIS & (f17128)

RHRITIER

ReRRLZEY
(F#zE29)

B

Sk
+=A=+—A

Available-for-sale financial assets At HE4 fEE

(Note 23)

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
(Note 26)

Amount due from an associated
company, net (Note 21)

Amount due from a joint venture
(Note 22)

Trade and other receivables
under current assets
(Note 27)

Other receivables under
non-current assets
(Note 27(h))

Restricted cash (Note 28)

Cash and cash equivalents
(Note 29)

Total

(M#E23)
BATERBRRIIR
eREE(M5E26)

R —RIB D AR
AR (MEE21)

i —EARELH
R (MEE22)

TME)E B YRR AR
RE MR (HFE2T7)

FRBBETHL
FEMR (B 5E27(h))

SR HIRE (H5E28)
(B3£29)
BE

24

Loans

and
receivables
¢34
e

HKS Million
BEBT

139.3
219.3

176.2

20.2
614.5
4.3

974.2
2,148.0

139.3
221.2

229.8

22.6
765.0

1,102.8
2,480.7

BERES2EMTA

Assets at
fair value Available
through for-sale
profit or financial
loss assets Total
BRATEE
BERIE AHREE
ZEE SREE k)

HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million
BERTL BEATL BEAETL

- 24.9 24.9

13.4 - 13.4
- - 139.3
- - 219.3

- - 176.2

- - 20.2
- - 614.5
- - 43

- 974.2
13.4 24.9 2,186.3

= 26.8 26.8

14.2 = 14.2
= = 139.3
- - 221.2

- - 229.8
- - 22.6

= = 765.0

- 1,102.8
14.2 26.8 2,521.7

BREREBOERLDR —B—AFFH
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24 Financial instruments by category 24 ZERESZERTIAE@m)
(continued)

Liabilities at
fair value Other financial
through liabilities at
profit or loss amortised cost Total
BATEE REHERAK
BRRIIE FEZHM

28 SREE “E
HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million
BEBT BEBT BEBT
Liabilities as per consolidated BREEBEXR
balance sheet 28
At 31 December 2015 RZE—RF+=-A=+—H
Borrowings (Note 32) (P E32) - 4,130.8 4,130.8
Trade and other FET BR 5
payables (Note 33) H b R (P E33) 280.7 1,791.9 2,072.6
Total k] 280.7 5,922.7 6,203.4
At 31 December 2014 RZE—NF+=A=+—H
Borrowings (Note 32) (P E32) - 4,179.4 4,179.4
Trade and other payables JET BR R e E A B 3K
(Note 33) (Bi5E33) 297.8 1,556.2 1,854.0
Other non-current payables HAnIER BT - 13.7 13.7
Total kS 297.8 5,749.3 6,047.1
25 Properties held for sale 25 {ESHERBRZWHE
At 31 December 2015, certain properties held for R-E—FF+-_A=1+—H " B
sale with carrying value of HK$2,039.3 million (2014: M1 &2,039,300,000/& c2& T
HKS1,538.1 million) was pledged as securities for the EEERBZME(ZZE—OF :
Group's borrowings (Note 32). 1,538,100,000 7T ) tE B A&

P SR B (PRE32) -
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e ISR

26 Financial assets at fair value through

27

profit or loss

Equity securities:

— Listed in Hong Kong at market value

— Unlisted

RAES

—JELT

The fair value of the listed equity securities is based on
the current bid price quoted in the market at the balance

sheet date.

Prepayments, trade and other receivables

Non-current

Prepayments and other
receivables (Note h)

Current
Trade receivables

Less: provision for impairment of

receivables

Trade receivables — net

Bills receivable

Retention receivables

Prepaid taxes

Prepayments, other receivables and
deposits, net of provisions

FRE
B R EAD
JE WK (Bf =Eh)
T
B UK
HER A
& W AR BOF B
&I £R B 5K
BEANE

26

—BBLM  BWHE

27

B - BAd B &

we (CMERERE)

BAFEHERERIIRZE

BAE

2015
—E-HF
HK$ Million
BHEBT

0.2
13.2

13.4

EHBRAES Z R FETIRERE

2014
—F—-F
HKS Million

ABEBT

0.2
14.0

14.2

BEHMSAREREAEBTE -

fﬁiﬁ?‘fﬁt - BRI EAth

L&aﬂ\

2015
—ZT-HF
HKS$ Million
BEBT

97.1

57.8

(7.8)

50.0
3.7

15.4

107.1
176.2
273.3

BREREBOERLDR —B—AFFH

2014
—E—-mEF
HKS Million

BEBT

258.2

94.7

(8.3)

86.4
2.1
0.7

20.1

120.5
229.8
488.0
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AR SR M

Prepayments, trade and other receivables

(continued)
Notes:

(a) The ageing analysis of trade receivables by the Group’s
revenue recognition policy at year end, net of provision

for impairment, was as follows:

0 to less than 2 months TELR2MEA
2 to less than 6 months 22 LR6ME A
6 to less than 12 months 6= 1218 A
12 months and more 1218 A RIA E

The ageing analysis of trade receivables by invoice due
date at year end, net of provision for impairment, was as
follows:

0 to less than 2 months

T2 LR2ER

2 to less than 6 months 22 LR6ME A
6 to less than 12 months 6= 1218 A
12 months and more 121 A RIAE

(i)

For alternative energy business, the Group
allows a credit period of 30 days to its trade
customers. Trade receivables that are less
than 30 days past due are not considered
impaired. As at 31 December 2015, receivables
of HKS$44.8 million (2014: HK$59.0 million),
represented the electricity tariff receivables
due from the government have to go through
approval procedures before issuing invoices, of
which the related invoices were not issued as at
31 December 2015. As at 31 December 2014,
trade receivables of HKS13.8 million were
past due but not impaired. These relate to the
invoiced government subsidies on the electricity
tariff which have not been allocated and
distributed and were past due over 12 months.
These balances were fully settled during 2015.
There was no past due trade receivables as at
31 December 2015.

HKC (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2015
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

27

Prepayments, trade and other receivables

(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(a)

(d)

(e)

(continued)

(ii)

Other than alternative energy business, group
companies each has its own credit policies
depending on the requirements of their markets
and the businesses which they operate. Trade
receivables that are less than 12 months past
due are not considered impaired. As at 31
December 2015, no trade receivables on other
business (2014: HKS1.9 million) were past due
but not impaired. These relate to a number of
independent customers for whom there is no
recent history of default.

Other than alternative energy business, there is no
concentration of credit risk with respect to trade
receivables, as the Group has a large number of
customers.

As at 31 December 2015, trade receivables of HK$7.8
million (2014: HKS$8.3 million) were impaired and fully
provided for.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s prepayments,
trade and other receivables are denominated in the
following currencies:

Hong Kong dollars BT

Renminbi

ARKE

There is a bank borrowing secured by certain of the
Group’s trade receivables with carrying values of
HKS44.6 million (2014: HKS$59.8 million) (Note 32).

27

AN BWERRREMmE
LENE D)
B ()

(a) (%)

(i) BREREREBLN &
ERAREeHEEMSE
KRS LR S
BREEREK - R12ME
A A EER 2 e U R R
BARE NR_ZE—HE
+-—A=+—8  H1
¥R UED BmE{EER
BEZEREZF(ZZF—
4 1 1,900,0008 0 ) °
I ERERBRREEZ I
T B R SR AE 8 2 BT
EFBE -

(b) FRERERELKI  AAEE
BEFREAND - BUENRERL
BEESEDZER -

) RZE-—ARAF+-_A=+—
H - &#7,800,0008T(=F
— P4 : 8,300,000/87T) 2 &
Yo B K IROBUE M B 2 E
MR -

d AEEZENK  BEEFIR
Hi UK Z REENATIIE

WaErfE
2015 2014
—E-1F —FmF
HK$ Million HKS Million
HEER BEBT
2.4 6.7
270.9 481.3
273.3 488.0

(e)  A%KBE*ETRRME({ES4,600,000
BT (ZZ—mF : 59,800,000
B IT) 2 YRR E HE IR LARS
RITER(MIEE32) -

BREREBOERLDR —B—AFFH
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e ISR

27 Prepayments, trade and other receivables

(continued)
Notes: (continued)

(f)

Movements on the provision for impairment of trade

receivables are as follows:

At 1 January R—H—H

Currency translation differences ERBRE =

Write back of provision for VERIEY SEi=k R E
impairment losses

Trade receivables written off FAMEE AT AU e
during the year as uncollectible 2 FEUR BR X

At 31 December wt+=—A=+—8”

TR

FEE LY R R B L At B

YK ()
CERRC )

(f)

FEM R R BB BN T

2015 2014
—E—FEF —ZF—OF
HKS Million HKS Million
BEBET BEBTT
8.3 10.9

(0.4) (0.2)

(0.1) (0.1)

- (2.3)

7.8 8.3

(g8  The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting (g) MBEBHZzZESEERRA
date is the carrying value of each class of receivable FiuiEfEER ZEEEE - A
mentioned above. The Group does not hold any SEVEFEETMEFRIEE
collateral as security. R e

(h) Included in prepayments and other receivables were (h) AR SO H Ath ' WK A ()
(i) deposits held for property resettlement schemes of TMEREGFERFAEZI®
HKS$74.4 million (2014: HK$234.6 million) and (ii) input 74,400,000 c(ZF— 04 -
value-added taxation recoverable of HK$20.2 million 234,600,000/ 7T ) M (ii) fE it
(2014: HK$22.6 million) arising from purchases of T8 1% (& %4 20,200,00075 7T ( —
property, plant and equipment. Z—p4 : 22,600,000 7T) -

TIREBEME  MEBERERE -
28 Restricted cash ZREIEE
2015 2014
—E—-RF 4%
HKS$ Million HKS Million
BHEBT BEBT
Restricted cash represents: ZRFIR S
Deposits placed with banks for FEHRZRBITER
securing certain bank loans ETIRITERZER 332.2 300.1
Escrow accounts relating to AERPPRZIEY
deposits held for property ¥EREIZE] &
development projects 282.3 464.9
614.5 765.0
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e ISR

29 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents
comprises the following:

Cash at bank and in hand

Short-term bank deposits

Less: Restricted cash and
short-term bank deposits
with original maturities of
more than three months

Cash and cash equivalents and
restricted cash
(a) Placed in banks in the PRC:
— denominated in Renminbi
— denominated in Hong Kong
dollars
- denominated in US dollars

(b) Placed in banks in Hong Kong:
— denominated in Renminbi
— denominated in Hong Kong
dollars
— denominated in US dollars

29 BERBREEEY
2015 2014
—_E—FE —E—OF
HKS$ Million HKS Million
BEBT BEET
BEMREEEY
BIEATSIE
RITRFEEE S 634.6 715.4
EHERITER 958.4 1,152.4
1,593.0 1,867.8
B ZBRBIR K
RE|HEH G
= AR ZEHREITER
(618.8) (765.0)
974.2 1,102.8
2015 2014
—E-I1F —F—mF
HKS$ Million HKS Million
BHEBT BEBTT
ReEMREEBYR
PR HII3R &
(a) RABEISIRITES -
— UARBGZEE 1,242.7 1,421.6
— UETEE
41.9 123.0
— UETLEE 8.3 1.1
(b) REBZBRITHEE
— UARKEE 144.6 193.7
— UBTEE
155.2 127.4
— UETHEE 0.3 1.0
1,593.0 1,867.8
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

29 Cash and cash equivalents (continued) 29
The effective interest rates at the balance sheet date
were as follows:

HERBEL£ZEEY @
REER 2 ERFMENT :

2015 2014
—E-nF —T-pmE
HK$ RMB HKS RMB
BT AR¥ BT AR
Shortterm bank deposits BRI 0.01%-0.78% 0.30%-4.50%  0.01%2.91%  0.35%3.79%

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting
date is the carrying value of the cash and bank balances
stated above.

The short-term bank deposits have original maturities of
three months or less.

Cash and short-term deposits of HK$1,292.9 million
(2014: HKS1,545.7 million) are held in the Mainland
China and are subject to local exchange control
regulations, under which the balances could not be
exported freely out of China. The repatriation of fund out
from the Mainland China is possibly conducted by way of
dividends or other means as complied to the regulations.
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e ISR

30 Share capital

Authorised EE
At 1 January and 31 December RZE—MF—A—BkK
2014, 1 January and +ZRA=+—-H"
31 December 2015 E-RFE-A-HK
+-A=+—H
Issued and fully paid BRIRAR

At

Exercise of bonus warrants “1403"
Exercise of share options

At

Notes:

(a)

1 January 2014 and RZE-ME—A—-AkK
31 December 2014
TTERAL M R R [1403)
bR E

31 December 2015

On 16 October 2014, the Company issued
2,248,377,085 units of warrants (Warrant Code: 1403)
on the basis of 1 warrant for every 5 existing shares
of the Company held by the shareholders (“bonus
warrants”). The holders of bonus warrants are entitled
to subscribe at any time during 16 October 2014 to
15 October 2015 for fully paid shares at a subscription
price of HKS0.17 per share (subject to adjustment).

During the year ended 31 December 2015,
1,609,089,598 new ordinary shares of HKS0.01 each
were issued upon the exercise of 1,609,089,598 units
of bonus warrants. Among the 1,609,089,598 newly
issued ordinary shares, 1,134,900,513 new ordinary
shares of HKS0.01 each were issued upon the exercise
of 1,134,900,513 units of bonus warrants by Mr. OEI
Kang, Eric and his associates for the year ended 31
December 2015.

During the year ended 31 December 2014,
339,203,742, 13,738,000 and 30,000 new ordinary
shares of HKS0.01 each were issued upon the exercise
of 339,203,742 units, 13,738,000 units and 30,000
units of bonus warrants by Creator Holdings Limited
(“Creator”), Genesis Capital Group Limited (“Genesis”)
and an executive director of the Company. Creator and
Genesis are substantial shareholders of the Company.

—“T-MFE+-A=1+—H

RZE-hF+-A=1+—H

30 K&

Note
Wik

(a)
(b)

BosE -
(a)

BREREBOERLDR —B—AFFH

Number Number
of shares of shares
RAZE RAZH
(Million) HKS Million
(B8) BEAT
30,000.0 300.0
11,595.8 116.0
1,609.1 16.0
16.0 0.2
13,220.9 132.2

R-ZZE-—ME+A+RAE AR
ARBEREFASKREAARN A
BRINABEZE ZEE - BT
2,248,377,085t R EE (R
HERHE - 1403) ( [AMRRK
HE] ) cANBRERBHREAR
R -_ZE-—MFE+A+RAE-Z
—HF+A+I BRI E
REBEFRKRO0.17ET (AT THRE)
REBERED ©

HE-_Z—AF+=-A=1+—A”
1FFE > 1,609,089,598/% =i m
BEO.OLAB Tz EBBRENITE
1,609,089,598 17 41 F| :R I% #E 75
BT - 01,609,089,598 % #1
AT E RN 0 1,134,900,5138%
ERO0IABTZHEBRIIBE
MAEREBEALIREBEE-Z
—AF+_A=+—HLFETHE
1,134,900,51 317 41 7| 52 B #E 75 B
BT o

HE-_Z—WmOE+=RA=+—
HIFFE 339,203,742
13,738,000/% % 30,0008 & K&
0.01BTzHEBRIAEIESER
BRAR ([RlE] ) - Fa%EH
BRAR ( [#A] ) kARE—
FHITEER{THH 2339,203,742
75+ 13,738,00015 %30,00019 4L
FIRAAE B 37T © BlE R EAIY
BRAREERE -
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30 Share capital (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(b)

Share options are granted to employees, senior
executives or officers, managers, directors or
consultants of any members of the Group or any
Invested Entity.

The exercise price must be at least the higher of

(i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the
date of grant;

(ii) the average closing price of the shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and

(iii) the nominal value of a share.

An option must be exercised within ten years from the
date on which it is granted or such shorter period as the
Board may specify at the time of grant. An offer of the
grant of an option shall remain open for acceptance for
a period of ten business days from the date of offer and
a consideration of HKS1 must be paid upon acceptance.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, 16,000,000
new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each were issued upon
the exercise of 16,000,000 units of share options, with
exercise proceeds of approximately HKS4.3 million. The
related weighted average price at the time of exercise
was HKS$0.342 per share. Among the 16,000,000 newly
issued ordinary shares, 6,500,000 new ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each were issued upon the exercise of
6,500,000 units of share options by executive directors
of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2015
(2014: Nil). All outstanding share options had been
cancelled on 7 May 2015.
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30 BA@m)
MiEE : (48)

(b)

AR A ASEEETERKE
RANEMEREERZEE
BRTHRABHTIEBAE - &
2 SEFRHERKLBRE -

THREAKLABUATEREE :

(i) B n A5 I B BR 7R B A2
FrEg B®mEXRMSIMT
B

(i) BOEBERRHEHARE
HEXBEBIAEA
WEXRMAIFHES

B R

i

(i)  OEE-

BRREANE L HBRE+F
FEEG A RRELRREER
ZEREBMEATE - RERY
ZBRRER iR 2 A B+
HEXBHERNEEQRE
B AN DETRE -

BE_T—AF+-_A=t—
H Ik ¥ E - 16,000,000 ik &
P E B 0.01 B 7T 2 #1 & @A
2 M 17 {% 16,000,000 17 & AX
R ZRTT - (TEMBRBANR
4,300,000/ 7T » 717 £ B 42
B N #E F 9 E A8 R EA0.342
7% 7T 716,000,000 A& #r #&
TE®BKS 0 6,500,000k &=
B0.01B Tz # & @A Tl A&
RAMTEEREE_T—H
F+ZA=+—RIEFETE
6,500,00017 BB A #E 5 31T (—
T &) o FTAEAKRTTE
BRER—_F-RAFAALH
BYEEH -



30 Share capital (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(b) (continued)
Movements in the number of share options outstanding

and their related weighted average exercise prices are
as follows:

30 &A@
CERRC )

(b) (&)
WARITE ZBREHRE ME
MEFBITEEZFOT

179,558,771
(16,000,000)
(163,558,771)
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30 Share capital (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b) (continued)

30 BA@m)
MiEE : (48)

Number of outstanding share options at 31 December

2014 are as follows:

Date of grant

RHEAH

15 December 2006
ZETXRF+ZA+HRA

15 December 2006
ZETRF+ZA+HRA

15 December 2006
—EERF+ZA+HRA

3 July 2007
~FFLFLA=A

3 July 2007
~FTLFLA=A

3 July 2007
~FTLFLA=A

1 February 2008
—ZZEN\F-A—H

1 February 2008
—ZZEN\F-A—H

1 February 2008
—ZZEN\F-A—H

15 April 2013
—E-=FMA+EH

15 Apri 2013
—F-=FNA+EHE

15 Apri 2013
—F-=FNA+EHE

Total

Number of options
exercisable

Exercise period

e

15 December 2007 to 14 December 2016
—ZE+F+-_A+HAZE
ZE—R"F+ZA+HMA
15 December 2008 to 14 December 2016
—ZEEN\FE+=-A+HAZE
ZE—R"F+ZA+HMA
15 December 2009 to 14 December 2016
—ZEENF+_A+HAZE
ZE—R"F+ZA+HMA
15 December 2007 to 2 July 2017
—ZE+F+-_A+HAZE
—T—+tF+tA=H
15 December 2008 to 2 July 2017
—ZEEN\FE+=-A+HAZE
—T—+tF+tA=H
15 December 2009 to 2 July 2017
—EENF+_A+HAZE
—T—+tF+tA=H
1 February 2009 to 31 January 2018
—ETNF-_A—HBZE
- N\F-A=+—H
1 February 2010 to 31 January 2018
—E-EF-F—HE
- N\F-A=+—H
1 February 2011 to 31 January 2018
—E——%_f—HZ
- N\F-A=+—H
15 April 2014 to 14 April 2016
—E-MENA+RAE
T RFNA+MA
15 April 2015 to 14 April 2017
—T-RAFNA+RAE
“T—tFWMA+MA
15 April 2016 to 14 April 2018
ZE-RFNA+RAE
T N\FHA+MA

B
ATk R E

Other details of the share option schemes are set out in
the Report of the Directors.

HKC (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2015

(b)

(&)

RZE—NmNF+=-A=+—H
EARITE ZBIRESE T

Exercise price
per share
(adjusted)
BRITEE

(IR
(HKS)
(#7L)

1.066

1.066

1.066

1.726

1.726

1.726

1.242

1.242

1.242

0.269

0.269

0.269

At

31 December
2014
R=B-N%F
+=A=+-8

7,097,698

12,162,732

11,662,901

6,664,518

3,332,259

3,332,259

16,661,271

24,991,920

41,653,213

10,400,000

15,600,000

26,000,000
179,558,771

137,958,771

BRI EMFERRES

BHEE -



31

Reserves

65.9

31 f#%

- - - - 0§) -y o) -y
. . . - . . - 0 . 06

. . - - . - - - 68 68
515 . . - . . - - 1
51 - - - - 0] - - - 4

. . . - . 10 - - . 10

- - - - - 507) - - 512 05

) . . . . . . - e
84979 859 600 81 1 - 60 603 1681
84979 859 6010 81 1 -l ) B8 10659
N . . - . - - W2 s

- - - - - B - B3 66
84979 59 600 81 1 -8 60 603 11681

FRER(EB)ERRAR —B-—HFFR
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31

Reserves (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(c)

(d)

The application of the share premium account is
governed by the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended).

On 12 May 2010, the Group’s wholly-owned subsidiary
entered into sales and purchase agreement (“S&P”) with
the Group’s non-wholly-owned subsidiary to dispose of
the alternative energy business (“Target Business”).
Based on the S&P, the purchase consideration is
settled by way of issuing and allotting 1,385,170,068
convertible preference shares by such non-wholly-owned
subsidiary. The fair value of which, on the S&P date, was
HKS$1,018.1 million. On 31 August 2010, the acquisition
was completed and the fair value of the respective
convertible preference shares changed to HK$S853.8
million. As the Target Business remains as the Group’s
subsidiary upon the disposal, such disposal transaction
is considered as a transaction with non-controlling
shareholders. As a result, the Group has recognised a
decrease in non-controlling interests of HK$8.1 million
and an increase in other reserve in equity of the same
amount.

The credit to retained earnings represented difference
between the total buy-back consideration and the book
value of the convertible preference shares issued by a
subsidiary, netting off the incremental transaction costs
directly attributable to the transaction.

In accordance with the transitional provisions set out
in section 37 of Schedule 11 to Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622), on 3 March 2014, any amounts
standing to the credit of the capital reduction reserve
and capital redemption reserve accounts of a subsidiary
has been reclassified.
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(a)

31 @HEuwm

B ERIAEXBRE
—NN\—RRPRERIAFTE

o

R-ZZE-TFHEA+T-A K
SE2EWB AR RAEEIE
2EMBARGEEHR
(TEZEWmZ&])  HEBNREE
REB(TEREBK]) - RIZE
Etpa BEREHIZEM
J& X 7] B % 1,385,170,068 A%
ABREEER I TAXN - R
EEWm=E  BERKEATE
451,018,100,000% 7T - ® =
T-TFNA=+—8  WKE
TR MARRE AT AR B R i 2
A F 18 /853,800,000 % 7T °
AR BEEHBRHERDAN
SEZMBRAR  HEBLE
RBBRBEFEBRBER 2K
5 > At - AEREERERIEE
P #2509 48,100,000 7T » i
a2 B iR RE AR
L

FREBGNEEZOBRARE
B — RN B AR BT
BERELHREEE CEE -
BRaRXPpEZEGED RR
RHLZRPRA -

REEBEREIEH (F622F)
MIR 1137168 2 3B 5 V15
X R-_ZE—WNE=A=H"
B BB 2 &) AR AN B R R R AR AR
ERFERNTMERSRED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRME
32 Borrowings 32
Non-current IEFRED
Bank borrowings RITIEK
Finance lease liabilities MmEMEARE
Loans from non-controlling
shareholders FEFERR AR R B3R
Current TE
Bank borrowings RITIEK
Finance lease liabilities MEMEARE
Loans from non-controlling
shareholders FEIERR AR R B3R
Total borrowings B4R

In 2015 and 2014, the Group's bank borrowings are
secured by the investment properties, prepaid land lease
payments, properties, plant and equipment, toll road
income, properties under development, properties held
for sale, trade receivables and restricted cash of the
Group (Notes 15,16, 17, 18, 19, 25, 27 and 28), certain
of which are also secured by the corporate guarantee
provided by the Company or its subsidiaries.

(a) At the balance sheet date, the Group’s secured
bank borrowings were repayable as follows:

Within one year —F RN
In the second year FF
In the third to fifth year F=EFRF
After the fifth year hF&

Wholly repayable within five
years HARAFAEIEE
Wholly repayable after five years B A F1%& 2222

sk
2015 2014
—E-HF —E—F
HKS$ Million HKS Million
BEAT BEET
2,667.5 2,599.9
90.4 112.8
253.5 255.7
3,011.4 2,968.4
1,090.7 1,183.4
16.0 15.3
12.7 12.3
1,119.4 1,211.0
4,130.8 4,179.4

RZZE—RFER-_ZT—NF A&
EZRITERBAEEZEREY
¥ ENTHEER - E - s

B WEBARKA - BREGY
¥ (EHEERBRZYE  EBREXR
MZRHHRL (HE15 1617
18 1925+ 27K 28) {EiK 3 -
HPEFHRIFEARAQRKEMBER
AR 2 D EER R o

(a) MHEER AEEZHEMR
RITERZERBWT -

2015 2014
—E-REF —E g
HKS$ Million HKS Million
BEET AEBT
1,090.7 1,183.4
693.5 777.7
1,535.8 1,086.8
438.2 735.4
3,758.2 3,783.3
1,656.6 2,087.0
2,101.6 1,696.3
3,758.2 3,783.3

BREREBOERLDR —B—AFFH
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e MR
32 Borrowings (Continued) 32 fER@)

(b)  The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to (b) AEFREZNG&EQZFIER
interest rate changes and the contractual B RAENETEEBRR N
repricing dates at the balance sheet date are as T
follows:

2015 2014

—E-AF —E—mEF

HK$ Million HKS Million

BHEBT AEBT

6 months or less 618 A AT 3,394.5 3,440.1
6 — 12 months 621218 A 283.2 351.3
3,677.7 3,791.4

(c)  The Group has finance lease liabilities at the (c) REEBR XEBZmEMR

balance sheet date as follows: EBENT
2015 2014
—E-HF T
HKS$ Million HKS Million
BEBRT BEBT
Gross finance lease liabilities - FEEREB BT —
minimum lease payments SEHEFE
Within one year —FR 22.1 22.8
In the second year F 4 22.8 23.5
In the third to fifth year FE=ZEFHF 72.6 74.7
After the fifth year hFE 8.4 35.2
125.9 156.2
Future finance charges on BEEMEE 2 AR KEE
finance leases %M (19.5) (28.1)
Present value of finance lease BIEHEEE2RE
liabilities 106.4 128.1
The present value of finance MmEHEAEZRE
lease liabilities is as follows: s
Within one year —FR 16.0 15.3
In the second year FF 17.7 17.0
In the third to fifth year F=EFRTF 64.5 62.2
After the fifth year hFE& 8.2 33.6
106.4 128.1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

32 Borrowings (Continued)

32 fER@

(d)

(f)

As at 31 December 2015, loans from non-
controlling shareholders of HK$266.2 million are
unsecured, of which HK$190.7 million carries
interest at over five years’ PBOC lending rate
per annum and the remaining balance is interest
free. As at 31 December 2014, loans from non-
controlling shareholders of HK$268.0 million are
unsecured, of which HK$S202.1 million carries
interest at over five years’ PBOC lending rate per
annum and the remaining balance is interest free.

The loans that are not expected to be repayable
within twelve months are classified as non-current
liabilities. The balance is mainly denominated in
Renminbi.

The effective interest rates at the balance sheet
date were as follows:

Bank borrowings RITIER
Finance lease liabilities ~ RIEHEEE
Ath

Loans from non-controlling 3EZERBEE R
shareholders

The carrying amounts of the borrowings are

HKS
B

0.98% - 3.92%

(d) EA:; AF+-A=1+—
C BIFEBRBRRZEX
266,200,000 B Tt & E R

# - H#190,700,000/% 7T
REBAEARBITRFNL

ERFER KRR - merz Al
BB  -R-ZT—WHF+=
A=+—H8 268,000,000

BB RER R E
HH# - A202,100,0007%8
TP BEARRITRENA
EERFEMEKREGFR - MERFK
ARRE -

BATERARRT—EAR
BEZEFWOBRIERD
BfE - HRETIBUARKEE
B e

(e) MNEHRZERFZLT

2015 2014
“E-If “E-mF
RMB HKS RMB
AR# BT AR
3.50%-6.90% 0.95%-4.08% 4.19%-7.38%
- 5.75% - 5.75%
- 4,90% - 6.55%

()  fEBRZEEER IS

denominated in the following currencies: 1B :
2015 2014
—E-HF —E—O4F
HKS$ Million HKS Million
BEER BEAT
Hong Kong dollars BT 315.6 323.7
Renminbi AR #& 3,815.2 3,855.7
4,130.8 4,179.4
BEARR(ZER)BRAT —S—HFEFH
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e ISR

32 Borrowings (Continued)

(g)  The Group has the following undrawn borrowing

facilities:

Fixed rate expiring beyond one

year

Floating rate expiring beyond

one year

33 Trade and other payables

Trade payables
Retention payables

Properties sale deposits received
Other payables and accruals

(Note c)

(a) The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade payables

at year end was as follows:

0 to less than 2 months
2 to less than 6 months
6 to less than 12 months
12 months and more
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= LR2MEA
L 61E A
R121E A

32 fER@)
(g) ZAEEBTIARBABKIE

=~ .

E N
2015 2014
—E-hF —ZE—OF
HKS Million HKS Million
BEBET BEAET

A — 15 B HA 32 [ 5 FI R
E 80.2 85.0
N — 15 B HR 2 B FI &
=} 1,675.9 2,667.4
1,756.1 2,752.4
33 ENERAREAMESK
2015 2014
—E-hF —E—F
HKS$ Million HKS Million
BEBET BEBTT
JE T BR R 61.7 69.0
JEHIRE K 230.2 177.0
Bl EHEZ S 141.4 461.6
H At A TR K e R A

(BF5EC) 1,639.3 1,146.4
2,072.6 1,854.0

(a) RNEHR  AEBEEMNENX

ZEREE DT ¢
2015 2014
—F-HF T QF
HKS$ Million HKS Million
BEERT BEBT
35.1 37.9
1.1 0.2
0.5 0.1
25.0 30.8
61.7 69.0



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

33 Trade and other payables (Continued)
(b) The carrying amounts of the Group's trade and
other payables are denominated in the following

currencies:

Hong Kong dollars
Renminbi
US dollars

BT
AR
ETT

(c) As of 31 December 2015, the fair value of
financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss is HK$280.7 million (2014: HK$297.8

million).

34 Deferred income tax liabilities

The deferred income tax liabilities recognised and

movements are as follows:

At 1 January 2014

Currency translation diferences

Net of amortisation capitalised in properties
(nder development

Charged to reserve (Note b)

Charged (credited) to income statement (Note 12) 7

At 31 December 2014

At 1 January 2015
Currency translation differences
(Credited)/charged to income statement (Note 12) 5

At 31 December 2015

KEERYZERALL

Fair value
adjustments
on investment
properties
RENE
NTELS
HKS Millon
AEER

21
(134)

aﬁﬁ% HE%/ H4)(Hi12) 1015
_z—lﬁ_ﬂ =t-f 800.6

800.6
(48.8)

E\ﬁﬁi E% )/ (1) (94.3)
N-E-1Ft-fA=1-A 6575

33 ENRRREMESK @
(b) AEEENMNEE &Hﬁﬂfﬁ

RZEEERIATEES
& :

2015 2014
—E-hF —ZE—UF
HKS Million HKS Million
BHEBT BEBT
52.5 32.6
1,739.4 1,523.6
280.7 297.8
2,072.6 1,854.0

(c) R=ZZE—

AF+ZA=1—

H BRAFEEBERKXT
RZeBMBBEZRATER
280,700,000 T(—F—MM
F : 297,800,000 %) °

34 EERBHRAE
DR B SR A E RS

T
Adjustments
on prepaid
Depreciation [and lease
allowance Tax loss payments
Fifth
fERfE WEEE  HRHEE
HKS Million ~~ HKS Millon ~ HKS Millon
AEER EE#ER AEER
- - 4006
(0.5) 01 (88)
- = (13)
25 (135) (184
260 (134) 312l
26.0 (134) Ml
6.1 03 (20)
38 103 (19.0)
35.9 (28) 3330

Other items Total
HftEE 3]
HKS Million ~~ HKS Million
AERT BEET
111 11244

(0.5) (23.3)

- (1.3

50 50

(2.6) 935

130 1,193

130 1,198.3

13 (63.8)

26 (96.6)

143 1,037.9
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e ISR

34 Deferred income tax liabilities (Continued) 34

(a) Deferred income tax assets are recognised for
tax losses carried forward to the extent that the
realisation of the related tax benefits through
the future taxable profits is probable. The Group
did not recognise deferred income tax assets
of HK$303.3 million (2014: HK$S327.8 million)
in respect of tax losses of HKS1,473.2 million
(2014: HKS1,593.3 million) to carry forward
against future taxable income. These tax losses
have no expiry dates except for the tax losses of
HKS642.6 million (2014: HKS$695.1 million) which
will expire at various dates up to and including
2020 (2014: 2019).

(b) The amount represents the tax charge relating
to the gain on property revaluation in other
comprehensive income.

35 Commitments 35

Capital expenditure at the balance sheet date but
not yet incurred is as follows:

(i) Capital commitments undertaken (i) 7 EE 2 ELFIE
by the Group
(a) Property, plant and equipment

(a) !5 - BAELRHE

Contracted but not provided for EHEEER S
(b) Property development projects (b) MEEREE
Contracted but not provided for EHEEES 3

(ii) Capital commitments undertaken (i) & &2 ]2 BAASE
by the joint venture
Property development project MEZRIER
Contracted but not provided for EHEEES 3
202 — the Group's share —AEE RN
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EEFMEHREE @

(a)

(b)

AIE

fied 45 7 B2 35 3B R KB AR T
it M A B 2 TR A i
BoRlgnEE s RiER
BHREIAETEMEHEE -
A& B I E B IRE 8
1,473,200,0008 T (=&
— M % : 1,593,300,000
BIL)ERARLEMBIHNEE
303,300,000 T(=Z—M
% : 327,800,000/ 7T ) A] 1
me o MNEERRERK

WA o % BB AR R &2
HiH - #642,600,0007% 7T

—ZF—/% : 695,100,000

) 2 BUEBREREE
—ToBE(RERT) (S
T_mE B AF) I
SRR

ZAERIEREMEE AT
YR E U AR 2 B AR
¥+ o

REEHE R EERMREE
ZEARBETHT ¢
2015 2014
—E-IF —E-mF
HKS Million HKS Million
BHEAT BSAT
5.9 2.1
1,484.3 2,506.9
1,490.2 2,509.0
1,072.4 1,110.1
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35 Commitments (Continued) 35

The aggregate future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect
of land and buildings are as follows:

No later than 1 year —FR
Later than 1 year and no later BBE—F&XAFA
than 5 years

The future aggregate minimum rental receivable
under non-cancellable operating leases is as
follows:

No later than 1 year —F RN

Later than 1 year and no later BB —FEXAFK
than 5 years

Later than 5 years fiEep Ak

The Group leases out investment properties
under operating leases. The lease runs for an
initial period of one to ten years, with an option to
renew the lease when all terms are renegotiated.
Lease payments are usually increased annually
to reflect market rentals. No contingent rent was
recognised in the years ended 31 December
2015 and 2014.

AAE (@|)

REEALHEET Z2AA
MR EMEE 2 RR&EM
SRR

2015 2014
—E-51f%F —TmF
HKS$ Million HKS Million
BEBT BHEBTT
6.2 7.2

1.1 7.7

7.3 14.9

REBETAIBEEEHEE 2K
REEEWHES BRI ¢

2015 2014
—E-AF —E—OF
HKS Million HKS Million
BHEBT BEBT
99.0 105.1
207.8 168.6

9.7 24.7

316.5 298.4

AEERBELEHERIRE
WMELME - BOMNL RE—
E+F WHAREEZES
HE®RED  ERMA KK
VREHEE He—Re
BFELFAUNRBRTISEE -
FREEHREERE_F
—hER-_T-WNFE+_HA
=t HUEFEFAER -

BREREBOERLDR —B—AFFH
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36 Contingent liabilities

(a)

(b)

The Group’s investment property located in
Shenzhen, the PRC is subject to housing facility
fund pursuant to <RZIIEEFREFEREMEEIE
165> adopted on 1 November 1994. Contingent
liabilities of RMB75.8 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$89.5 million) (2014: RMB75.8
million (equivalent to approximately HK$94.8
million)) arising in this respect have been
assessed by management with reference to the
legal opinion previously obtained. Management
have requested relief from the relevant local
government authorities on the grounds that
certain amounts of maintenance costs were
already spent for the purposes as specified under
the requirement of housing facility fund, hence
no further provision for the fund is considered
necessary.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group arranged
bank financing for certain property buyers and
provided guarantees of HK$222.2 million (2014:
HKS$307.6 million) in relation to the repayment
obligations for those buyers. The Group had not
suffered from any loss resulting from the above
guarantees in the past, which was mainly because
the guarantees concerned were only a transitional
arrangement for property buyers prior to the
completion of mortgage registration and were
pledged against property rights, in addition to the
fact that they will be released once the mortgage
registration is completed. Considering the
above factors, the Board is of the view that the
possibility of default by buyers is minimal, thus
the financial guarantees measured at fair value is
immaterial.
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36 HAREME

(a)

BER—NANAEFE+—A—
BEMz CRYIEBERFRIE
EEMEERGD) K&
BuRPERIZ—HERE
MEXRREEARRESR
REE  EEECNRZ2EE
ERMBZERER®R - FHE
REELEZHKARABER/A
K% 75,800,000 7T (K948 &
789,500,000 ) (=&
—m4F - AR%75,800,000
7t (#)#8 & 294,800,000
L)) c AREREFEER
AREERESREAE
EENXNETREXEASE
B EEECREFE MR
AR EEREK - Bt
RRBRAUHECIFE T
e

7

RZE—RF+_A=1+—
B AEBAMEENET
BERTHRITRE  WHZ
LEERMERETTIRHEER
222,200,000 c(=Z&—m
& : 307,600,000 &) o
REBBEWARE il R
SXMAEMIBL EEHARE
BIERIIEAMEEREN
R BB E L AR BE
ZH - BEBEREHRDE
ERER  UERBEFEE
R E T AR - AR L
MERE BFERAE - BR
R ATREMEE M - BUE A
FEFENTFERBTRE
3 o
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37

Related party transactions

Other than the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the material
related party transactions during the year were:

(a)

(b)

In June 2010, the Company entered into
a supplemental agreement with Genesis
Capital Group Limited, one of the substantial
shareholders of the Company, for amending and
supplementing the revolving loan agreement
dated 8 October 2007, under which the Company
might borrow up to HK$1,000.0 million for a
period of ninety-six months from the date of the
said loan agreement. The loan was unsecured
and carried interest at the Hong Kong dollar
prime rate plus 2% per annum. The Company was
required to repay the loan and accrued interest
thereon at the expiry of the said agreement. There
has been no outstanding loan balance since 31
December 2011 and the agreement was expired
in 2015.

The transaction did not constitute a connected
transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

At 31 December 2015, a subsidiary of the Group
provided guarantee in respect of facilities granted
to an associated company of HK$127.5 million
(2014: HKS$150.1 million).

The transaction did not constitute a connected
transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

37

BEELRS
Rt EHBRREMBOWELZR

5 R FEERIN -

T -

(a)

BREREBOERLDR —B—AFFH

FRABEABEB TR S

R-F—BFAA AR
BAATEF—EEERR
ZHEEERATTLHZ

ek - AERT KM B IS
“EELFTANBZER

EXMaE o Bt - AREA
R bt & 5% % B B R
NTAREABBARBEARS
1,000,000,000% 7T - % %
ERSEEM  RETRE
B EM2%EFRETE - K
RAZAR LAt B B A
EREERKEFE - B
E——Ff+-A=1+—HY
BAREBEENRGSR  BiH=H
ERZE—RFHHE -

NG

BRERXZU T EARE LT
BAIEIAAEE R N ZRE

25 -

RZE—RF+_A=1+—
H AX&EE—HEHKBARF
MR F—BEBEAFZ
EERMEREBZERA
127,500,000 0 (=Z—1
4 : 150,100,000 7T) °

BRRZEUTEARE LT
BMAIEIAAREER N ZREE

X5 e
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37 Related party transactions (Continued) 37 BEERZm@m)
(c) At 31 December 2015, a subsidiary of the Group (c) —E—RF+=A E+—

i

recognised an interest income of HKS11.1 million H

(2014: HKS16.3 million) on the outstanding CIR:

amount due from its joint venture (Note 22). = IE ﬁﬁ ﬂ B A
11 100 OOO/’%E(:T\—@
F -

16,300,000 7T ) (M &k

22)
The transaction did not constitute a connected BARSIWTNEKEE ™
transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the MAFIAAZSFE T 2B
Listing Rules. RS o
(d  Key management compensation (d ZEEBEKEZ@EE
Key management solely represents directors of FEEEENEEELAR
the Company. The compensation paid or payable BEE o oONIENTEE
to key management is shown as below: BEKE 2 mEWNT :
2015 2014
—E—HF T
HKS$ Million HKS Million
HEBT BEBT
Director’s fees =Yk 1.3 1.5
Salary and other benefits e REMEF 20.9 21.0
Employer’s contribution to RREETEIZ
pension scheme B EHR 0.1 0.1
Share option benefits A Rz v ) 0.5 0.7
22.8 23.3
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38 Notes to consolidated cash flow 38

statement

(Loss)/profit before income tax
Finance income
Depreciation and amortisation
Employee share option benefits
(Note 10)
Fair value adjustments on
investment properties
Provision for impairment losses
on assets (Note 7)
Gain on completion of liquidation
of subsidiaries — net
Gain on disposal of an associated company
Net exchange loss/(gain)
Gain on disposal of prepaid land lease
payments and property, plant and
equipment - net (Note 6)

Fair value (gain)/loss on financial assets and

financial liabilities
at fair value through
profit or loss — net (Note 8)
Finance costs
Share of profits less losses
of associated companies
Share of profits less losses
of joint ventures

Operating profit before working
capital changes
Increase in properties under development
Increase in prepaid land lease payments
Decrease in properties held for sale
(Increase)/decrease in inventories
Decrease in other non-current receivables
and trade and other receivables

Increase/(decrease) in other
non-current payables and trade and other
payables

Cash generated from/(used in) operations

FRSEiAl (B518) /& 7

FEWA

E RS

1E B RB AR R A
(ftZ£10)

BREMEZ RTERAE

BEREEREE
(Fff&E7)
TERRHIB R EERZ
Yoz — %
BB S N E 2 WaE
BEAEE ()8
HETRN A & AR
E B
Yozs — (P 3E6)
BRAFEERBRSERIIKZ
THEERERMARAYE
(W) /B5tE — 28
(Fff=E8)
FEHE S R EEARE R

FihaERmENRER

il
BRERDYEEM
TR L EFIE A0
fEHER & ZMERD
FEUEm),/md
Hi IR B R URIA K
JE MR e H AR
Wsom
H A IEREN (T HRA K
JEAH R & EL A fE
g m,/ ORd)
BEREBHE/
(FrA)RE

BREREBOERLDR —B—AFFH

2015
—E-R%F
HKS$ Million

HEBTT

(571.3)

(32.5)

126.0

1.0

469.8

135.6

(91.5)

(16.8)
150.3

(96.4)

228.3

308.3
(524.9)
(185.7)

740.8

(0.2)

40.0

204.2

582.5

REREREBRMTE

2014
—ZT—mF
HKS Million

BEBTT

218.0

(48.8)

107.9

1.2
(351.5)
223.4

(16.7)

(36.9)
(2.7)

(0.4)

18.8
151.6

(65.4)
10.9

209.4
(468.2)
(110.8)

472.3

0.3

70.1

(177.7)

(4.6)
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39 Balance sheet and reserve movement of 39
the company

g@ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%&ﬁ%ﬁ%

As at 31 December

R+=HA=+—8
2015 2014
—E-I1F —E—mF
HKS Million HKS Million
BHBEBT BEBT
ASSETS BE
Non-current asset FREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RB AR ZIZE 155.4 163.9
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUR BT /B~ R FRIE 9,503.8 9,732.9
Other receivables o UK 1.3 0.4
Cash and cash equivalents He kA EEY 1.0 0.7
Total current assets REEEALE 9,506.1 9,734.0
Total assets BEHAE 9,661.5 9,897.9
EQUITY R
Capital and reserves attributable to ZA2QFEZEZTEA
equity EhEREFHiE
holders of the Company
Share capital AR 132.2 116.0
Reserves (Note) Rt (B aE) 9,524.8 9,777.3
Total equity AR 9,657.0 9,893.3
Current liability nEEE
Other payables H b e 3k 45 4.6
Total liability BEHE 4.5 4.6
Total equity and liability ERkBaEHAE 9,661.5 9,897.9

OEl Kang, Eric =
LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel RER
Directors -l
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39 Balance sheet and reserve movementof 39 AATEEEBERREES

the company (Continued) B (@)
Note: Reserve movement of the Company Wizt - RO TGS

50.7 979.8 (219.2) 9,771.3

- - - (582.4) - (582.4
2515 - - - - 2575
5.1 - (L0) - - 41

- - 10 - - 10

- - (50.7) - 507 -

- - - - 673 673
8.497.9 7307 - 3974 (1012 95248

FRER(EB)ERRAR —B-—HFFR
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40 Benefits and interests of directors and 40 EERFTETHAEZRERN

chief executives R
The remuneration of every director and chief executive EEERNTHETHMES T
officer is set out below:
For the year ended 31 December 2015: HE—_T—AF+-_A=+—HL
FE -
Employer's
contribution
Discretionary ~to pension Share-based"®
Fees Salary* honuses* scheme? Sub-total  compensation® Total
g |
Name i3 ne Hé BERAL  2EEME It Rt fEoH &g

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TER TR TR TER TR

OFI Tiie Goan SR - - - - - - -
OE! Kang, Eric* U 175.0 11,683.8 1,303.0 36.0 13,197.8 2115 13,409.3
LEE Shiu Yeg, Daniel 2k 100.0 2,510.0 378.0 18.0 3,006.0 155.8 3,161.8
WONG Jake Leong, Sammy EER 175.0 2,391.8 3147 345 2,916.0 97.3 3,013.3
CHAN Kok Fong, Joseph ™ FREY 66.7 1,527.8 - 120 1,606.5 - 1,606.5
LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel @ pLSal 58.3 560.6 213 101 866.3 - 866.3
VEN Teresa © AR 348 - - - 348 - 348
CHUNG Cho Yeg, Mico i3 2200 - - - 2200 - 2200
CHENG Yuk Wo BEA 2200 - - - 2200 - 2200
Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior 1R 2200 - - - 220.0 - 2200
1,269.8 18,674.0 2,233.0 110.6 22,2874 464.6 22,752.0
* chief executive officer * 1T,
G The amounts represented emoluments in respect of # E4BRREHEHEBARQA K
services provided in connection with the management HBATNSBSBEBERF R
of the affairs of the Company or its subsidiaries TIRMEIRFEH N

undertaking.
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40 Benefits and interests of directors and 40 EERFETBRAEZERN

chief executives (continued) KRR @)
For the year ended 31 December 2014: HE-_E—NFE+-_A=+—HI1t
FE

* chief executive officer * THREE

L The amounts represented emoluments in respect of # HEeHERKREHEBANF K
services provided in connection with the management HB AN EB BB EF R
of the affairs of the Company or its subsidiaries TR RS Y E BN o

undertaking.

FRER(EB)ERRAR —B-—HFFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

40 Benefits and interests of directors and
chief executives (continued)

Notes:

1.

Mr. CHAN Kwok Fong, Joseph resigned as executive
director with effect from 1 September 2015.

Mr. LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel was appointed as
executive director on 1 September 2015.

Ms. YEN Teresa resigned as non-executive director with
effect from 8 May 2015.

Mr. WAN Ming Sun resigned as non-executive director
with effect from 23 January 2014.

Mr. FAN Yan Hok, Philip resigned as independent non-
executive director with effect from 1 December 2014.

The balance represented the estimated value of share
options granted to the directors under the share option
schemes of the Company and a subsidiary. The value
of these share options is measured according to the
Group's accounting policies for share-based payment
transactions and, in accordance with that policy,
includes adjustments to reverse amounts accrued in
previous years where grants of equity instruments are
forfeited prior to vesting.

During the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014,
Mr. OEI Tjie Goan voluntarily waived annual director’s fee
of HK$100,000.

During the year, other benefits and remunerations in
respect of accepting office as director were paid to or
receivable by the directors in respect of their services
as directors (2014: same as 2015). During the year, no
emoluments were paid or receivable by the directors in
respect of director’s other services in connection with
the management of the affairs of the company or its
subsidiary undertaking (2014: Nil).

HKC (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2015
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

40 Benefits and interests of directors and 40 EERFEBETHRAEZER
chief executives (continued) KR @)

The retirement benefits paid to directors during
the year ended 31 December 2015 by a defined
contributions plan as disclosed in note 10 in
respect of their services as a director of the
company and its subsidiaries is HK$110,600
(2014: HKS83,900). No other retirement benefits
were paid to or receivables by the directors
in respect of their services as directors of the
Company and its subsidiaries or other services in
connection with the management of the affairs of

HEz_ZT—HRF+=-A8
=t+—HIEEE r KXRRIE
B T1I0FTIREE 2 A EMRK
RRFFEMESZMHORE
EETANRILRENB AR
EEMEMKEF A110,600
B (ZZE—M4F : 83,900
BIT) c MERBEZEER
NAIREHBARESRHI
BERBEBEBARRKEN

the company or its subsidiary undertaking (2014: BRAEEESBHBNEMARE
Nil). MEE X HMRKE R
(Z=—WE | o

During the year, no payments or benefits in
respect of termination of directors’ services
were paid or made, directly or indirectly, to the
directors; nor are any payable (2014: Nil).

During the year, no consideration was provided to
or receivable by third parties for making available
directors’ services (2014: Nil).

During the year, there are no loans, quasi-loans
or other dealings in favour of the directors,
their controlled bodies corporate and connected
entities (2014: Nil).

No significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the group’s business to
which the Company was a party and in which a
director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year (2014:
Nil).

TR BENEFKRILES
REMERKERAEES
iR AR RIS TR AR A
TELMNENRE(ZFT
—PF ) -

FA - BRERERE SRS
M 17 58 = 75 32 s fA]
RE(ZZ—HF: £&) -

FAMEUNEE EFZ
XEHEEMNAEERSR
BMAZER BERHIEAM
RH(ZF—F : &) -

WEEBEBEHMAR A
ERET—FEARRAIESE
RNEP (T mBEEKEE) H#
BERED (R AFRINE
NEAIRENEARS « &
BRAH( T —F &) -

BREREBOERLDR —B—AFFH
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Principal Subsidiaries, Associated Companies and Joint Ventures

TEHEAT  BEAARAEAT

Listed below are the principal subsidiaries, associated I &X#HJEER 75’5:?[21&% BEzE_—_F

companies and joint ventures which, in the opinion of the — AF T A=+ —BILFEXH
directors, principally affect the result and/or net assets of the K,/ SHEEFEEFEZ2TEZWEAR
Group for the year ended 31 December 2015. Al BE R REERAIFE
1  Principal subsidiaries 1 EWBAFA
Place of incorporation/
operation and kind of Issued share capital/ Group's effective
Name legal entity* Principal activities Paid up registered capital equity interest
A/ BERER
2] HERREL. TERE BRARA/ENTRER AEE BB RARS
2015 2014 2015 2014
Z%-1f Z5-mE CB-IF CRME
(@) Investment holding
REER
APC Wind Power Pte Limited* Singapore Investment holding $GD10 SGDI0 54.13% hA.13%
I REZR 105 105K
China Renewable Energy Investment — Cayman Islands/PRC nvestment holding HK$23,563,718 HKS23,563,718 54.13% 54.13%
Limited+® Ae#s/ 18 RERR 23,563,718% 7 23563, 7185
hEBEERRERRAAS
China Harvest Holdings Limited* Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HK$1,000,000 HKS1,000,000 75%** 5%
hEERRAR Bk/0E REBR 1,000,000%7 1,000,000
HKC (China) Management Company ~ PRC, Wholly foreign- Provision of management $$8,000,000 /558,000,000 100% 100%
Limite? owned enterprise services in the PRC 8,000,000% 7% 8,000,000%7
BAER(ME)ERARAR hENERARE  NPEREEEREK
HKC Guilin Expressway Limited- Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HKS$1 HKS1 100% 100%
BARRENERARERAR &ib/mA REER 1&n 187
HKC Investment Limited- Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HKS$77,113,850 HKS77,113,850 100% 100%
ERERRARRAR Bk/nE RERK 77,113 850% 7% 77,113 8507
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Principal Subsidiaries, Associated Companies and Joint Ventures
FEHEAT  BEAARAEAT

1 Principal subsidiaries (continued)

Name

#

fa)

[nvestment holding (continued)
REER(E)

HKC (Nanxun) Holdings Limited:
BAER (B RIIARER AT

HKC Property Investments (China)
Limited**
BRRRMERA(RE)BRAR"

HKC Shenyang Hunan Investments
Limited
BAEREREERARRAT):

HKE (Chongging) Holdings Limited+*

HKE (Da He) Holdings Limited*
BRmER (O BRARA A

HKE (Danjinghe] Wind Power Limited*
BAHR (BT BaERAR:

HKE (Ganst) Wind Power Limited*
BREFAR(HB)BEARAF

Hong Kong Construction (Interior
Contracting) Limited*
BAER(RBIR)ARAR:

Hong Kong Construction Tianjin Tuan
Po Hu Investment Limited
BARRREEANRERRAR:

Place of incorporation/

operation and kind of

legal entity* Principal activities
HAL/ BERYR

HERREY. TEER

Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding
B /hE RE R

British Virgin Islands/PRC ~ Investment holding
RRRAEE/ME  RENR

Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding
i/ hE REBR

British Virgin Islands/PRC ~ Investment holding
ZERLEE/PE REAR

Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding
/18 REBR
Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding
Bk /M8 RERR
Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding
/18 REBR
Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding
Bk /M8 RERR
Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding
&%/ 18 REnR

1

FEKHEQE @)
Issued share capital/
Paid up registered capital
BRRA/ AN ERER
2015 2014
-1 k- 13
HKS2 HKS2
2R 2ETC
Usst Usst
157 157
HKS1 HKS1
1%n &7
Usst Usst
157 e
HKS1 HKS1
157 &7
HKS4 HKS4
4R 15T
HKS1 HKS1
157 &7
HK$10,000 HKS10,000
10,000%5 10,000%7
HK$462,000,000 HKS462,000,000
462,000,000% 7 462,000,000 7

Group's effective
equity interest
AEE ERRARSR
2015 14
Z§-1F ZI-MF
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
54.13% 54.13%
54.13% h4.13%
54.13% 54.13%
100% 100%
100% 100%
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Principal Subsidiaries, Associated Companies and Joint Ventures

TEHEAT  BEAARAEAT

1 Principal subsidiaries (continued)

Place of incorporation/
operation and kind of
Name legal entity* Principal activities
HAL/ BERYR
2] EERREL. TEER
(a)  Investment holding (continued)
REBR(E)
Hong Kong Construction (Hong Kong)  Hong Kong Investment holding
Limited B REER

BERR (R IRARAT

Hong Kong Energy (Holdings) Limited**  British Virgin Islands/PRC  Investment holding
BAMRE (IR ARAT KERgES/E  REMR

Hong Kong New Energy (Si Zi Wang Qi) - Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding
Vind Power Limited* Bt /08 RESR
BriR(NT B ARAR:
Hong Kong New Energy (SiZi Wang ~ Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding
Qi ) Wind Power Limited B4/48 REnR
BEfeR( T IH-8)Ex
BRAR:
HKC (Shanghai Guangtian) Holdings ~ Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding
Limited* Ak /M8 R
B LBER)BRERAA:
Karbony Investment Limited Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding
B/ REBR
Noble Quest Enterprise Limited* British Virgin Islands/ ~ Investment holding
Hong Kong REBR
HERTES/ER
Sinoriver International Limited* Britsh Virgin Islands/PRC  Investment holding
| ERRRAG AERAEE/ME  REER
Sinoriver International (Wind Power) ~ Hong Kong/PRC nvestment holding
Limite* /1 REBR

RIER (B BR AR

HKC (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2015

1

FEKH B E @)
Issued share capital/
Paid up registered capital
BRRA/ANERER
2015 2014
-5 k- 13
HK$150,000,000 HK$150,000,000
150,000,000%5 150,000,000 7
Uss1 Uss1
157 It
HKS2 HKS2
2R 2ET
HK$1,000 HKS1,000
1,000%7% 1,000%7
HKS1 HKS1
147 &7
HK$10,000,000 HK$10,000,000
10,000,000 10,000,000%7
Usst Uss1
157 157
Uss1 Uss1
17 It
HKS$20 HKS20
7 0%

Group's effective
equity interest
AEE ERRARSR
2015 14
Z§-1F ZI-MF
100% 100%
100% 100%
54.13% 54.13%
54.13% h4.13%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
54.13% 54.13%
54.13% 54.13%



Principal Subsidiaries, Associated Companies and Joint Ventures
FEHEAT  BEAARAEAT

1 Principal subsidiaries (continued)

Name

#

fa)

(b

[nvestment holding (continued)
REER(E)

The Legation Quarter Limited*
MEREEEERERAT

Property investment
ES

Hong Kong Construction (China)
Enginering Company Limited*
BAER(PE) TRARAT

Karbony Real Estate Development
(Shenzhen) Company Limited+*
TREHERE (R ERAR

Sky Universe Limited*

RIABLE(LR)BRARAT

Place of incorporation/

operation and kind of
legal entity*
HAL/ BERYR
HERREY.

Hong Kong/PRC
B /hE

PRC Wholly foreigr-owned
enterprise
hE - NEEERE

PRC, Whlly foreign-
owned enterprise
hE NEBELE

British Virgin Islands/PRC
ARRRHE/@

PRC, Wholly foreign-
owned enterprise
hE ERERE

Principal activities

IRER

Investment holding

REZR

Investment in shopping mall
of South Ocean Centre,
Shenzhen, the PRC

REREMIm
BEPLOES

Investment in offices,
and shopping mall of
Shun Hing Square,
Shenzhen, the PRC

RERERITERRS
NG

Property holding of 9/F.,
Tower 1 South Seas
Centre, Tsimshatsti,
Kowloon, Hong Kong

RERRNEENE
KPBEEAL
1592 m%

Investment in property for
restaurants and retails
in Beijing, the PRC

RERE R A%
ZERZE

1

FEMRE AT @)
Issued share capital/
Paid up registered capital
BRRA/ AN ERER
2015 2014
Z%-1f E-[E
HK$82,105,263 Hi$82,105,263
82,105,263 %7 82,105,063%7
5$85,500,000 5$85,500,000
85,500,000% 7 85,500,000%7
5$155,000,000 US$155,000,000
155,000,000 155,000,000%7
Uss1 Usst
1% It
918,200,000 U5518,200,000
18,200,000% 7 18,200,000 7

BREREBOERLDR —B—AFFH

Group's effective
equity interest
AEE ERRARSR

2015 14

ut- S S 2
70.9% 70.9%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
70.9% 70.9%
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Principal Subsidiaries, Associated Companies and Joint Ventures
TEWEAR  BEAIRAEDT

1 Principal subsidiaries (continued) 1 FTEKEB AT @)
Place of incorporation/
operation and kind of Issued share capital/
Name legal entity” Principal activities Paid up registered capital
HAL/ BERYR
2] EERREL. TEER BEORE/BHERER
2015 14
Z%-1% E-[E

(c)  Property development

NERR

Huzhou Nanxun International Building
Market Center Company Limited-*
M EER R AR AT

Shanghai Guangtian Real Estate
Development Company Limited-*
LERBEEREERAR

Tianjin Jingang Real Estate Investment
Company Limited+*
REMEAERREERAR

Tianjin Renai Properties Development
Company Limited**
REMCEEXREARAA

Tianjin Ruigang Enterprise Management
Company Limited+*
REMRACKERERARD

218

PRC, Wholly foreign- Development and operation US$48,000,000 US$48,000,000
owned enterprise of a bulding materials 48,000,000% T 48,000,005
hE NEBELE centre in Huzhou,
the PRC
RAERNERR
SERERAL

PRC, Sinooreign equity  Real estate development RMB2,300,000,000 RI1B2,300,000,000
joint venture in Hongkou District i~ AK#2,300,000,000% ~ AX%2,300,000,0007
hE A ELE Shanghal, the PRC
W EATINRE
FERIE

PRC, Limited liability Real estate development RMB500,000,000 RMB500,000,000

company in Nankai District in AR#¥500,000,000%  AK#%500,000,000%
HE - ARELAT Tianjin, the PRC
MERETERE
FERIE

PRC, Wholly foreign-~~ Real estate development in HK$452,200,000 HKS452,200,000
owned enterprise Tuanbo Lake of Jinhai 452,200,000 452,200,000/ 0
hE - EBELE County in Tianjin, the
PRC
MERETHIEEN
BRERNE

PRC, Wholly foreign- Real estate development in HK$690,000,000 HK9690,000,000
owned enterprise Tianjn, the PRC 690,000,000 7 690,000,000
HENEBERE  RMERETRERME

HKC (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2015

Group's effective
equity interest
AEE ERRARSR

2015 14
Z§-1F ZI-MF
100% 100%
60% 60%
75%** 5%
100% 100%
100% 100%



1

Principal subsidiaries (continued)

1 FEBELAT@

HK$928,000,000
928,000,000% 7

RMB260,000,000
AE#%260,000,0007

FRER(EB)ERRAR —B-—HFFR
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Principal Subsidiaries, Associated Companies and Joint Ventures
TEMHBAT  BEATRAZATF

1 Principal subsidiaries (continued)

Name

#

(d)  Infrastructure and
alternative energy
ERRERMR

Asia Wind Power (Mudanjiang) Company
Limited+#
EHEARE (AT ARATH

Chongging Huangiu Petrochemical
Company Limited+*
ERRRALAERAR

HKC (Guilin) Expressway Company
Limited*
ERBERRARERAR

220

Place of incorporation/

operation and kind of
legal entity”
HAL/ BERYR
EERREL.

PRC, Sino-foreign equity
joint venture

HE - PRELR

PRC, Limited liabiity
company
hE  ERELAT

PRC, Wholly foreign-
owned enterprise
hE ERERE

HKC (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2015

Principal activities

IRER

Wind Power project in
Heilongjiang, the PRC

MEZET/RNEE
kS

Investment in ethanol
energy business
n Chongging, the
PRC. The business is
currently ceased.

MREETRAL B
RER  HEHEN
B

Construction and operation
of a toll road in Guilin,
the PRC on a Build-
Operate-Transfer
contract

REEE-EE-EH
AREREREEL
HRERTRELR

1 FEHBA7 @

Issued share capital/

Paid up registered capital

BRRA/ANERER
2015 2014
Z%-1% E-[E
HK$100,000,000 HK$100,000,000
100,000,000% 5 100,000,000 7
RMB180,470,000 RB180,470,000
AE¥%180470,0001  ARE180470,0007
RMB543,900,000 RMBA43,900,000
AEH#543.900,0007  ARH543900,0007

Group's effective
equity interest

AEBERRAER
2015 214
Z§-1F ZI-MF
46.55% 46.55%
70.65% 70.65%
100% 100%



Principal Subsidiaries, Associated Companies and Joint Ventures
FEHEAT  BEAARAEAT

1 Principal subsidiaries (continued)

Name

#

(d)

(e

Infrastructure and
alternative energy (continued)
ERRERKE(R)

Hong Kong Wind Power (Muling)
Company Limited+*
BRENEE(BR)ERAAH

AR TRARERAT

AR TRARERAT

Trading/property services
85/ NER%

Hong Kong Construction (China)
Engineering Company Limited-*
BRER(PE) TRERA A

Shenzhen Kumagai Property
Management Company Limited**
MEANEERERAR

Place of incorporation/

operation and kind of
legal entity*
HAL/ BERYR
HERREY.

PRC, Sino-foreign equity
joint venture
hE - NGELE

PRC, Sino-foreign equity
joint venture
hE - ANGERE

PRC, Sino-foreign equity
joint venture
hE - ANGELE

PRC, Wholly foreign-
owned enterprise
hE ERERE

PRC, Sino-foreign equity
joint venture
HE - NGELE

Principal activities

IRER

Wind Power project in
Hellongjiang, the PRC

RAEZET B
¥EER

Wind Power project in
Siziwang Qi, Iner
Mongolia, the PRC

FERFERTTEY
BN%EAR

Wind Power project in
Siziwang Qi, Iner
Mongolia, the PRC

FERFERTTEY
BA%EER

Trading on construction
materials
LERENH

Provision of property
management service

RENFERRE

1 FEHBAE @

Issued share capital/

Paid up registered capital

BRRA/ AN ERER
2015 2014
Z%-1f E-[E
HK$150,100,000 HKS150,100,000
150,100,007 150,100,000%7%
RMB166,480,000 RUB166,480,000
AE¥166,480,0001  AR%166480,0007
RMB172,526,500 RUB172,526,500
AE¥172526,5001  ARE172526,5007
985,500,000 U5585,500,000
85,500,000 85,500,000%
HK$60,000,000 HK960,000,000
60,000,000% 7 60,000,000

Group's effective
equity interest

AEB ERRAER
2015 214
Z§-1F ZI-MF
692% 463
54.13% h4.13%
54.13% h4.13%

100% 100%

100% 100%

BREREBOERLDR —B—AFFH
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Principal Subsidiaries, Associated Companies and Joint Ventures
TEMHBAT  BEATRAZATF

2

Principal associated companies

Name
8

(a)

(b)

Property
nE

Hong Kong Construction SMC Development Limited-*
BRERARYRERAR

Alternative energy
BER

CECIC HKC (Gansu) Wind Power Company Limited:#¢
REREE(HBENEEARAAM

CECIC HKC Wind Power Company Limited+*
mEaBRE NRE (R ERARH

CECIC HKE Wind Power Company Limited**”
mEie BRE N EE (R BRARH

HKC (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2015

2

Issued share capital/registered capital
BRIRA/ERER

2015 2014
“E-1% S il:3
HK$10,000,000 HKS10,000,000
10,000,000% 7t 10,000,000
RNB589,620,000 RMB589,620,000
AK¥589,620,000%  AK%589,620,0007
RMB545,640,000 RMB545,640,000
AE¥545,640,000m  AX545,640,0007
RMB323,260,000 RMB323,260,000
AR¥323,260,000m  AR%323,260,0007

FEBENT

Place of incorporation/ Group's effective

operation equity interest

AL/ g FRECERRAER

2015 2014

“2-1f  ZEF

Hong Kong/PRC 40% 40%

&b/ 1

PRC 21.65% 21.65%

e

PRC 21.65% 21.65%

HE

PRC 16.24% 16.24%

e



Principal Subsidiaries, Associated Companies and Joint Ventures

TEHEATE  BEAARAEAH

3 Principal joint ventures 3 FESE QT
Form of business structure/ Place of establishment/ Group's effective
Name Kind of legal entity operation equity interest
E40 B Y 35 WRed 1 kbl R/ B FEECEBRRAER
2015 2014

—E-%f ks

Property development

NEER

Shanghai Jingang North Bund Real Estate ~ Wholly foreign-owned enterprise PRC 25% 25%
Company Limited+# MABERE i

LEERINEEZARAT

Notes: MI5E -

0 Unofficial English transliterations or translation for 0 FEREXFESEFEMEE
identification purposes only il

+ Interest held by subsidiaries * BmmAMBARES

# Not audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers # WIERZE B KBEETEN B

Fr &%

0 China Renewable Energy Investment Limited is listed on 4 FEBERERIEEBR QAN
the Stock Exchange of which the stock code is 987. BEAZAT £ - IRR5R =987 -

oG The companies are considered as wholly-owned ** R E AR 2 25% 0% 3 4 &
subsidiaries of the Group from the accounting U B A ] 2R 2R A% B K B A R 4
perspective, as the 25% shareholders of such BE W SrAEMS © %
companies are not entitled to receive any future ERRIERARNEE 22BN
dividends and sharing of residual interest. BRF -

a The kind of legal entity is limited liability company, & BREBEVIHEIN EZEEERE
unless otherwise stated. [RAA] e
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Five-Year Financial Summary

IFHBERHE

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
“E-HF T —T-—=F —T-——&F -—T—F&F
HK$ Million HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million
HERT BEBT BEAT BEAIT BEBTT
Consolidated income #HSAEHER
statement
Revenue g 1,273 881 1,441 329 696
(Loss)/profit before FriS il (&),
income tax Pyl (571) 218 163 154 310
Income tax expense Fsfis i (9) (169) (85) (42) (120)
(Loss)/profit for the year A4EZ (E12),/
S ) (580) 49 78 112 190
Non-controlling interests FEiZ i iEzS 82 (136) (5) (9) 51
(Loss)/profit attributable 772 A4S
to equity holders of BB AEG
the Company (E18),/ =7 (498) (87) 73 103 241
Dividends 85! - - - 220 217
Consolidated balance #HSAEBEEMER
sheet
Net current assets MEVEEF 5 2,167 2,666 1,929 1,375 2,014
Non-current assets FERBEE 15,724 16,610 17,656 16,570 16,393
Non-current liabilities FRFEE (4,049) (4,180) (4,236) (3,232) (4,127)
Net assets including BEFHE(PE
non-controlling interests ~ FEiRfAERS) 13,842 15,096 15,349 14,713 14,280
Share capital [N 132 116 112 112 108
Reserves (] 11,628 12,587 12,925 12,351 12,380
Non-controlling interests  FE#EfiiERS 2,082 2,393 2,312 2,250 1,792
Total equity ERBR 13,842 15,096 15,349 14,713 14,280
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
—E-HF ZZ2—mFE —T—= —F—=—F —ZT—%F
HK$ HKS HKS HKS HKS
BT BT BT BT BT
(Loss)/earnings per T (EE),/
share il
- basic —EK (0.040) (0.008) 0.006 0.009 0.023
— diluted —E5E (0.041) (0.009) 0.006 0.009 0.021
Dividend per share i E
— attributable to the — —FEE(E
year - - - 0.020 0.020
Return on total equity #5482 %8 0] 3k =& (4.2%) 0.3% 0.5% 0.8% 1.3%
Note: MIaE -

RREEEBERREREN, BIENEHE
FEFREGEBZANL -

Return on total equity represents profit/loss for the year expressed as a
percentage of the closing total equity for the year concerned.

224

HKC (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2015



Schedule of Principal Properties

AY Sz EE
FEYPE-—EBR
(as at the date of the annual report)
(MARERBH)

Investment properties - completed

Location

ik

The shopping mall, all car parking spaces

and 1/F, 2/F and 58/F offices,

Shun Hing Square, Di Wang Commercial Centre,
No. 5002 Shennan Road East, Luohu, Shenzhen,
the PRC

iz i B 2R 31 o 28 48 1 R P SR 5 500237
FEEZEHERLNENES
FIERELR1E  2ZERO8ERRE

Various shops,

No. 23 Qianmen, Dong Dajie,

Dongcheng, Beijing, the PRC

fir 7 FR B TR T B R A P SR A2 3577 Y
ZEBE

Various shops in Zone B & C,
Construction Materials Market,

Nanxun Economic Development District,
Huzhou City, Zhejiang Province, the PRC
A BT & N T B ER R
BELEEHEERBE KCRM % M5

Three apartment units, various shops and
705 car parking spaces of CITIC Plaza,

No. 233 Tianhe Road North, Tianhe District,
Guangzhou, Guangdong Province, the PRC
i Bl ERE B TR R RT3 233%
REEZRAIEEEEN  ZHEER
705 B E & iz

Existing use

BRI A%

Offices and shops

Shops
S

Shops
Gl

Shops and residential
BEREE

Units 1 to 7 on 28th Floor, Offices of City Centre, Offices

Junctions of Xikang Road and Chengdu Road,
Heping District, Tianjin, the PRC
TRFEXEMAMTRARREENSERD
BEHN28ERNE]L-THREM

REWE - B%MK

Share-
holding

k&

100%

70.9%

100%

40%

100%

(Approx.)

(Approx.) Attributable

GFA GFA
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) Term of lease

(R#)

(R#) L3 1|
BREAER am%

(FHK) (F5K) HES
31,000 31,000 Medium
R
17,100 12,100 Short
pki
97,000 97,000 Medium
]
35,300 14,100 Medium
i
1,487 1,487 Medium
i

155,687

BREREBOERLDR —B—AFFH
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Schedule of Principal Properties
AY Y 173 EE

FEYE-—BR

(as at the date of the annual report)

(A E )

Properties under development

Share- Stage of

Location Intended use holding completion
1o 26 RERZ T JERRBE £

A parcel of land along Residential 100% Planning stage
the eastern shore of % REEE

Tuanbo Lake, Jinhai
County, Tianjin, the PRC
TR s R ETEF%
ERANE R
Ti

Three parcels of land Residential and 100% Construction stage

(Zone A, B (B5-B11), C)  shops and Planning stage
located at Ningpo Road,  (FER /& TRERR
Heping District, REREE

Shenyang, the PRC
frider EEG M AT R
BERE =R
(A+B(B5B11) C&)

A parcel of land Residential 100% Construction stage
(for Phase 3) located at (=% TRER
north of Hong Kong-Macau

Pier, Jiangmen, Guangdong
Province, the PRC

firm B R &)L
BREEILR B
(ARE=H)
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BREDPY=E
(Approx.)
Expected (Approx.) (Approx.] Attributable
year of Site area GFA GFA
completion (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.)
(K#)

(X#) (%) L3 1
it HEER REAER am®
ERER (F75%) (F5X) (F5X)

= 804,000 836,000 836,000

2016 - 2019 41,500 147,000 147,000
“EREER

“T-NE

2016 30,000 92,000 92,000
—ENE

1,075,000



(AR E A )

Properties under development (continued) BRERABPYEm)
b)  For investment purpose b) #RERE

227
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Schedule of Principal Properties

AY LY 173 EE
FEYPE-—BR
(as at the date of the annual report)
(MARFERBH)

Properties held for sale

Location Intended use
2 RERZ

The shopping mall and all Shops

car parking spaces, G

South Ocean Centre,

Dongmen Road Central,
Shenzhen, the PRC \
iz e BRI 7 SR PR B R
mEMEERAEEES

Various shops in Zone B & C, Shops
Construction Materials Market, Gl
Nanxun Economic Development

District, Huzhou City, Zhejiang

Province, the PRC

AR BTSN T R B AR
REREZEREEMEEHBERR

CEANZRERE
Various residential units in Residential
Tianjin Eka Garden, South of FE

Hongai South Road,

Nanki District, Tiajin, the PRC
A B R 2 T R
MEERNEREZERER
ZHREE

Various residential units and shops  Residential
(for Phase 1 and 2) in Jiangmen and shops
Eka Garden, Jianghai District, FERERE
Jiangmen, Guangdong Province,

the PRC \

IR EERE MM LEE
ZEER(E—R=H)2

SEEERAER

Various residential units Residential
(Zone B, B1-B4) in FE
Shenyang Eka Garden,

Ningpo Road, Heping District,
Shenyang, the PRC

fr it oh &R MY & Z R R
I8t E (B + B1-B4) 2 ZffEE

HKC (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2015

Share-holding

R

100%

100%

75%

100%

100%

HEHEERR 2R

(Approx.)
Site area
(sq.m.)

(A)
BEER
(F5%)

5,523

68,000

54,000

65,000

25,500

(Approx.)
GFA
(sq.m.)

(K%)
BEAER
(FAHX)

6,300

83,000

150,000

97,000

119,000

(Approx.)
GFA remain
unsold as at

31 December
2015

(sq.m.)
(R#)R
“E-Tf
+=A=1+-H
HRHEZ
EHAER
(EAX)

6,300

30,500

90,000

27,000

84,900

(Approx.)
Attributable
GFA remain
unsold as at

31 December
2015

(sq.m.)
(R&)ELR
—E-Af
+=A=1+-H
HAEEZ
BEARRE
(ER*K)

6,300

30,500

67,500

27,000

84,900

216,200



HKC (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
BBER (ZKR) BRAF

9/F., Tower 1, South Seas Centre, 75 Mody Road
Tsimshatsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong

EBNBERDEREME 75 SiFFH 0 1 B o2

www.hkcholdings.com
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